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Group Structure

Bl

As at the date of this report, the shareholders and subsidiaries of Beijing
Jingkelong Company Limited were as follows:

RABRELAZ A R REFEBREERNER AR ZBREMBART

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company

Other domestic shares shareholders
it/ﬁﬁiﬁ ﬁ’%a” E«Duﬁ@ NG|

H shares shareholders
EHfth A E ARARER

HARARER

40.61% 16.20% 44.19%

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited
TtRREEREEEROBRA A

52.03% 79.85% 80.00% 100.00%
Beijing Xinyang Tongli Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Jingkelong
Commercial Facilities Beijing Chaopi Trading (Langfang) Company Supermarket Chain
Company Limited Company Limited Limited Company Limited
L RRF 8 N P R BB ERAR bR REEE (B54h) IR T
BRARAE] BRAT] BRAA]
100% 100% 100% 53.43% 52.63% 59.00% 100.00% 100.00% 54.23% 80.00% 57.40%
L L . L . L L. L. L . L
Tianjin Chaopi iy e
Taiyuan Chapoi Tangshan Chaopi STy e Beijing Chaopi Beijing Chaopi Shuanglong Alcohol Qingdao Chaopi Shijiazhuang Chaopi Beijing Chaopi Beijing Chaopi Beijing Chaopi
Trading Company Trading Company L?mite dp y Huaqing Beverage Flavourings Sales Company Jinlong Trading Xinlong Trading Jinglong Oil Sales Zhongde Trading Huilong Trading
Limited Limited Company Limited Company Limited Limited Company Limited Company Limited Company Limited Company Limited Company Limited
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Chairman’s Statement
EERWE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Beijing Jingkelong
Company Limited (the “Company”), | am delighted to present the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2008 (the “Reporting Period”).

Looking back at 2008, the Chinese government calmly handled the
impact caused by the global financial crisis and made timely adjustments
to its macroeconomic policies. With its healthy banking system, robust
domestic consumption market and effective monetary and fiscal policies,
the national economy achieved remarkable growth. China’s GDP topped
30 trillion yuan in 2008, up 9% from 2007, and Beijing also recorded a

9% economic growth.

Facing a complicated economic situation, keen competitions and ever
changing consumption demand, the Group continued to optimise and
adjust its development strategy and marketing policy. In 2008, the Group
updated its shop image design and shop layout display, optimised its
product mix, and upgraded its distribution, logistics and management
information system, which contributed to the improvement in our operating
results and efficiency. During the Reporting Period, we continued to
explore potential business opportunities, and seek new sites and merger
and acquisition opportunities to expand our business and network, which

is a business development strategy that we will continue to pursue.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERHRE

Consistent with our regional development strategy, we strengthened
our retail and wholesale distribution businesses in Beijing City and
certain parts of its peripheral (the “Greater Beijing Region”). Through
integration of our retail and wholesale businesses, optimising operational
management, exploring ways to improve operational efficiency in our
distribution system, we reinforced our competitiveness and achieved a
stable growth of our distribution network, revenue and net profit. The

Group achieved the following during the Reporting Period:
— Adding 39 new retail outlets with net operating area of approximately
23,600 square metres and the total number of retail outlets reached

242;

- Revenue was approximately RMB6,694.4 million, representing a

18.7% growth as compared to 2007;

- Gross profit was approximately RMB934.8 million, 29.5% higher
than that of 2007;

—  Gross profit margin was approximately 13.96%, 1.16% higher than
that of 2007;

- Profit attributable to equity holders was approximately RMB156.8

million, representing a 25.8% growth as compared to 2007;

- Basic earnings per share was approximately RMB38 cents, an

increase of 19.1% over 2007; and

- Final dividend per share was RMB21 cents (tax inclusive, 2007:
RMB17.5 cents).
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In 2009, the global financial crisis is still unabated, and its impact on
China’s economic development will become more apparent. The global
financial crisis presents unprecedented challenges and opportunities.
China has accumulated enormous surplus to pursue further economic
development in difficult times, and has demonstrated its political will
to continue with its reform and open policy adopted 30 years ago and
deploy measures to sustain its economic growth. The financial crisis
should not affect the foundation of China’s economic development and
the long-term development trends.

Under the recent significant adjustment of its macroeconomic policies, the
government regarded the stimulation of domestic demand as the driver
for enhancing economic growth. Meanwhile, positive implementation
of financial policy and moderate loosening of monetary policy has
helped domestic demand. Having set the tone for increase in consumer
spending, making available more exploring consumption spots and
space, and improving consumption policy and optimising consumption
environment, we expect that the government will continue to adopt
effective measures in encouraging and stimulating consumption. Beijing
will be in the phase of new development after hosting the 2008 Olympic
Games. The improvement in public transport and other infrastructural
facilities, the speeding up of urbanisation, and the positive measures
adopted by the government to encourage and promote domestic
consumption have created the environment that is conducive to the
Group’s strategy to tap the demand of the consumers in the Greater
Beijing Region. We believe that, following the continuous increase
in disposable income, the continuous perfection of social insurance
scheme, and improvement of consumption environment, enhancement
of rural consumption, expansion of urban consumption, maintenance of
market stability, reduction of consumption costs and adoption of other
measures in increasing consumers’ confidence, the consumption level
in China will hopefully maintain its growth rate. Meanwhile, we expect
the consumer product market will gradually launch various promotional
activities to attract consumers, and as a result, competition will increase

in various business segments.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EERHRE

As the Group is engaged in the wholesale and retail distribution of
daily consumer products, 2009 will be full of challenges and immense
development opportunities. We shall continue to optimise our existing
retail and wholesale distribution network taking account of the overall
economic and its impact on our retail and wholesale distribution of
daily consumer products and the changes in consumer behavior. We
shall closely monitor changes in consumers’ demand and to adjust our
overall operation structure and marketing strategies, and implement
more stringent budget control on costs and expenses so as to promote
the operating efficiency in our Group. We will leverage on the Group’s
reputable brand image and our valuable experience in the regional
retail and wholesale markets to overcome challenges, seize business
opportunities whilst we continue to maintain our strategy to steadily
develop our business and bring the best investment returns to our

shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to
our shareholders for their trust and support and to all investors, business
partners, suppliers and customers for their support and assistance, and
our appreciation to all staff and the management team for their hard work

and contribution to the Group during the Reporting Period.

Wei Tingzhan

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
27 March 2009

ERFEREXREROERLT —RENEEH

HUERABEERNMBERTENHEBHOR
BmE —ZTEhAFHERMUBRKEREE
ZBRBERBEN—F  RASHEELRA
ERMEDHPE  EINIEBRREERREERN
RAEEMTERNLBENDHITENTENHES
TRNEL  ZAMBABEET L RERFE
REBBNEHRE  LEBRRNKAERR
B BHRAAEERLESRR - ERAEE
RN GEEE  MERFRATERETIEH
BELR RS TWRE N DRkE - EH®
B EBERRHBROERRE  BAEENER
BRAKX  G2RERERREFNKEDR -

A D) AR

7

7

AABURKREZTGRAFSUBRREAEENE
FEXF - BHSURESL  AERH - HED
REABEOXFHNED ANtAAEEEE
BTIREEEGERE - SFTHNHIVENREER
BRBARLEHE -

EER
BHERE

FECdER
—EENF=ZRA=-++tH



men’c

DISCUSSION an&k VSIS
E.IEJEJH \Tﬁ

liinii* T ai

- w o ~ ‘
- - - i
L ‘_ | |
= B
i (] | b
. )
7 /
< adf ! ‘f |
1f | I ; - v | .
f X I\ . |
| -
A | n =
—T_T I ;" ' : - || > :
| | i X
¥ e . 2
| L F
.1L x ,.,. .




Management Discussion and Analysis
BIR BT kT

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2008, since the third quarter, the China economy has slowed down
under the impact of intensively growing global financial crisis. In the face
of grim economic situation, the China government has acted decisively
to make timely adjustments on the macroeconomic policy, promptly
introduced measures to expand domestic demand and formulated a
series of related economic policies which made up a systematic and
comprehensive package plan aimed at promoting steady and relatively
fast economic growth. With its healthy banking system, effective
monetary and fiscal policy and robust domestic consumption market,
China economy has achieved remarkable growth in 2008. According
to the report of the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the GDP of
China grew by 9.0%.

According to the information published by the Beijing Municipal Bureau
of Statistics, the per capita disposable income and the per capita
consumption expenditure increased by 12.4% and 7.4% respectively
in 2008. Development of the economy and consumption market in
China and Beijing region provides us the opportunities and challenges

for growth and expansion of our wholesale and retail businesses in the

Greater Beijing Region.
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The integrated development of the Group’s wholesale and retail
businesses is a unique operation mode and one of its competitive
advantages. During the Reporting Period, the Group executed its
operating strategies and development plans in its retail and wholesale

businesses and both achieved stable development.

Positive and steady development of distribution network

During the Reporting Period, the Group further strengthened its regional
superiority in the Greater Beijing Region, with 16 new directly-operated
retail outlets (included 1 hypermarket, 8 supermarkets and 7 convenience
stores) and 23 franchise convenience stores being opened. The Group’s
retail network has covered all the 18 districts and counties of Beijing City;
and with 2 new stores opened in Langfang of the Hebei Province, a retail
network comprising 1 hypermarket, 3 supermarkets and 1 convenience

store has been developed in the Hebei Province.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to further integrate
the resources of Beijing Shou Lian Trading Company Limited (“Shou
Lian”) according to its plan. With the foundation of integrating the
business systems of the Shou Lian delegated stores into the systems
of centralised procurement, logistics, settlement and management
information of Jingkelong, the Group concentrated its efforts in taking
positive measures to gradually improve the operation capability and
profitability of the Shou Lian delegated stores. During the Reporting
Period, the Group adopted the current design requirements of its retail
outlets to redesign, renovate and revamp the Shou Lian delegated
stores. By now, 6 delegated shops have been subsequently reopened for
business with improved shopping environment and operation conditions,
enlarged self-operating area, rational shop layout and operating results

were obviously promoted.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE WD

For Shou Lian reorganisation purpose, on 23 December 2008, the
Company entered into a sales and purchase agreement with Beijing
Jinyang Jiulong Trading Company Limited (“Jinyang Jiulong”), an
independent third party, to dispose of its 11.04% equity interest in Shou
Lian to Jinyang Jiulong, for a cash consideration of RMB50 million (the
“Disposal”). After the Disposal, Jinyang Jiulong owns 100% equity interest
in Shou Lian. On the same date, the Company and Shou Lian entered
into an equity delegation agreement for the delegation of the 100% equity
interest in Beijing Shou Lian Supermarket Company Limited (“Shou Lian
Supermarket”) to the Company for a period from 23 December 2008
to 28 February 2010 (the “Equity Delegation Agreement”). Shou Lian
Supermarket is wholly owned by Shou Lian and has taken up all the
operations of Shou Lian. The principal terms of the Equity Delegation
Agreement are basically similar to the co-operation agreement entered
into between the Company, Shou Lian and Beijing Xi Dan You Yi Group
on 10 February 2007. This co-operation agreement has been terminated

after entering the Equity Delegation Agreement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

The following table set out the number and net operating area of the  FTHRIIRAEBRZZTZENF+_A=1+—H0K

Group’s retail outlets as at 31 December 2008: TEMEHEMFAERE !
Department stores Hypermarkets Supermarkets  Convenience stores Total
BEHES N Fatm {EFIE CE

Number of retail outlets ZEMEHE :

Directly-operated E& /5 1 7 47 54 109
Franchise-operated T &5 - - 1 105 106
Shou Lian delegated stores BEIEE 55 1 3 23 - 27

2 10 71 159 242

Net operating area (square metres) FLEHEE (FHXK) :

Directly-operated E%& 27,800 60,138 103,163 12,294 203,395
Franchise-operated 45&F &5 - - 880 20,058 20,938
Shou Lian delegated stores BEIEE 55 19,300 21,185 48,389 - 88,874

47,100 81,323 152,432 32,352 313,207
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE WD

The coverage of the Group’s wholesale network further extended
to Northern China and the Economic Circle of Bohai. During the
Reporting Period, the number of sole distributorship brands supplied
to the supermarkets, shopping centers and, catering and entertainment
businesses in Beijing, Northern China, Eastern China and the Bohai circle
has reached 72. The scale of turnover and profitability from wholesale

business has been promoted steadily.

Strengthening commodity quality supervision

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s internal commodity quality
entire process control system has been revised pursuant to the relevant
laws and regulations stipulated in the Food Security Regulations of Beijing
City effective from 1 January 2008. QS market assess system has been
fully applied to all commodities under the scope of QS compulsory
authentication according to the relative regulations and requirements. On-
site inspection and appraisal were conducted on the newly introduced
commodity channels. By adhering to the standards of safety, healthiness
and freshness to select reliable commodity procurement base, the
safety in sourcing commodity has been enhanced. Meanwhile, the
Company’s examination centre has fully displayed its scientific technique
in conducting non-periodical commodity spot-check to assure customers’

confidence.

During the Reporting Period, the Group launched a network management
system of suppliers’ certificate identification to promote the efficiency in
the management of commodity quality and certificate identification. By
utilising the Group’s food security early warning mechanism, commodities
with quality problems can be promptly removed from display area and

handled in the shortest time.

Promoting the customer-oriented marketing concept

The Group continued to implement the consumer-oriented marketing
concept based on consumer characteristics and behavior. During the
Reporting Period, the data application system was installed in the
Group’s retail outlets, which could provide data reference for the shop
management teams to adjust product mix, display layout and marketing
strategy timely on the basis of classifying, combining, digging and

analysing data information.

Following the extension of retail outlets to the 18 districts and counties of
the Beijing City, and the Hebei Province, the Group implemented regional
marketing strategy based on its scale superiority. Differential management

and marketing were implemented based on the consumption conditions
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in different commercial sectors and characteristic research as well as the
location, type and conditions of retail outlets. By having the opportunity
of hosting the Olympic Games, festivals, shop celebration, and based on
the conditions of commercial sectors to adjust shop layout, commodity
display design and optimisation of product mix, the Group positively

arranged various characteristic marketing activities.

Enhancing logistics and distribution systems

During the Reporting Period, the Group insisted on refinery management
on its centralised logistics system. The live and fresh produce logistics
centre strengthened the construction of its live and fresh produce base,
extended procurement sources and reduced unnecessary procedures to
form the live and fresh operation pattern of “supermarket plus base”. The
perfection of live and fresh produce purchase network and enhancement
of logistics management ability enabled the Company to save costs and

improve operation results efficiently.

During the Reporting Period, the wholesale distribution centre installed
the large-scale automatic classifying and picking assembly system.
The classifying and picking capacity was promoted to 9,000 boxes
per hour resulting in promoting distribution efficiency and concurrently
reducing error rate of classification and picking. The rapid development
of the Group’s wholesale business was thus safeguarded by its strong

logistics system.

Consolidating customer loyalty

The Group continued to stick with the long-term commitment of “limited
demand, unlimited service” in promoting customer service. During the
Reporting Period, the Group implemented “cents storage” project in
membership reward card originated from the business segment which
enhances collection efficiency and convenience to customer shopping.
Through the introduction of “member price” commodities, exchange
and purchase with accumulated points recorded in membership reward
cards during festivals and holidays, the accumulated points reward and
other activities under the membership reward scheme provides more

valued-added services.

During the Reporting Period, with the opportunities from the Olympic
Games, the Group conducted food safety knowledge education in
the surrounding community of its retail outlets and used the theme of
“happy kitchen” to explain to residents of cooking know-how, nutrition
knowledge as well as introduce the Group’s commaodity production flow,

procurement flow and quality control skill.
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Operation results

The retail revenues are categorised to include the sales of goods
generated from the Group’s directly-operated retail outlets and the
commissions from concessionaire sales. Over 99% of the Group’s retail
turnover and contribution to retailing profit is attributable to the operation
and management of the Group’s directly-operated hypermarkets,
supermarkets and convenience stores in the Reporting Period. During
the Reporting Period, the Group recorded commissions of approximately
RMB18 million earned from the concessionaire sales of approximately
RMB124.1 million recognised in the Jiulong department store which

commenced business in November 2007.

An analysis of the revenue and gross profit margin contributed by the
Group’s directly-operated hypermarkets, supermarkets and convenience

stores is set out below:

Hypermarkets A& %5
Supermarkets* &4 ™

Convenience stores &7/
Total &3

Gross profit margin (%) EF% (%)

The revenue of supermarkets included the amount generated by the
Guanzhuang supermarket which was transformed to a hypermarket in
2008. Excluding the revenue of the Guanzhuang supermarket, the revenue

of supermarkets increased by approximately 10% in 2008.

The increase in the 2008 revenue of the Group’s directly-operated
hypermarkets, supermarkets and convenience stores of approximately
15.7% was mainly attributable (i) the same store sale growth of
approximately 7.2%, (i) contributions from the full years sales performance
of the new stores opened in 2007, and (iii) inclusion of the sales

performance of the new stores opened in the Reporting Period.

IRREEBREREROGARAE —ZTNFFR

(R e
TEEBRABEREAEEELTEEH R
TEBHEEASWA - REHAN - BREDZN
THAHZELEWARTBEERREREEES
RES - RAHET - EFE - REBA - AEE
KEAEBE®RS(ZEZELF T —ARKEE)
I EEEE R AL A REE124,100,0007T F &Y
ERHEMSWAL A ARK18,000,0007T ©

TREINAEEEEAES KoM - EFE
ERA R EM RO ITER

Revenue (RMB’000) Increase
EXBA (ARETR) BE
2008 2007 (%)
—EBN\F ZETERF Bt
1,007,300 682,380 47.6
1,818,988 1,763,647 3.1
249,846 212,904 17.4
3,076,134 2,658,931 15.7
16.7 15.8 0.9

* L BRBETHEERARSERBT(R-_ZTN\F

BARES)NWYE BREEHBEMRANTZE
FABTN _ETN\FHEERAERLI10%

“ET N\FAEBEEARES  RABT - EF
JEREEWAREFIERL15.7% - TEEHA()
FEHERENT.2% (I —EELEHBEHE
FHEXETR RNVREHANTHIEHEEE
BER -



The increase in gross profit margin generated from the hypermarket
operation, supermarket operation and convenience store operation from
approximately 15.8% in 2007 to approximately 16.7% in the Reporting
Period, was mainly contributed by (i) higher gross profit margin generated
by self-operated live and fresh produce, (i) bargaining power with
suppliers strengthened based on the increase in purchase volume as
a result of expansion of distribution network, and (i) the continuous

optimisation of product mix.

The wholesale revenues are categorised to include the sales recognised
by Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi Trading”) and its

subsidiaries and sales to franchisees recognised by the Company.

Revenue recognised by Chaopi Trading and its subsidiaries
PREHEREMBELRAERNBA

Less: Intersegment sales J& : 28R HE
EROHE

Sales to franchisees [A1/N8
Consolidated wholesale revenue A B3I A

Gross profit margin* FEF| &

*

Represents gross profit margin recognised by Chaopi Trading and its

subsidiaries including intersegment sales.

The increase in wholesale revenue recognised by Chaopi Trading and
its subsidiaries of approximately 16.6% during the Reporting Period was
primarily due to (i) the in line expansion of wholesale business with the
rapid expansion of domestic retail business, (i) the full year contribution
in 2008 by Chaopi Zhongde, Chaopi Huilong, and Chaopi Taiyuan with
businesses commenced in mid and late 2007 respectively, and (iii) the

increase in the number of regional sole distributorship brands.

The increase in gross profit margin from approximately 9.5% in 2007
to 10.3% during the Reporting Period was mainly because of (i) better
bargaining power with suppliers due to increase in purchase volume, (i)
the increase in the regional sole distributorship brands with higher gross

profit margin, and (i) the continuous optimisation of product mix.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS S
2008 2007
—EENF —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Revenue Yt A 6,694,357 5,640,599
Gross profit £ 934,836 721,837
Gross profit margin (%) EFIZ (%) 13.96 12.80
Other income and gains EH A K W 345,568 242,961
Selling and distribution costs 44 & 5 #55 A& (680,336) (521,598)
Administrative expenses 1THFE X (195,360) (137,008)
Other expenses E 37 () (33,333) (23,493)
Finance costs E& A (91,100) (27,397)
Tax #18 (76,581) (86,434)
Profit for the year 4 F 203,683 168,872
Net profit margin (%) FFEX (%) 3.0 3.0
Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent &7 &l ik &5 A B 7 156,758 124,593
Net profit margin attributable to equity holders of the parent (%) B2 Bk ER B AEEFFIER (%) 2.3 2.2
Basic earnings per share — RMB S EAREF|— AR 38.0 centsfll 31.9 centsfll

Revenue WA

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after deduction
of relevant taxes and allowances for returns and trade discounts.

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 18.7%, from
approximately RMB5,640.6 million in 2007 to approximately RMB6,694.4
million, primarily due to the increase in retail and wholesale revenue by
approximately 15.1% and 21.9%, respectively.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit of the Group was
approximately RMB934.8 million, representing an increase of approximately
29.5% compared with approximately RMB721.8 million last year. The
increment was in line with the increase in revenue. The increase in gross
profit margin from approximately 12.80% to approximately 13.96% in
the current year was mainly attributable to the increase in gross profit

margins of both the retail and wholesale businesses.

LRREREREMRHERLT —BBNAEER

WA EEMHNEZFE - NRBARNELR
RENEZI -

TEE®HKRA #Z2F
5,640,600,0007T & & 4 A
UL EE18.7% 0 FERMA
AP BIERA)15.1%%21.9% °

TFELEFOARE
R #6,694,400,000
REEEYHERK

EREER=E

wEER - NEBEEFL A ARMI34,800,000
7L RAFREBZ EFFELHARK721,800,0007T
ERH29.5% + B ABILIRIETE o RFEERE
WHI12.80%RFA E£)13.96% * EBE2HRTER
HEBEZEBENEAIER o



Other income and gains

Other income and gains mainly comprise of income from suppliers
for display space leasing fee and promotion income, rental income
from leasing and sub-leasing of properties and counters, and interest

income.

The Group’s other income and gains increased by approximately 42.2%
from approximately RMB243 million to approximately RMB345.6 million in
the Reporting Period, mainly due to the increase in income from suppliers

and rental income of approximately 29.7% and 45.6%, respectively.

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs mainly comprise of salary and welfare,
depreciation, energy fee, rental expenses, repair and maintenance,
transportation expenses, packaging expenses and advertising

expenses.

The Group’s selling and distribution costs were approximately RMB680.3
million in the Reporting Period. The selling and distribution costs ratio
against revenue increased from approximately 9.2% to 10.2% in the
current year. The increase was primarily due to (i) the increase in salary
and welfare, and (i) the inclusion of selling and distribution costs of the
new retail outlets and wholesale subsidiaries set up and commenced

operation in the second half of 2007 and during the Reporting Period.

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses mainly comprise of salary and welfare, social
security costs (including retirement benefit contribution), depreciation

expenses and entertainment expenses, etc.

The Group’s administrative expenses were approximately RMB195.4
million in 2008. The administrative expenses ratio against revenue
increased from approximately 2.4% to 2.9% in the current year. The
increase was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in salary, welfare and
social security costs as a result of a general increase in salary, and (i)
the inclusion of administrative expenses of the new retail outlets and
wholesale subsidiaries set up and commenced operation in the second

half of 2007 and during the Reporting Period.

Other expenses
Other expenses primarily comprise of business tax, city construction tax

and surcharges mainly charged on rental income and service income.
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The Group’s other expenses increased from approximately RMB23.5
million to approximately RMB33.3 million in 2008. The increase was
mainly because of increase in business tax, city construction tax and
surcharges as a result of increase in rental income and service income
in 2008.

Finance costs
Finance costs represent interest on bank loans, other borrowings and
debenture.

The Group’s finance costs significantly increased from approximately
RMB27.4 million to approximately RMB91.1 million in 2008, and was
primarily due to () the increase in bank loans and other borrowings
during the Reporting Period as well as the short-term debenture
issued in December 2007, (ii) the increase of the one-year benchmark
lending rate from 6.84% in July 2007 to 7.47% in December 2007, and
7.2% in September 2008, and (i) a decrease of capitalised interest of
approximately RMB23.6 million mainly due to the completion of the
construction projects by the end of 2007. Taking into account of the
interest income of RMB22.9 million (2007: RMB9.7 million) recorded in
other income and gains, the net finance costs would be approximately
RMB68.2 million for the Reporting Period (2007: RMB17.7 million).

Tax

The Group is not subject to Hong Kong profit tax as the Group had
no assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong during the
Reporting Period.

The members of the Group are subject to corporate income tax at a
rate of 25% during the Reporting Period (2007: 33%) on their respective
taxable profit pursuant to the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.

Income tax decreased from approximately RMB86.4 million to
approximately RMB76.6 million in 2008, primarily due to the decrease
in corporate income tax rate from 33% in 2007 to 25% in 2008.

Profit for the year
Profit for the year increased by approximately 20.6% from approximately
RMB168.9 million to approximately RMB203.7 million in the current
year. The increase was mainly attributable to an increase in gross profit
of approximately 29.5% and an increase in other income and gains of
approximately 42.2%.
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Basic earnings per share

The Group recorded basic earnings per share of approximately RMB38
cents for 2008, which was calculated on the basis of the number of
412,220,000 shares, representing approximately 19.1% higher than
RMB31.9 cents of last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly financed its operations
through internally generated cash flows, bank and other borrowings and

the proceeds from the H shares placement in October 2007.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had non-current assets of
approximately RMB1,688 million, which mainly comprised property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB1,528.5 million, and non-current
liabilities of approximately RMB77.5 million mainly comprised interest-

bearing bank and other borrowings of RMB56 million.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB121,764,000. Current assets mainly comprised cash
and cash equivalents (mainly denominated in RMB) of approximately
RMB543 million, inventories of approximately RMB710.1 million, trade
receivables of approximately RMB970.1 million and prepayments,
deposits and other receivables of approximately RMB272.7 million.
Current liabilities mainly comprised of trade and bills payables of
approximately RMB799 million, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of approximately RMB1,008.5 million, short-term debentures
of RMB370 million and, other payables and accruals of approximately
RMB497.8 million.

INCREASE IN INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

During the Reporting Period, the Company contributed cash of
approximately RMB147.1 million to Chaopi Trading, resulting in the
increase of the Group’s direct equity interest in Chaopi Trading from
approximately 76.42% to 79.85%.

During the Reporting Period, Chaopi Trading acquired an interest of
approximately 6.3% in Beijing Chaopi Huilong Trading Company Limited
(“Chaopi Huilong”) from a minority shareholder of Chaopi Huilong by
cash of approximately RMB849,000. Accordingly, the Group’s indirect
equity interest in Chaopi Huilong increased from approximately 39.05%
to 45.83%.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s operating revenues and expenses are principally denominated

in Renminbi.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter any material
effect on its operation or liquidity as a result of fluctuation in currency

exchange rates.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group employed 5,057 (2007: 5,068)
full-time employees in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The
total staff costs (including directors’ and supervisors’ remunerations) of
the Group for the Reporting Period amounted to approximately RMB319.4
million (2007: RMB228.2 million). The staff emolument (including directors
and supervisors) of the Group are based on duty (position), experience,
performance, and market rates in order to maintain their remunerations

at a competitive level.

As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Group participates in
the defined contribution retirement benefits scheme for its employees
operated by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC. The
Group is required to make contributions for those employees who are
registered as permanent residents in the PRC at a rate of 20% (2007:
20%) of the employees’ salaries, bonuses and certain allowances.
The Group has no further obligation associated with the said defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme beyond the annual contributions.
The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes amounted to approximately RMB24,981,000 for the Reporting
Period (2007: RMB21,115,000).

During the Reporting Period, 103 training seminars such as pre-job

training, staff back-up support, etc. had been conducted.

INDEBTEDNESS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had an aggregate borrowings (all
denominated in RMB) of approximately RMB1,434.5 million, consisted
of secured short-term bank loans of approximately RMB503.5 million,
unsecured short-term bank loans of RMB205 million, secured long-term
bank loans of RMB56 million, unsecured short-term other borrowing
of RMB300 million and unsecured short-term debentures of RMB370
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million (fixed interest rate of 6.8% per annum). All the Group’s bank
loans bear fixed interest rates ranging from 4.9% to 7.5% per annum.
All the Group’s other borrowing bears a fixed interest rate of 7.3% per

annum. The secured bank loans were secured by:

- Certain of the Group’s buildings, investment properties and lease
prepayments for land use rights with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB578.7 million as at 31 December 2008; and

—  Certain of the Group’s time deposits of approximately RMB17.7

million as at 31 December 2008.

Certain of the Group’s time deposits of approximately RMB12.6 million
were pledged for bills payable as at 31 December 2008.

The Group’s net gearing ratio* was approximately 57.8% as at 31
December 2008 which was higher than 37.4% as at 31 December 2007.
The increase was primarily due to an increase of bank loans and other
borrowing, and acquisition of property, plant and equipment during the
Reporting Period.

* Represented by: (Total borrowings (including debentures) — pledged deposits,

and cash and cash equivalent)/Total equity

According to an independent legal opinion, all the borrowings incurred

in 2008 were in compliance with the relevant PRC applicable laws.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

STRATEGIES AND PLANS

The financial crisis should not affect the foundation of China’s economic
development and the long-term development trends. To effectively meet
the global financial crisis, the central government has been making
every effort to serve the goal of ensuring sturdy and rapid economic
development in China as the top one overarching objective, and will also

preserve the well-being of the people and stability in China.
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Both the central government and local governments will draw up feasible
measures to expand consumption and stimulate domestic demand to
promote economic growth. The investment to improve people’s livelihood
will drive the economic growth. The improvement of education and health
system will expand consumption, and the expansion of consumption will

in turn improve the structure and quality of economic growth.

Looking forward, we believe in the sustainable development of our
country with enormous potential, strong motivation and ability to prevent
risks. We expect that the Group’s retail and wholesale businesses have
immense development opportunity in spite of encountering stringent
challenge caused by the global financial crisis as well as gradual intensified
competition. We believe that room and potential are still available for the

Group’s development in the Greater Beijing Region.

With respect to the development strategy, the Group will continue to
look for new location for new retail outlets in the Greater Beijing Region
and establish new wholesale network in the second-tier cities of the
Northern China, the Eastern China and the Economic Circle of Bohai at
a stable speed. At the same time, we shall adopt effective measures to
promote the operating results of the Group existing retail and wholesale

networks.

With respect to the marketing management, the Group will continue to
optimise product mix, strengthen marketing strategy, adapt to customer
consumption concept and changes in consumption structure. We shall

promote the marketing capability of in-house branded commodities.

With respect to the supply chain, the Group will thoroughly improve
the flow of logistics centers, reduce logistics costs practically, enhance
distribution efficiency, develop commodity sub-packing and processing

capability and explore new profitable sources.

With respect to the internal control and management, the Group
will gradually improve its internal control system and strengthen the
establishment of a risk management organisation system. By integrating
the Group’s management and marketing mode, we shall implement the
KPI evaluation system for each management department, retail outlet

and logistics centre to promote the Group’s operating efficiency.

ZEZINFER

R IR R 77 BT 9 R ER % TE A 1T 4R A A B K
HERRNABAFTAEEREER - HHER
ERNREBEDREER  HHARBEERN
BUERS IR AOHE - W MR LB E RO &R N

REARK  RABRETEAAKRERRNEXE
N BYHORERRAROE N - RFITEH - &
AREBENTENMREEBHEERCRERST
REBRIEE N BAENB NGRS BEHESEE
RERKS - HPIHELAEBEERNLRRDA
EXMBER=EMERED -

EREE L ARESEENRROSEREXR
it,?\imli SHEZHMNHBERTERH  £F

 BER MRS R B Y — AR T R ST A HE B
’\ﬁﬁi\% - AR AEESRRERERIETIREG
TENAED HRAH L LM -

EEEEREL AEEMBFEBLCHRER M
*”%%i JT\%JT;@F%EE%>ﬁ§E¥’%\&>ﬁ§ﬁT§

EHEEER L 2EREEEPLRE  VE
FRARIRARA RS Rk - WS MK
RINTRENRE - BIHAONEIERE -

EAMESREE L AEEKE T TEABIE

HER MERRERAMBRER - HALE
EERELRANZEEEINMA  TEEHRE

EROEEARER(KP)ZZHE

R -

RIS EE

;



Corporate Governance Report
TEEBWME

The Group is committed to maintain good corporate governance with
an emphasis on the principles of transparency, accountability and
independence to all shareholders. The Group recognises the importance
of effective corporate governance is essential for its continual growth,
and will also attract more investors to invest in the Company. The Group
has adopted the principles of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
before the migration of the listing of the H shares of the Company from
the Growth Enterprise Market to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main Board Migration”) and Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board (the
“Listing Rules”) after the Main Board Migration with the objective of

enhancing the quality of corporate governance of the Group.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has applied the principles
of and complied with all the code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules before the Main Board Migration and Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules after the Main Board Migration during the Reporting Period, saving
for the directors’ retirement by rotation as explained below.

Both the provision A4.2 of Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules and
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules require that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, of a listed issuer should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Company’s
Articles of Association stipulates that each director shall be elected in
general meeting of the Company for a term of not more than three years,
and eligible for re-election upon the expiry of the term. Having taken
into account of the continuity of the Group’s operation and management
policies, the Company’s Articles of Association contains no express
provision for the directors’ retirement by rotation and thus deviating

from the aforesaid provision A4.2.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules before the Main Board Migration and the Model Code
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for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules after the Main
Board Migration. Having made specific enquiries, all the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of dealings
and code of conduct regarding their securities transactions throughout
the Reporting Period.

THE BOARD

The Board takes the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Group and be collectively responsible for safeguarding the best interest
of the Group and accountable to shareholders. Matters that are required
to be determined or considered by the Board include overall group
strategies, substantial acquisitions and disposals, capital transactions,
annual, interim and quarterly results, distribution of dividends and
other substantial operating and financial matters. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to the Group’s
management include the preparation of financial accounts for Board
approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by
the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal controls and
risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory

requirements, rules and regulations.

The Board currently comprises of nine directors (being four executive
directors, two non-executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors) which have served the Group for the whole
Reporting Period. Their respective initial term of office has been ended
on 31 October 2007 and were all been extended for a further term of
three years commenced from 1 November 2007 pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed at the annual general meeting held on 18 May 2007.
Each of the four executive directors is entitled to a fixed basic salary,
a performance based salary and other allowance and benefits in kind
under applicable PRC law and regulations. The two non-executive
directors do not receive any directors’ fee. Each of the three independent

non-executive directors is entitled to receive a fixed director’s fee.

ERFEREXREROERLT —BENEEH

ARFIEAE2RERFHETENR  2REFY
BRAEREREMATET TERESF IS E

Exg

EEgREASENEERELETIE  YHRE
FERRBEREENSARNEET - EFERE
EEMEEBREBNBRER  EARB M
& BARS  FENFFERFEREARKE
DKE  AREMBERLERMBER -EFE
FREEAEBEEENERFEBEREMT
BEMBEESE  BRESFSHAENER
B RER - MTIRD R ARG E RE R EEEN
BE ETHBANZEZEEREMRA  REOR

o

s

RErREEgANAER(BRUANTES -
MAFPTESN=2FLIERTER)EX - 5
REERSHANBTTEERE -EENE—E
EFHERZZET+EFE+A=ZT—HIH  BE=-Z
TEERATN\BRETHRRAFASBBNR
# AEBAESE-ZTHF+-A—HE=
FOEH - HRATEFTHARUBDEEHF S
ByF e REMRBERERBARERERN
EMAGE  MEBEFRTESFETRRIAESE
T CRBUFATEETHEBEENESEW®



During the Reporting Period, the Board fulfilled the requirement of having
at least three independent non-executive directors as required by the
GEM Listing Rules before the Main Board Migration and the Listing Rules
after the Main Board Migration. The Company also met the requirement
of having at least one independent non-executive director must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive directors, an annual confirmation in respect
of their independence. The Company is of the opinion that all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent pursuant to Rules
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules before the Main Board Migration and Rules
3.13 of the Listing Rules after the Main Board Migration.

Reasonable notice period and sufficient relevant information have been
given to all directors so as to enable them to attend the Board meetings
and make appropriate decision in relation to matters to be discussed. All
directors are entitled to include matters of their concern in the agenda of
all Board meetings. All directors are free to inspect all relevant corporate

information.

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 59 to 61

of this annual report.

Mr. Wei Tingzhan, acting as the chairman and executive director of the

Company is responsible for the operation of the Board.

Mr. Li Jianwen, acting as the general manager and executive director of
the Company is responsible for the Group’s daily business development

and management.

Another two executive directors, Mr. Liu Yuejin and Ms. Li Chunyan are
responsible for the retail operation, and legal and financial affairs of the

Group, respectively.

Each executive director has sufficient experience to hold the position so

as to accomplish his/her duties effectively and efficiently.
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During the Reporting Period, 5 Board meetings were held and the
attendance records of directors (including attendance by proxy and via

telephone conference) are set out below:

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Wei Tingzhan (Chairman) BEELE(EFELR)
Mr. Li Jianwen FENEA

Ms. Li Chunyan EX- 3

Mr. Liu Yuejin PR A
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Gu Hanlin FEEMELE
Mr. Li Shunxiang FIER A
Independent Non-executive Directors BAUFHTES
Mr. Chung Chi Kong SRR A

Mr. Fan Faming SBIERLE

Mr. Huang Jiangming = LREE

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. Wei Tingzhan and Mr. Li Jianwen are the chairman of the Board
and the general manager of the Company, respectively, which are two
clearly defined positions. The chairman is responsible for the operation
of the Board and ensuring the Board works effectively while the general
manager is in charge of the Group’s daily business development and
management. The Company’s Articles of Association sets out the
respective duties and power of the chairman and the general manager

in detail.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee has been established on 29 July 2005 and the
second session of the audit committee was established pursuant to
a resolution passed by the Board on 13 November 2007. Its authority
and responsibility are properly written out in compliance with Rule 3.22
of the Listing Rules. The audit committee provides an important link
between the Board and the external auditors in matters falling within
the scope of the audit of the Company and the Group. It reviews the

effectiveness of the external audit, internal controls and risk evaluation
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and, provides comments and suggestions to the Board. The audit
committee comprises three independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Chung Chi Kong, Mr. Huang Jiangming and Mr. Fan Faming. Mr.
Chung Chi Kong is the chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee held three meetings with all members attended
during the Reporting Period for reviewing the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussing internal controls and
financial reporting matters including a review of the 2007 annual reports,

and the 2008 quarterly and interim results.

The audit committee has reviewed the Group’s 2008 audited annual
results and discussed with the management and the external auditors on
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, internal

control and financial reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established its remuneration committee on 29
July 2005 and the second session of the remuneration committee
was established pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board on 13
November 2007 which comprising three directors, namely Mr. Wei
Tingzhan, Mr. Fan Faming and Mr. Huang Jiangming. Mr. Wei Tingzhan
is the chairman of the remuneration committee. The remuneration
committee is responsible for reviewing and determining the policy of
the remuneration packages of all directors by considering factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitments and
complexity of duties and responsibilities of the directors to ensure

incentives are effectively implemented for all directors.

During the Reporting Period, two meetings were held by the remuneration
committee with all members attended for discussing and considering the
remuneration management system of the Company’s senior management
and the criterion of their performance based salary from 2008 to 2010.
The relevant decisions have been submitted to the Board for consideration

and were approved.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established its nomination committee on 29 July 2005
and the second session of the nomination committee was established

pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board on 13 November 2007
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which comprising three directors, namely Mr. Wei Tingzhan, Mr. Fan
Faming and Mr. Huang Jiangming. Mr. Wei Tingzhan is the chairman
of the nomination committee. The nomination committee is responsible
for nominating potential candidates for directorships, reviewing the
nomination of directors and making recommendations to the Board on

such appointments.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period, the supervisory committee of the Company
comprised Ms. Qu Xinhua, Ms. Wang Shuying, Ms. Yao Jie, Mr. Yang
Baoqun, Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong. Ms. Qu Xinhua
is the chairman of the supervisory committee. The supervisors have
performed their work in a dedicated and diligent manner and carried
out effectively the functions of supervising the legal and regulatory
compliance relating to financial matters and overseeing the directors

and senior management of the Group during their offices.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for considering the
appointment of Messrs. Ernst & Young as the external auditors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2008. For the year ended 31
December 2008, the Company agreed auditing fees of RMB1,800,000
payable to Messrs. Ernst & Young. During the Reporting Period, the
Company has also paid RMB400,000 to Messrs. Ernst & Young for
non-audit services in respect of reviewing the Group’s 2008 interim

financial statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
in compliance with the relevant regulations and applicable accounting

standards.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting

are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 64 to 65.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate system
of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ interest and Group’s assets.
Regular reviews have been conducted by the Board for ensuring the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s internal systems in respect

of financial, operational and risk management areas.

GOING CONCERN

There were no uncertain events or conditions of material nature that
would affect the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern during
the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to establish a long-term relationship with
shareholders and investors, an adherence to the principles of integrity,
regularity, and high transparency, and disclose the required information in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules before the Main Board Migration
and the Listing Rules after the Main Board Migration. Information of the

Group is disseminated to its shareholders in the following manners:

- delivery of results and reports to shareholders;

- publication of announcements on the Stock Exchange websites
and the Company’s website, and issue of shareholders’ circulars
in accordance with the continuing disclosure obligations under the
GEM Listing Rules before the Main Board Migration and the Listing
Rules after the Main Board Migration.; and

- arrange general and extraordinary meetings with shareholders
as an effective communication channel between the Board and

shareholders.
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The Company maintains effective communications with its shareholders,

investors and analysts through, inter alia:

ERRERBERBRATRAT

the Department of Investor Relations of the Company is
responsible for liaison with investors and analysts by answering
their questions;

arranging on-site visits to the retail outlets and logistics centers of
the Group to enhance their timely understanding of the situations

and latest development of the Group’s business operations;

gathering, in a timely manner, opinions and comments from analysts
and investors on the operation of the Group, and selectively

adopting them in the Group’s operation;

making available information on the Company’s website.; and

actively communicating with various parties, in particular, convening
briefing sessions, press conferences and individual meeting with
institutional investors upon the announcement of results and making
decisions on material investments. The Group also participates in
a range of investor activities and communicates on one-on-one

basis with its investors regularly.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EFEWE

The board of directors hereby presents their annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the

Reporting Period.

MAIN BOARD MIGRATION

On 25 September 2006, the Company completed its initial public
offering, with its H shares listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
subsequently migrated to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
26 February 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the retail and wholesale distribution
of daily consumer products in the Greater Beijing Region. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the Reporting Period.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group at 31 December 2008 are set out in the
financial statements on pages 66 to 155.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMB21.0
cents (2007: RMB17.5 cents) per share (tax inclusive) in respect of the
Reporting Period to shareholders on the register of members on the
date of the annual general meeting 2008. This recommendation has
been incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of retained

profits within the equity section of the balance sheet.

Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC” and the “Detailed
Rules for the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the
PRC”, beginning from 1 January 2008, any Chinese domestic enterprise
which pays dividends to a non-resident enterprise shareholder (i.e. legal
person shareholder) in respect of accounting periods beginning from 1
January 2008 shall withhold and pay enterprise income tax for such
shareholder. Since the Company is a H share listed company in Hong
Kong, the proposed 2008 final dividend of RMB21.0 cents per share
(tax inclusive) will be subject to the aforesaid Enterprise Tax Laws.
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In order to properly carry out the withholding and payment of income tax
on dividends to non-resident enterprise shareholders, the Company will
strictly abide by the law and identify those shareholders who are subject
to the withholding and payment of income tax based on the register
of its H shareholders as at the end of 29 April 2009. In respect of all
shareholders whose names appear in the register of H shareholders kept
at Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Company’s
H-Shares Registrar and Transfer Office in Hong Kong as at the end of 29
April 2009 who are not individuals (including HKSCC Nominees Limited,
corporate nominees or trustees, and other entities or organizations that
are all considered as non-resident enterprise shareholders), the Company
will distribute the 2008 final dividends after deducting income tax of 10%.
The 10% income tax will not be deducted from the 2008 final dividends
payable to any natural person shareholders whose names appear in the
register of the Company’s H shareholders kept at Computershare Hong

Kong Investor Services Limited as at the end of 29 April 2009.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years, is set out on page 156 of the

annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Company and the Group during the Reporting Period are
set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the

Reporting Period.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting Period
and up to the date of this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 34(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,

respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution are set out in note 34(b)(ii)

to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings at the balance sheet date are set out

in note 30 to the financial statements.

RE-ISSUE OF UNSECURED SHORT-TERM DEBENTURES

The Company re-issued unsecured short-term debentures to institution
investors in the PRC inter-bank debenture market on 14 July 2008. The
unsecured short-term debentures aggregating RMB370 million were
issued at 100% of their face value and have a term of maturity of one
year. Interest rate of 6.8% per annum is payable at maturity. The issue
has been passed by a special resolution at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 19 May 2008.
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INTEREST CAPITALISED

During the Reporting Period, the interest capitalized amounted to
RMB1,722,000 (2007: RMB25,283,000).

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling RMB733,300 (2007: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 19.4% (2007: 19%) of the total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer accounted for approximately 6.7 %
(2007: 4.8%). Purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 14.3% (2007: 18%) of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately
3.3% (2007: 3.8%) during the Reporting Period.

None of the directors or supervisors of the Company or any of its
associates or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
directors and supervisors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest

customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wei Tingzhan (Chairman)
Mr. Li Jianwen

Ms. Li Chunyan

Mr. Liu Yuejin

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Gu Hanlin
Mr. Li Shunxiang
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Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Fan Faming

Mr. Huang Jiangming

Mr. Chung Chi Kong

Supervisors:

Ms. Qu Xinhua

Ms. Wang Shuying
Ms. Yao Jie

Mr. Yang Baoqun

Mr. Chen Zhong

Ms. Cheng Xianghong

The Company has received the annual confirmations of independence
from each the three independent non-executive directors and is of the

view that they are independent.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors, supervisors and senior management

of the Company are set out on pages 59 to 63 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company entered into employment agreements with each of the
executive directors pursuant to which they have agreed to act as
executive directors for a term of three years with effect from 1 November
2007. Each of the executive directors is entitled to a fixed basic salary,
a performance based salary and other allowance and benefits in kind

under applicable PRC law and regulations.

Each of the non-executive directors entered into an appointment letter
with the Company pursuant to which they have agreed to act as
non-executive directors for a term of three years with effect from

1 November 2007. They do not receive any directors’ fee.

Report of the Board of Directors
EBEERE

BYFHTES
SEERA S A
EHITRREE
BRI E

EE:

BFEL L
EREL L
Lt
BERE
BREBRE
AR

ARAREBA =B FATESTESE BN
FERR  YWHRELAEBLIE -

ESx EEKSREBZABRBAESR

4tk

O EFLAATRABEAEMBERAFR
59HZE63H °

ESREEZREEHN

SRAEFOEAQATCEAGE Bk ®
SEASE-_TTLF+—A-BRLERTE
% ORHISH - SWTHEERURETT S -
BN S AR AR R BA @A RE A Y
BRI -

EFPTEFRARAGT LR TR Bt &
ERABEE-ZTLF+— A RARBRAF=FEH
NETHFATES - REBTERREAEFE

Annual Report 2008  Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited



Report of the Board of Directors

EZegE

Each of the independent non-executive directors entered into an
appointment agreement with the Company pursuant to which they
have agreed to act as independent non-executive directors for a term
of three years with effect from 1 November 2007. The terms of the
appointment agreements of the independent non-executive directors
are identical in all material respects and they are entitled to receive

fixed directors’ fee.

Each of Ms. Qu Xinhua, Ms. Wang Shuying, Ms. Yao Jie, Mr. Yang
Baoqun, Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong entered into
an appointment agreement or letter with the Company pursuant to
which each has agreed to act as supervisor for a term of three years
commenced from 1 November 2007. The terms of the appointment
agreements or letters of the supervisors are identical in all material

respects save that:

i Mr. Yang Baoqun does not receive any supervisor’s fee;

i, each of Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong receives a

fixed supervisor’s fee;

i, each of Ms. Qu Xinhua, Ms. Wang Shuying and Ms. Yao Jie
receives a fixed basic salary, a performance based salary and
other allowance and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law

and regulations.

None of the directors or supervisors had entered into or is proposed
to enter into, any service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION

The directors’ and supervisors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to directors’ and supervisors’ duties, responsibilities,
performance and the results of the Group. The Company has established
a remuneration committee to formulate compensation policies and to
determine and manage the compensation of the Company’s senior
management. Details of the directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration

are disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS

None of the directors and supervisors had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, its controlling shareholder, or any of

its subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS IN ACQUIRING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or its subsidiaries granted to any directors and supervisors or their
respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors and supervisors to acquire such rights in any

other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and positions of the directors,
supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix

10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company KATRERZFE

Approximate Approximate

percentage percentage

Total number of total issued of total

of domestic domestic shares issued shares

Name Capacity shares held HERITRER HE RITHRRE

i g4 FrERERRKRE BRAED BREDL

(%) (%)

Wei Tingzhan Personal 1,417,237 0.62 0.34
w8 A

Li Jianwen Personal 1,354,712 0.59 0.33
FREX EA

Li Chunyan Personal 395,992 0.17 0.10
FEK EUN

Liu Yuejin Personal 375,151 0.16 0.09
2R (EPN

Gu Hanlin Personal 1,417,237 0.62 0.34
FEIZM (EPN

Li Shunxiang Personal 5,210,428 2.26 1.26
ZER (EPN

Yang Baogqun Personal 1,042,086 0.45 0.25
5E & A

Qu Xinhua Personal 833,669 0.36 0.20
R & A

Wang Shuying Personal 375,151 0.16 0.09
FRE EA

Yao Jie Personal 125,051 0.05 0.08
ok iE (EPN

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor any of their associates
had any interest and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 December 2008, so far as is known to the directors, supervisors R-ZZNF+-_A=Z+—H BARAREZTE "
or chief executive of the Company, the persons (other than a director, B EHEZTHAEMA + FTIAT(ERAE
supervisor or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or % * EEEsi = Z1THRA BBRIN R AR B B H
taken to have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares ~ fHBAR (D K EHF - HEA HE AEBRIB(GE
or debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the N HFE &I >%XV*B%2&%3“* BHERNF R
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2~ B R FTH R SRR » SIRIB(EH R EBE &)
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register %3361|¢2,\EEJ\$L\ET% SR msoxs
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO U

were as follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company KARRNERZIEFR
Approximate Approximate
percentage percentage
Total number of total issued of total
of domestic domestic shares issued shares
Name Capacity shares held HERITRER HERITERSE
=t 54 FrERERRE BHAED BABED
(%) (%)
Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Beneficial owner 167,409,808 72.77 40.61

Food Company BERBEEA

ItRmeAGEIR ME AT
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Positions in the H shares of the Company RAERATHEK
Approximate
percentage
Total number of of total issued
H shares held H shares
Name R HEBITHR B E
=1 ERITHRRE BN E DT
(%)
Genesis Asset Managers, 24,227,000 (L) 13.30
LLP (Note 1) (Ff3E1)
JP Morgan Chase & Co. 22,022,000 (L) 12.09
(Note 2) (Hizt2) 22,022,000 (P) 12.09
UOB Asset Management Limited
(“UOB Asset”) (Note 3) (Fff3£3) 19,793,000 (L) 10.87
United Overseas Bank Limited
(“UOB”) (Note 4) (Ffiz¥4) 19,793,000 (L) 10.87
Montpelier Investment Management
LLP (formerly Montpelier Asset
Management Limited)
(Note 5) (Fi7E5) 26,283,000 (L) 14.43
Schroder Investment Management
(Hong Kong) Limited (Note 6) (FfE6) 13,036,000 (L) 7.16
Montpelier Global Funds Limited
— The Montpelier Fund (“Montpelier
Funds”) (note 7) (FzE7) 9,208,000 (L) 5.05
Chelsea Investment LP (note 8) (Mf:8) 11,167,000 (L) 6.13
(L) - Long Position L —wE
(P) - Lending Pool (P) —FIHEEHBRRG

ERFEREXREROERLT —BENEEH

Approximate
percentage

of total issued
shares
EEBITHRRKRA
WA D

(%)

5.88

5.34
5.34

4.80

4.80

6.38

3.16

2.23

2.71



Notes:

1. These 24,227,000 H shares were held by Genesis Asset Managers, LLP in

its capacity as an investment manager.

2. These 22,022,000 H shares were held by JP Morgan Chase & Co. in its

capacity as a custodian corporation/an approved lending agent.

3.  These 19,793,000 H shares were held by UOB Asset in its capacity as an

investment manager.

4. UOB Asset is a subsidiary of UOB and UOB was therefore deemed to have
an interest in the 19,793,000 H shares in which UOB Asset was interested

in.

5. These 26,283,000 H shares were held by Montpelier Investment Management
LLP (formerly Montpelier Asset Management Limited) in its capacity as an

investment manager.

6.  These 13,036,000 H shares were held by Schroder Investment Management

(Hong Kong) Limited in its capacity as an investment manager.

7. These 9,208,000 H shares were held by Montpelier Funds in its capacity

as a beneficial owner.

8. These 11,167,000 H shares were held by Chelsea Investment LP in its

capacity as a beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the directors, supervisors
or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2008, no other
persons (not being a director, supervisor or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS RERERS

During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into the following — $EHIA » RARBET TN NFEBHERS

continuing connected transactions:

2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETT

1. Lease of properties by Chaoyang Auxiliary to HEREREEME(TEET

the Company (not including 15 below)* (note 1) TNt 1538 ) FAQE*(FiFE1) 6,713 6,713
2. Supply of cooked food by Jiazeng ERmEEARD

Foodstuff (note 2) (M3E2) 18,537 20,862
3. Supply of tea leaves by IR RIEHELRE

Beijing Wuyifeng (note 3) (PfF5ES) 5,112 4,160
4. Supply of raw meat By I REEEHREER

Beijing Yingguangda (note 4) (PfF5E4) 8,764 923
5. Provision of interior decoration services RESBERME ARG

by Tianjin Jinganghua (note 5) (PfF5ES) 7,280 2,721

6. Provision of construction, repair and renovation b AR ESERITHIEE - BB

services by Beijing Zhonglianjian (note 6) B RS (Mi3Ee) 605 996
7. Supply of products by Chaopi Flavourings FRLARm A m

(note 7) (MH5E7) 57,282 41,413
8. Supply of products by Chaopi Jinglong (note 8)  ¥A#L & £ fErg & (FI3E8) 33,457 35,677
9. Provision of delivery and logistic services by AR M TR

Chaopi Trading to Chaopi Flavourings (note 9) x5 K Btk R#% (Ff:T9) 11,898 9,827
10. Provision of delivery and logistic services by M ERE TR RERE

Chaopi Trading to Chaopi Jinglong (note 10) N Adax AR 7% (BisE10) 4,762 4,105

11. Lease of properties by Chaoyang Auxiliary to HEEIRMEEMET

Chaopi Trading* (note 11) R E(fIEE11) 945 1,099
12. Lease of properties by Chaoyang Auxiliary to HEEIRMEEMET
Xinyang Tongli* (note 12) fiRi5 @ 7~ (f3E12) 16 16

45 EEEEETEEY U VN Y PEE
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ESRHE
2008 2007
—SENFE | —TTLA
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

13. Provision of loan financing by the Company to  AQ alift FEAL AWK &
Chaopi Flavourings (note 13) B EE (M3E13) 20,000 20,000

14. Provision of loan financing by the Company to  ZNA RIE M F At R &

Chaopi Jinglong (note 14) EREE(HE14) 20,000 20,000
15. Lease of a property by Chaoyang Auxiliary to R-ZEZLFHEEIR M

the Company in 2007* (note 15) HEWETFAAR(MFE15) 1,564 623
16. Lease of a property by Tengyuan Xingye to RIETHEFREEFEERE

the Company in 2007* (note 16) WETARRE] (Wa}m) 2,100 1,575

Also reported as related party transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the * MBI AT XS HEERVEHREMTEI

financial statements

Notes: BsE

1. Pursuant to the lease agreements, the supplemental lease agreements, a 1. BEAAFEIETHTHBRIEREAT([HEER

confirmation letter and a memorandum entered into between the Company mOR_BEENFNA=ZF+HEZ_ZEENFNA+
and Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company (“Chaoyang Auxiliary”) during “HEMAFT /L - MR BREEES
the period from 30 April 2004 to 12 August 2008, Chaoyang Auxiliary has % FABERERREBETYERTERAT(ZE
agreed to lease to the Company certain properties (referred to as the “JKL —EEHFERAZTABNEREE TR ETAON
Properties” on page 110 of the introduction document dated 29 June 2007 4B S ( F’\Z” EWXH]DE0E REEY
in connection with the Main Board Migration (the “Introduction Document”)) 2)) A -_ZTZENE—HF—H  —EERE+
for terms of between 10 years to 20 years commencing on 1 January 2004, A—B &:%%ﬁitﬂ — AR ARtEFE -1
1 July 2005 and 1 July 2006 (as the case may be) with fixed annual rentals FE(RIBEAME)  AHUENERIESIAME)NE
(inclusive of the relevant business and property taxes) for four to six year H(BRIEREASEFR RMER)SHEET - ZHER
periods (as the case may be). The rental is paid in advance on a quarterly REFENFFFERIBRME )RR T AL -

or half-yearly basis (as the case may be).

Chaoyang Auxiliary is the controlling shareholder of the Company which FAGRIR@mARD B HIERRE - HAEAQF D3
owns approximately 40.61% of the issued share capital of the Company 1TREA#)40.61% @ WA AARRBZEHLRAZ— °

and is one of the Company’s promoters.

The aggregate rental was RMB6,713,205 for the year ended 31 December BE_ZEZ N\F+_A=+—HILFEHSBHEL
2008, with a term of increase in rental for each fixed rental period from AR#6,713,205 T B-EZNF—A—HZ—
RMB7,389,460 to RMB8,135,010 per annum during the period from o oF+ At HRZRETHSHEEF
1 January 2009 to 31 December 2023. e B ARE7 389,460TE A K#8,135,0107T °
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All the leased properties (with a total gross area of approximately 86,766
sq.m) are located in the Chaoyang District, Beijing and are principally used
by the Company to operate 14 supermarkets, 27 convenience stores and

the live and fresh produce logistics centre.

Beijing Jiazeng Foodstuff Company Limited (“Jiazeng Foodstuff “) has
been supplying, on a non-exclusive basis, to the Group various types
of cooked food for sale to its customers, pursuant to a supplemental
supply agreement dated 8 August 2006. Mr. Ma Jiazeng (“Mr. Ma”)
holds an equity interest of 59.7% in Beijing Jiazeng Gongmao Company
Limited, which is one of the Company’s promoters holding approximately
0.77% of the issued shares of the Company. Mr. Ma holds an indirect
equity interest of approximately 66.7% in Jiazeng Foodstuff. Jiazeng
Foodstuff is principally engaged in the wholesale distribution of cooked
food. The said supplemental supply agreement has expired by 31
December 2008 and renewed for a term of three years commencing on
1 January 2009 pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 29 December 2008 (the “EGM”).

Under the supply agreement, the consideration payable by the relevant
member of the Group to Jiazeng Foodstuff for the supply of the same
cooked food will not be higher, on the same per unit price basis, than the
consideration paid to it by any other third party and will not be higher than
the then prevailing market prices. The purchase price of cooked food is

settled within one month after its delivery.

Beijing Wuyifeng Tea Leaves Sales Company Limited (“Beijing Wuyifeng”)
has been supplying, on a non-exclusive basis, to the Group various types
of tea leaves for sale to its customers, pursuant to a supply agreement
dated 5 April 2006 between the Company and Beijing Wuyifeng. Beijing
Wuyifeng is owned by Mr. Xia Wensheng (“Mr. Xia"”) as to 80% of its
registered capital and Mr. Xia is one the Company’s promoters holding an
equity interest of approximately 0.50% in the Company. Beijing Wuyifeng
is principally engaged in the wholesale distribution of tea leaves. The said
supply agreement has expired by 31 December 2008 and renewed for a
term of three years commencing on 1 January 2009. Relevant announcement

for the renewal has been made on 27 October 2008.

Under the supply agreement, the consideration payable by the relevant
member of the Group to Beijing Wuyifeng for the supply of the same
tea leaves will not be higher, on the same per unit price basis, than the
consideration paid to it by any other third party and will not be higher than
the then prevailing market prices. The purchase price of tea leaves is settled

within one month after its delivery.
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Beijing Yingguangda Foodstuff Company Limited (“Beijing Yingguangda”)
has been supplying, on a non-exclusive basis, to the Group various types
of raw meat for sale to its customers, pursuant to a supply agreement
dated 3 April 2006 between the Company and Beijing Yingguangda. Mr.
Gao Jiagiang (“Mr. Gao”) is one of the Company’s promoters holding
approximately 0.50% of the issued shares of the Company. Mr. Gao holds
an equity interest of 66.67% in Beijing Yingguangda. Beijing Yingguangda
is principally engaged in the wholesale distribution of raw meat. The said
supply agreement has expired by 31 December 2008 and renewed for a
term of three years commencing on 1 January 2009. Relevant announcement

for the renewal has been made on 27 October 2008.

Under the supply agreement, the consideration payable by the relevant
member of the Group to Beijing Yingguangda for the supply of the same
raw meat will not be higher, on the same per unit price basis, than the
consideration paid to it by any other third party and will not be higher than
the then prevailing market prices. The purchase price of raw meat is settled

within one month after its delivery.

Tianjin Jinganghua Jianzhu Art Decoration Work Company Limited (“Tianjin
Jinganghua”) has been providing interior decoration (including signboard
installation) services to the Group pursuant to a service agreement dated
3 April 2006 between the Company and Tianjin Jinganghua. Tianjin
Jinganghua is one of the Company’s promoters holding approximately
1.26% of the issued shares of the Company. Tianjin Jinganghua is principally
engaged in the provision of interior decoration services. The said service
agreement has expired by 31 December 2008 and renewed for a term of
three years commencing on 1 January 2009. Relevant announcement for

the renewal has been made on 27 October 2008.

Pursuant to the service agreement, the Group has agreed, but at the Group’s
sole discretion and without obligation on its part, to invite Tianjin Jinganghua,
on a non-exclusive basis, to submit quotations for the provision of interior
decoration (including signboard installation) services to the Group. In the
event that the quotation submitted by Tianjin Jinganghua is comparable to
or lower than those given by the other contractors solicited by the Group,
the Group would consider engaging Tianjin Jinganghua to undertake such
services. Furthermore, Tianjin Jinganghua has agreed that the quotation for
service that it may submit to the Group for the provision of interior decoration
services will be comparable to or lower than that it provides to any other
third party and will not be higher than the then prevailing market prices.
The consideration for the provision of the said interior decoration services

is settled within three months after the completion of the said services.
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Beijing Zhonglianjian Construction Company Limited (“Beijing Zhonglianjian”)
has been providing construction, repair and renovation services to the Group
pursuant to a service agreement dated 3 April 2006 between the Company
and Beijing Zhonglianjian. Beijing Zhonglianjian is owned by Mr. Li Shun
Xiang (“Mr. Li") as to 55% of its registered capital. Mr. Li is a non-executive
director of the Company and one the Company’s promoters holding an equity
interest of approximately 1.26% in the Company. Beijing Zhonglianjian is
principally engaged in the provision of construction, repair and renovation
services. The said service agreement has expired by 31 December 2008

and no renewal was made.

Pursuant to the service agreement, the Group has agreed, but at the
Group’s sole discretion and without obligation on its part, to invite Beijing
Zhonglianjian, on a non-exclusive basis, to submit quotations for the provision
of construction, repair and renovation services to the Group. In the event
that the quotation submitted by Beijing Zhonglianjian is comparable to or
lower than those given by the other contractors solicited by the Group,
the Group would consider engaging Beijing Zhonglianjian to undertake
such services. Furthermore, Beijing Zhonglianjian has agreed that the
quotations for services that it may submit to the Group for the provision
of construction, repair and renovation services will be comparable to or
lower than that it provided to any other third party and will not be higher
than the then prevailing market prices. 95% of the consideration is settled
after the completion of the said services and the remaining 5% is paid until

satisfaction of all the conditions of such services.

Beijing Chaopi Flavourings Company Limited (“Chaopi Flavourings”) has
been supplying, on a non-exclusive basis, to the Group various types of
flavourings, grains, flour, edible oil products and other food stuff for sale to
its customers pursuant to a supply agreement dated 3 April 2006 between
the Company and Chaopi Flavourings. Mr. Li Jun Wei is a director of each of
Chaopi Flavourings and Beijing Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales Company Limited
(“Chaopi Jinglong”) and holds approximately 30.84%, 31.78% and 0.82% of
the equity in Chaopi Flavourings, Chaopi Jinglong and Beijing Chaopi Trading
Company Limited (“Chaopi Trading”), respectively. Chaopi Flavourings and
Chaopi Jinglong are held as to 52.63% and 54.23% respectively by Chaopi
Trading, which is held as to 79.85% by the Company. Hence, both Chaopi
Flavourings and Chaopi Jinglong are connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Chaopi Flavourings is principally engaged in the
wholesale distribution of flavourings, edible oil and food. The said supply
agreement has expired by 31 December 2008 and renewed for a term
of three years commencing on 1 January 2009 pursuant to the ordinary

resolution passed at the EGM.
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10.

Under the supply agreement, the consideration payable by the relevant
member of the Group to Chaopi Flavourings for the supply of the same
products will not be higher, on the same per unit price basis, than the
consideration paid to it by any other third party and will not be higher than
the then prevailing market prices. The purchase price is settled within one

month after its delivery.

Chaopi Jinglong has been supplying, on a non-exclusive basis, to the
Group various types of edible oil products and other food stuff for sale to
its customers pursuant to a supply agreement dated 3 April 2006 between
the Company and Chaopi Jinglong. Chaopi Jinglong is principally engaged
in the wholesale distribution of edible oil. The said supply agreement has
expired by 31 December 2008 and renewed for a term of three years
commencing on 1 January 2009 pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed
at the EGM.

Under the supply agreement, the consideration payable by the relevant
member of the Group to Chaopi Jinglong for the supply of the same
products will not be higher, on the same per unit price basis, than the
consideration paid to it by any other third party and will not be higher than
the then prevailing market prices. The purchase price is settled within one

month after its delivery.

Chaopi Trading has been providing delivery and logistic services to Chaopi
Flavourings for the delivery of products to both the Group and other third
party customers pursuant to a service agreement dated 3 April 2006 between
Chaopi Trading and Chaopi Flavourings. The said service agreement has
expired by 31 December 2008 and renewed for a term of three years
commencing on 1 January 2009 pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed
at the EGM.

Under the service agreement, the consideration payable by Chaopi
Flavourings to the Group for the provision of such delivery services will not
be less than (i) the prevailing market fees, and (ii) the consideration charged
by the Group for the provision of similar services to any other party. The
consideration for the provision of the said delivery and logistic services is

settled on a monthly basis.

Chaopi Trading has been providing delivery and logistic services to Chaopi
Jinglong for the delivery of products to both the Group and other third
party customers pursuant to a service agreement dated 3 April 2006
between Chaopi Trading and Chaopi Jinglong. The said service agreement
has expired by 31 December 2008 and renewed for a term of three years
commencing on 1 January 2009 pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed
at the EGM.
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Under the service agreement, the consideration payable by Chaopi Jinglong
to the Group for the provision of such delivery services will not be less than
(i) the prevailing market fees, and (i) the consideration charged by the Group
for the provision of similar services to any other party. The consideration
for the provision of the said delivery and logistics services is settled on a

monthly basis.

Pursuant to the lease agreement dated 30 April 2004 and a supplemental
lease agreement dated 25 July 2005 entered into between Chaoyang
Auxiliary and Chaopi Trading, Chaoyang Auxiliary has agreed to lease to
Chaopi Trading certain properties (referred to as the “Chaopi Properties” on
page 122 of the Introduction Document) for a term of 20 years commencing
on 1 January 2004 with a fixed annual rental (inclusive of the relevant
business and property taxes) for each five year period. On 28 August 2007,
Chaoyang Auxiliary and Chaopi Trading entered into another supplemental
lease agreement for ceasing to rent the property numbered 106 on page
374 of the Introduction Document from 1 July 2007.

The aggregate rental was RMB945,265 for the year ended 31 December
2008, with a term of increase in rental for each fixed rental period from
RMB984,689 to RMB 1,069,546 per annum during the period from 1 January
2009 to 31 December 2023.

All the leased properties are located in the Chaoyang District, Beijing for
office and warehouse uses with a total gross area of approximately 12,271

sq.m.

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 1 July 2004 and a supplemental
lease agreement dated 25 July 2005 entered into between Chaoyang
Auxiliary and Beijing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Facilities Company Limited
(“Xinyang Tongli”), Chaoyang Auxiliary has agreed to lease to Xinyang Tongli
certain property (referred to as the “Xinyang Property” on page 123 of the
Introduction Document) for a term of 20 years commencing on 1 January
2004 with a fixed annual rental (inclusive of the relevant business and

property taxes) for each five years period.

Xinyang Tongli is an approximately 52.03% held subsidiary of the Company
and is principally engaged in the production of plastic packaging materials

and installation and maintenance of commercial equipment.

The aggregate rental was RMB16,257 for the year ended 31 December
2008, with a term of increase in rental for each fixed rental period from
RMB16,931 to RMB18,383 per annum during the period from 1 January
2009 to 31 December 2023.
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13.

14.

18.

The leased property is located in the Chaoyang District, Beijing for
commercial, office, warehouse and industrial uses, with a total gross area

of approximately 1,362 sg.m.

The Company has been providing loan financing to Chaopi Flavourings as
working capital requirement through certain designated loan arrangement
with Bank of Beijing. Based on such designated loan arrangement, the
Company deposited a cash amount with Bank of Beijing, and Chaopi
Flavourings received a loan from the said bank in the same amount as the
deposit of the Company to be repaid by the end of the relevant 12-month
period. Chaopi Flavourings paid an annual handling charge to the said
bank and was solely responsible for the repayment to the Company of
loan and related interest charged at the then prevailing bank lending rate.
Such designated loan arrangement is a common form of lending between
companies in the PRC and complies with the relevant PRC laws and
regulations. The loan granted to Chaopi Flavourings by the Company in 2008

was RMB20 million charged at an interest rate of 7.29% per annum.

On 27 October 2008, the Company and Chaopi Flavourings entered into a
designated loan agreement of which the Company has agreed to provide
financing to Chaopi Flavourings through designated loan arrangement for
a term of three years commencing on 1 January 2009 and was passed by

the ordinary resolution at the EGM.

The Company has been providing loan financing to Chaopi Jinglong as
working capital requirement through certain designated loan arrangement
with Bank of Beijing in the same manner as referred to in note 13. The loan
granted to Chaopi Jinglong by the Company in 2008 was RMB20 million

charged at an interest rate of 7.29% per annum.

On 27 October 2008, the Company and Chaopi Jinglong entered into a
designated loan agreement of which the Company has agreed to provide
financing to Chaopi Jinglong through designated loan arrangement for a term
of three years commencing on 1 January 2009 and relevant announcement

has been made on the same date.

Pursuant to the lease agreement dated 15 November 2007 entered into
between the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary, Chaoyang Auxiliary has
agreed to lease to the Company a property for a term of 16 years and 9
months commencing on 1 April 2007. The rental was RMB1,563,793 for
the year ended 31 December 2008, with a term of increase in rental for
each fixed rental period from RMB1,895,690 to RMB2,120,564 per annum
during the period from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2023. The rental

is payable in advance on a half-yearly basis.
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The leased property is located in the Chaoyang District, Beijing with a total
gross area of approximately 6,800 sg.m. and is principally used by the

Company to operate a hypermarket.

16. Pursuant to the lease agreement dated 2 July 2007 entered into between
the Company and Beijing Tengyuan Xingye Automobile Service Company
Limited (“Tengyuan Xingye”), a subsidiary of Chaoyang Auxiliary, Tengyuan
Xingye has agreed to lease to the Company a property for a term of 15
years commencing on 1 April 2007. The rental was RMB2,100,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2008, with a term of increase in rental for each
fixed rental period from RMB2,100,000 to RMB2,425,500 per annum during
the period from 1 January 2009 to 31 March 2022. The rental is payable

in advance on a half-yearly basis.

The leased property is located in the Chaoyang District, Beijing with a total
gross area of approximately 7,300 sg.m. and is principally used by the

Company as office, staff canteen and quarter.

A waiver has been granted by the Stock Exchange with respect to the transactions
of 1,3, 5,6 and 10 to 12 from the announcement requirement, and the transactions
of 2, 4, 7 to 9 and 13 to 14 from both the announcement requirement and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements during the initial public offering
of the Company’s H shares and the Main Board Migration. With respect to the
transactions of 15 and 16, the lease agreements were entered into before the
Main Board Migration and have complied with the requirements in accordance
with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) have
reviewed all the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed

that the continuing connected transactions have been entered into:

a. in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

b.  onnormal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable to the Group than those available to

or from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and

c. in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Board has received a letter from the external auditors in relation
to the agreed upon procedures performed on the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that these continuing connected

transactions:

a. have been approved by the Board;

b. are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group in respect
of items 7, 8, 9 and 10;

c. have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the

respective agreements governing the transactions; and

d. items 1 to 14 have not exceeded their respective annual caps as

disclosed in the Introduction Document.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules before the Main
Board Migration and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules after the Main
Board Migration.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and within the knowledge of the directors,
the Company’s public float complied with the applicable requirements of
the GEM Listing Rules before the Main Board Migration and the Listing
Rules after the Main Board Migration from 1 January 2008 and up to
the date of this report.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None of the directors, supervisors or the controlling shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates had engaged in any
business that competed or might compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group, or had any other conflict of interests

with the Group during the Reporting Period.
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Report of the Board of Directors

EZegs

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young, who retired
and being eligible for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting

for their re-appointment.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Wei Tingzhan

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
27 March 2009
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Report of the Supervisory Committee
EEGRE

To the shareholders,

Since the incorporation of the Company, the supervisory committee of
the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) adheres to principles of
honesty and integrity in discharging its supervisory duties and obligations
cautiously and diligently in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, the relevant laws and requirements of the PRC and Hong

Kong for their accountability to the shareholders and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the major work performed by the Supervisory
Committee included the attendance of Board meetings; inspection
of resolutions made by the Board, reviewed internal control system,
reviewed the use of proceeds from the initial public offer/placement,
strictly and effectively monitored whether the policies and decisions
made by the management of the Company had confirmed with the
relevant laws and regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association
and safeguarded the interest of the Company and shareholders. The
Supervisory Committee has also reviewed the performance of the
directors and senior management in the daily operation by various means,
examined the Group’s financial affairs and connected transactions. As a

result of our work, the Supervisory Committee concluded that:

1. Decision-making process of the Company is in compliance with
the Company’s Articles of Association. Proper and adequate
internal control system has been established. The directors and
senior management observed their fiduciary duties and worked
diligently and legally. The Supervisory Committee is not aware the
directors and senior management of the Company acted in breach
of the relevant laws and regulations and the Company’s Articles of

Association or against the interests of shareholders.

2. The Company’s 2008 financial statements reflected a true and fair
view of the financial position and operating results of the Group in
material aspects. The unqualified opinion expressed in the auditors’

report issued by Ernst & Young is objective and fair.

3. All continuing connected transactions conducted in the Reporting
Period between the Group and its connected persons were in the
ordinary course of business and have not discovered any act that

prejudiced the interests of the Company and shareholders.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee
EEaRs

4.  The Group did not encounter any major litigation during the 4. $REHIAANEEETRERFA ©
Reporting Period.

5. We did not find the application of the proceeds from the Company’s 5. $REHARBIEARNNF G X7,/ EERE
78 b

initial public offering/placement was not in accordance with the FrSRIBARILZRETE T LAERA -
plan.

We would like to express our appreciation to the strenuous supports ~ RIFIYHREHAME - EEREERETHAES
given by the shareholders, directors and all staff to the work of the ~ GHIARNZH - FRHE -

Supervisory Committee during the Reporting Period.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE EEEEm

Qu Xinhua JEETE

Chairman EEeTE

Beijing, PRC f B4 I

27 March 2009 —ETERAF=A-++tH
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

£%  EERSHEERASHEALGH

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Tingzhan, aged 55, is the Chairman of the Company and
an executive director. He was elected as a representative of the 12th
Beijing People’s Congress. From 1991 to 1994 and 1999 to 2004,
he was the general manager of Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Company
Limited (“Chaoyang Auxiliary”). From 1994 to 2002, he was the general
manager of Beijing Jingkelong Shang Sha (“Jingkelong Shang Sha”), the
predecessor of Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Group Company
Limited (“Jingkelong Supermarket”). He was the managing director of
Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since November 2004, he
has been the Chairman of the Board. In December 2008, Mr. Wei was
granted the title of “outstanding figure of Chinese commerce & service
industry during the 30 years of reform and opening-up” (“/ Bl 3 AR
EENERM=TFAEEMAY”) by the China General Chamber of
Commerce and China Business Herald.

Mr. Li Jianwen, aged 48, is the General Manager of the Company and
an executive director. He also worked in Jingkelong Shang Sha as the
deputy general manager from 1998 to 2002. From 2002 to 2004, he was
a director and the deputy general manager of Jingkelong Supermarket

He has been the managing director of the Company since 2004.

Ms. Li Chunyan, aged 36, is an executive director. Ms. Li obtained
bachelor’s degree and master’s degree in Private International Law from
China University of Politics & Law. She was the Officer of the Bureau
of Law of Jingkelong Shang Sha from 2001 to 2002. In addition, she
was the Officer of the Bureau of Law and the Secretary to the board of
directors of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since November
2004, she has been one of the executive directors and the Secretary to
the Board. She has been appointed as the Company’s Chief Financial

Officer and deputy general manager since 29 December 2008.
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
EE -ESRaREEABNEAER

Mr. Liu Yuejin, aged 49, is an executive director. From 2000 to 2004,
he was the general manager of Beijing Jingkelong (Langfang) Company
Limited. Between 2002 and 2004, he was one of the directors of
Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004, he has been an
executive director. During part of 2005 and 2006, he was the manager
of the First Operation Division of the Company. Since September 20086,
he has been the head of the Jiuxiangiao Community Shopping Centre
coordination team. Since commencement of business of the Jiuxiangiao
Community Shopping Centre in November 2007, he has been the
manager of this Shopping Centre. He has been the manager of Shopping
Centre Operation Division since November 2008.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gu Hanlin, aged 56, is a non-executive director. From 2002 to 2004,
he was a chairman of the Board of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since May
2004, he has been the manager of Chaoyang Aukxiliary. Since November

2004, he has been a non-executive director.

Mr. Li Shunxiang, aged 56, is a non-executive executive director. From
2000 to present, he is the general manager of Beijing Zhonglianjian
Construction Company Limited. From 2002 to 2004, he was a non-
executive director of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004,

he has been a non-executive director.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Fan Faming, aged 55, is an independent non-executive executive
director. Mr. Fan obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration
from Monash University, Australia and a doctorate degree from Central
South University of Technology. He is currently a professor at the Institute
of Finance and Commerce Management Beijing and a visiting professor
at Asia International Open University (Macau). He is also a senior member
of Hong Kong Quality Management Association. Since January 2005,

he has been an independent non-executive director.
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Mr. Huang Jiangming, aged 45, is an independent non-executive
executive director. Mr. Huang obtained a master’s degree in Economics
from Renmin University of China and a PhD in Commercial Science from
Kobe University respectively. He is currently a professor at the School
of Business, Renmin University of China. Since January 2005, he has

been an independent non-executive director.

Mr. Chung Chi Kong, aged 38, is an independent non-executive
executive director. Mr. Chung is also the chairman of the Company’s
audit committee. He is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over nine years audit experience in international
accounting firms and two years accounting experience. He is currently
a director of Ascension Financial Services Group Limited and Ascension
(Beijing) Financial Advisory Company Limited. Since July 2005, he has

been an independent non-executive director.

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Qu Xinhua, aged 55, is a supervisor of the Company. From 2002 to
2004, she was the deputy general manager of Jingkelong Supermarket.
Since November 2004, she has been a supervisor of the Company.
Since November 2007, she has been the chairman of the Company’s

committee of supervisors.

Mr. Yang Baoqun, aged 56, is a supervisor of the Company. He was
a supervisor of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since

November 2004, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Chen Zhong, aged 45, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr. Chen
obtained doctorate from Peking University. He is a professor in the
School of Software and Microelectronics at the Peking University. He
has been the Dean of the School of Software of the Peking University
since June 2002. Since January 2005, he has been a supervisor of the

Company.
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
EE -ESRaREEABNEAER

Ms. Cheng Xianghong, aged 37, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms.
Cheng obtained her bachelor degree from Renmin University of China.
She is a qualified accountant, certified public valuer and registered tax
agent. She has previously worked in Beijing Ding Xin Li accounting firm.
She has been the deputy general manager and financial controller of
Beijing Zhongguancun City Construction Company since December 2003.

Since January 2005, she has been a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Wang Shuying, aged 53, is a supervisor of the Company. From
2003 to 2004, she was a manager of the Third Operation Division of
Jingkelong Supermarket. She was a supervisor of Jingkelong Supermarket
from 2003 to October 2004. During part of 2005 and 2006, she was
the manager of the Third Operation Division of the Company. From
September 2006 to February 2007, she was the manager of the First
Operation Division of the Company. Since February 2007, she has been
the general manager of Shou Lian. Since February 2006, she has been

a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Yao Jie, aged 46, is a supervisor of the Company. From 2002 to
2004, she was the deputy manager of the Human Resources Department
of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004, she has been the
deputy manager of the Human Resources Department of the Company.

Since November 2007, she has been a supervisor of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chen Limin, aged 60, was the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
during the period from November 2004 to 29 December 2008. She was
the deputy general manager of Jingkelong Shang Sha from 1994 to
2002. She worked as a director of Jingkelong Supermarket from May
2002 to November 2004.

Mr. Gao Jingsheng, aged 54, from 2002 to 2004, Mr. Gao was the
assistant general manager of Jingkelong Supermarket. From 1999 to
2002, he was the assistant general manager of Chaoyang Auxiliary.
From 1998 to 1999, he was the assistant general manager of Jingkelong
Shang Sha. He has been the assistant general manager of the Company

since November 2004.
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Mr. Zhao Weili, aged 56, from 2002 to 2004, Mr. Zhao was the assistant
general manager of Jingkelong Supermarket. From 1990 to 2002, he
was the assistant general manager of Chaoyang Auxiliary. From 1998
to 1999, he was the assistant general manager of Jingkelong Shang
Sha. He has been the assistant general manager of the Company since
November 2004.

Mr. Keung Siu Fai, aged 50, is the financial controller, the qualified
accountant and one of the joint company secretaries of the Company.
Prior to joining the Company in February 2005, Mr. Keung was the
company secretary of Kong Sun Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company. He has over 13 years of working experience with international
accountant firms in accounting, auditing and financial services. He
obtained his master’s degree in Commerce from the University of New
South Wales and a bachelor’s degree in Science from the University of
London. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants and a member of Certified Public Accountants Australia.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BN 1% B AR

Ernst & Young
18th Floor

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=7 ik

8 Finance Street, Central
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

To the shareholders of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited
(A joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China)

We have audited the financial statements of Beijing Jingkelong Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
set out on pages 66 to 155, which comprise the consolidated and
Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether

the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 March 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

iRk

Year ended 31 December 2008

BE—FE/\F+_A=1—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARET R AREFTT
REVENUE PN 5 6,694,357 5,640,599
Cost of sales SHE KA (5,759,521) (4,918,762)
Gross profit EF 934,836 721,837
Other income and gains E U A R U e 5 345,568 242,961
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ko SH A (680,336) (521,598)
Administrative expenses TTERAX (195,360) (137,008)
Other expenses HEMfAx (33,333) (23,493)
Finance costs B AR 6 (91,100) (27,397)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates SEE A R ERF, (EiE) (11) 4
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AR R 7 280,264 255,306
Tax TIE 10 (76,581) (86,434)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F B F 203,683 168,872
Attributable to: FEAS -
Equity holders of the parent AR AFER A 156,758 124,593
Minority interests DERE RS 46,925 44,279
203,683 168,872
DIVIDENDS - Proposed final BOR R B — K Hf 12 86,566 72,139
Dividend per share (RMB) BRRE(ARE) 12 21.0 cents 17.5 cents
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE R ATAEEREZEEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EhERER
OF THE PARENT
Basic (RMB) ER(ARE) 13 38.0 cents 31.9 cents

—ERN\EER




Consolidated Balance Sheet

aHEERAERX

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Lease prepayments for land use rights
Interests in associates
Available-for-sale investments
Intangible assets

Other long term lease prepayments

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Available-for-sale investments

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Loan receivable

Investment deposit

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and bills payables
Debentures
Tax payable
Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings
Deferred income — current portion

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

FRBEE

ME - BER&E
REME

T AR E TR
(L d=NGIl 3
AHIHERARE

B EE

Hitp R EABE AR

FERBEERET

RBEE

A HIHERARE
FE

& AR K
BNF - BEMEE
& AR 3K
JEWE K

BRETFK
EHEMER
RERIREEFEY

mBEERE

REBAE
RNRAERE

&5
eI IR

Hi B AR TARE A
K BERITER K

H a5
EEWAN — A

MEN B EER
RBEE(BE)FE
REERRBRE

Notes

B aE

19
23

24
25

26
26

27
28

29

30
31

31 December 2008

R-FENF+ZA=1+—H

2008
—2ENF
RMB’000
AR%TF T

1,528,479
7,783
74,549

1,085
8,583
67,434
1,687,913
50,000
710,080
970,086

272,700
50,000

30,387
543,028

2,626,281
798,976
370,000

72,510
497,779

1,008,513
267

2,748,045

(121,764)

1,566,149

2007
—TTLF
RMB’000
ARETIT

1,296,834
8,240
76,462
202
53,680
7,964
20,299

1,463,681

599,550
743,006

197,610
50,000
100,000
19,414
501,940

2,211,520
816,795
370,000

60,006
328,472

577,462
267

2,163,002

58,518

1,622,199




Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued) 31 December 2008

aHtEEAERAE) R-ZEEN\F+=F=1+—H
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AREBT R AREFTT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,566,149 1,522,199
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank and Mt BERITE
other borrowings NEMER 30 56,000 100,375
Deferred income FEFEUT A 31 2,932 3,199
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEE & 32 11,601 12,333
Other long term payable E b RHEB R 7,000 =
Total non-current liabilities JEmEN B B 77,533 115,907
Net assets REE 1,488,616 1,406,292
EQUITY BBz
Equity attributable to equity BRATARAEEFEA
holders of the parent FE(R PR FE
Issued capital BEITIRAR 33 412,220 412,220
Reserves R 34 826,233 758,636
Proposed final dividend R R ERRE B 12 86,566 72,139
1,325,019 1,242,995
Minority interests DY R RELS 163,597 163,297
Total equity A4 E 1,488,616 1,406,292
Wei Ting Zhan Li Chun Yan
HEE FHE&
Director Director
EFE 2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity e

N/ Qe N\ /oy 2 _ZE)| —HA=+—H1i
AL b 1; o~ ,2.‘&,% @J % & FEFr-A=+—HILFE
Attributable to equity holders of the parent
BRARAHEAERL
Available-
for-sale
investment
revaluation  Statutory  Proposed
Issued Share reserve  surplus final Minority
coptel  premum  Capital  FEEE  resenve  dividend  Retained interests Total
BET  accont reseve RARE  ERES BE  profts Tota  DHEEE  equty
A REGEE AfBE  EREERE  0Be  AERE  RERT gt Ba  ER
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RWMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ME  AR%Tn ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
(note 34(o))
(BifzEa4 b))
As at 1 January 2007 R-EZ+F-F-H 384,620 442,230 5,121 2,749 43,049 57,693 49511 984973 89,672 1,074,645
Change in fair value of AHERRRE
avallable-for-sale investments A% BEZE - - - 581 - - - 581 - 581
Totalincome and expense  RIREPEERA
recognised directly in equity  ZMABZ LR - - - 581 - - - 581 - 581
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - 124503 124593 44279 168872
Totalincome and expense EEWAE
for the year i - - - 581 - - 124593 125174 44279 169,453
2006 dividend declared SE-E5 EERS = = = - - (b7,69) - (67,6%) - (67,69
Dividends paid to minorty BRI D ERERAA
equity holders )% - - - - - - - - (1553 (21,559)
Issue of H shares REXTHR
upon placement 33(a) 21,600 167,701 - - - - - 195,301 - 195301
Share issue expenses kh%0ER - (4760) - - - - - [4760) - [4760)
Cash contributions from DEREREA
minortty equity holders BERA - - - - - - - - 52604 52604
Acquisition of minority interests WD SRR ER - - - - - - - - (1708 (1,709)
Appropriation to statutory BiEEESLRS
surplus reserve - - - - 15155 - (15,159) - - -
Proposed final 2007 dividend ~ 8E=ST R BRE 12 - - - - - 72139 (72,139) - - -
As at 31 December 2007 RZZELE
+-A=t-H 412220 605,171 5121 33300 58,204 72139 86,810" 1242995 163297 1,406,292
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued) Year ended 31 December 2008
aOtERBER(E) BE=—EE\FF+=H=1—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

BRARARE AR
Available-
for-sale
investment
revaluation  Statutory  Proposed
Issued Share reserve surplus final Minority
capitl  premium  Captl ~ WHEE  reseve  dividend  Retained interests Total

B%7  account  reseve BARE  EEEs# i profits Totd  HEBR equity

Bx  BAEERE EAGE  ERBE 0 0RE  REBE  REMA g Bi  Emf

Notes RVMB0O0  RMB0O0  RMB0OO  RMB0O0  RMB00  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMBI00O
W& ARETT ARMTr ARETT ARETr ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETI ARETT ARETR

(note 34(o)()
(i34 o)

As at 1 January 2008 R-%%5\E-A-A 412200 605,171 5121 3,330 58,204 72139 86810 1,2429% 163297 1,406,292
Change n far value of AEHERARE

avalable-for-sae investments MRS - - - (2,5%) - - - (259) - (2.595)
Total income and expense WRERERED

recogrised directly in equity WAES e - - - (2,5%) - - - (259) - (2.595)
Pt for e year EEEH - - - - - -G T8 495 B6R
Totalincome and expense ERWAES I 5

for the year - - - (2.5%) - - 166,758 164,163 4692 201,088
07 dvidend decled SH-RRLERRS - - - - B Ak Ak Ak
Dividends paid to minorty BROEREREA

equity holders 7k - - - - - - - - P ey
Cash contbutions from minorty ~~ HEIREREARSHA

equity holders - - - - - - - - 28,865 28,865
Aoquiston of minorty inferests WS HREER - - - - - - - - (516 (516)
Appropriaton to Statutory BRSNS

SUplUs reserve - - - - 21483 - (21483) - - -
Proposed final 2008 dhidend RE-5%)\Fxdke 12 - - - - - 86,566 (86,560) - - -
As at 31 December 2008 R-EEN\E+-A=1-H 42220 605,171 5121* 735" 79,687 86560  135519° 1,325,019 163997 1,488,616

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERBIRBESAHRBHEZEAREK
RMB826,233,000 (2007: RMB 758,636,000) in the consolidated balance 826,233,000t ( —EZE+F : A K #758,636,000
sheet. TC)BSREHEERERSF -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AR TRER

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Amortisation of intangible assets
Gain on liquidation of associates
Recognition of lease prepayments
for land use rights
Share of (profits)/losses of associates
(Gains)/losses on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment, net
Depreciation
Impairment loss on items of property,
plant and equipment
Reversal of impairment of
trade and other receivables
Write-off of inventories
Write-down of inventories to
net realisable value
Recognition of deferred income
Excess over the cost of acquisition
of minority interests

Increase in inventories
Increase in trade receivables
Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Increase in other long term
lease prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in trade and
bills payables
Increase/(decrease) in other payables
and accruals
Increase in other long term payables

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
PRC corporate income tax paid

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities

REKEEDNRSRE

Bt A A

AT I
BB

MEUA

B EERH
EEHE N R
R fE AERE
SENEN

DIEMERE CRH) EER

BREME - WER&RE
(zd) ERFE
e

W% - BB k&R

R (EEIE

TR TR R % A P MR IR
ZRME R

IR E

ZIHFEER#RFE

PR E UL A
fEm R D B R S
A2 28

7 5 0
R R 32
B3 - e REf
e

St 5 TR E N

FERT BRI R R EHE 0, OFL )

Hip e R IR M TR ®& A

g, ORd)

Hofth 5= HARE A SRIRIE AN
KREEENRE
ENHE
ENFEERMAEH
BREEHIRERA

(i ) 58

Notes

B aE

a~N oo

~

Year ended 31 December 2008
BE=FE/\F+-A=+—HUFE

2008
—2BNF
RMB’000
AR%TF

280,264
91,100
(22,921)
1,937

(158)

1,913
11

366
121,679

(1,430)

(267)
(4,667)
467,827

(110,530)
(225,038)

(75,622)
(47,135)
(17,819)
105,804

7,000
104,487

(67,566)
(64,809)

(27,888)

2007
e
RMB’000
ARETIT

347,481

(104,530)
(261,584)

(27,718)
(9,565)
215,174

(85,942)

123,316
(31,722)
(76,875)

14,719




Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Purchase of items of property,
plant and equipment
Purchase of lease prepayments
for land use rights
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of items
of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of minority interests
Increase in pledged time deposits
Decrease in non-pledged time deposits
with original maturity of more than three
months when acquired
Increase in loan receivable
Decrease/(increase) in investment deposit
Purchase of an available-for-sale
investment
Cash received from liquidation
of associates

Net cash outflow from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issue of H shares
Cash contributions from

minority equity holders
Proceeds from issue of debentures
Repayment of debentures
New bank loans and other borrowings
Repayment of bank loans and

other borrowings
Dividends paid
Dividends paid to minority equity holders

Net cash inflow from financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

Note
Bt aE

RETHRERN
Rt ) 88

REREEEBZ
BEng

RGNS
BEYE BEKERE

AL AR ETAN K

BEEVEE

BREME - BE &R
FS#0R

Yo b D B SR A 2R
B3 R BTF SRIE N
ESERESHAER
=& A A £z RIEH
TE BT 5RO0R A

JE W & R4S AN

BEFTORD,/(4h0)

BEAIHE
AR E

BEBZENRME
IR

REEBRIR L FHE

REMEEE 2
REng
BITHIR TS TR H 8
DEBRBSRA

BITESPIIS IR
BEEFHR
FIBIRITE SR R E A& R
ERRITERREMER

BT AR AL

ENIBEBEERSEARE
BMERHZREMAFR
RERFSEEWEM

(B2 ) HHE
FORERREEEY

FRESRAEEEY
26

Year enaed 37 December 2008
BE=FE/\F+-A=+—HIFE

2008 2007
—BBN\FE | —TELE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETIT
(27,888) 14,719
22,921 9,691
(357,236) (355,155)
- (5,110)
(2,556) (6,789)
1,306 1,753
(849) (1,705)
(10,973) (2,495)

- 301,401
- (50,000)
100,000 (100,000)
- (50,000)

269 -
(247,118) (258,409)

- 190,541

28,865 52,604
370,000 370,000
(370,000) -
1,439,138 559,712
(1,052,462) (888,271)
(72,139) (57,693)
(27,308) (21,559)
316,094 205,340
41,088 (38,350)
501,940 540,290
543,028 501,940




Balance Sheet

31 December 2008
REBENFL+=HA=1—H

SR = ==
BEBABER
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE ARETT AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment e ] 14 1,348,383 1,151,732
Investment properties A 15 7,783 8,240
Lease prepayments for land use rights T fE AR ETE TR 16 74,549 76,462
Interests in subsidiaries R RpES NG 17 476,233 514,258
Available-for-sale investments A E R AR E 19 - 50,000
Intangible assets B EE 20 4,756 3,017
Other long term lease prepayments HE REABEETE R 21 43,195 =
Total non-current assets IEREE EMER 1,954,899 1,803,709
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Available-for-sale investments Al E R AR E 19 50,000 =
Inventories FE 22 248,068 210,721
Trade receivables JEUBR X 23 354,302 190,234
Prepayments, deposits and AR BE Rk
other receivables HL A & I B K 24 41,869 60,300
Loan receivable W E X 25 50,000 50,000
Investment deposit BEGFER - 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents e RIAEEEY 26 319,261 295,698
Total current assets MmN EEEG 1,063,500 906,953
CURRENT LIABILITIES i A=K
Trade and bills payables FEER R R & 27 406,373 406,217
Debentures & 28 370,000 370,000
Tax payable FEGRTE R 25,097 15,930
Other payables and accruals HAb A R R TEIRE A 29 395,306 266,160
Interest-bearing bank and Fit BERITE K
other borrowings R EAb{EFR 30 444,375 362,750
Deferred income — current portion EEWAN — R ERE 31 267 267
Total current liabilities mE A BT 1,641,418 1,421,324
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEEFEE (577,918) (514,371)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BHEERRSERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,376,981 1,289,338
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Balance Sheet (Continued)

EESERE)

37 December 2008
RE-ZBENF+ZHA=1+—H

2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARET T AREFIT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BwEERRBARS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,376,981 1,289,338
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kFRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and M BERTTIE AR R ELAD 1R
other borrowings 30 56,000 100,375
Deferred income FEFEUT A 31 2,932 3,199
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFITBAE 32 11,601 12,333
Other long term payables E b RHEB R 6,000 =
Total non-current liabilities EREN B EEET 76,533 115,907
Net assets FEE 1,300,448 1,173,431
EQUITY (e
Issued capital BEITIRA 33 412,220 412,220
Reserves & 34 801,662 689,072
Proposed final dividend PR AR HAIE S 12 86,566 72,139
Total equity A4 E 1,300,448 1,173,431
Wei Ting Zhan Li Chun Yan
BHER ZHK
Director Director
BFE 2
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 R 5% BT

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

The registered office of the Company is located at 45 Xinyuan
Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC. The principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong is located at 20th Floor,
Alexandra House, 16-20 Chater Road, Hong Kong.

The Group is principally engaged in the retail and wholesale
distribution of daily consumer products in the region covering
Beijing city and certain parts of its periphery. The details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the

financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the controlling shareholder of the
Company is Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company (“Chaoyang

Auxiliary”), a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except
for the equity investments, which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when

otherwise indicated.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB121,764,000. Based on the Group’s history of obtaining
financing, available banking facilities, operating performance,
working capital forecast and financial obligations in the next twelve
months, the directors consider that there are sufficient financial
resources available to the Group to meet its liabilities as when
fall due and to carry on its businesses in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared these financial statements

on a going concern basis.

2.1

31 December 2008
R-ZBZENF+ZHA=+—H
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2008. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intercompany transactions and intercompany balances within the

Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been accounted
for using the purchase method of accounting. This method involves
allocating the cost of the business combinations to the fair value
of the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. The cost of the
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable

to the acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders not
held by the Group in the results and net assets of the Company’s
subsidiaries. An acquisition of minority interest is accounted for
using the parent existing extension method whereby the difference
between the consideration and the book value of share of net

assets acquired is recognised as goodwill.

31 December 2008
RE-ZBENF+ZHA=1+—H
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new interpretations and
amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s

financial statements.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7

Amendments

Amendments to HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement and
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Reclassification of
Financial Assets

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of these new interpretations and amendments has
had no significant financial effect on these financial statements and
there have been no significant changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements

b E R Ik
31 December 2008
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31 December 2008
RE-ZBENF+ZHA=1+—H

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3 CHEAERERNEBHEREELMN
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS %

AEBHARAMERERPEATICED
BRERNFTREETREMHEREE

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements: Al :
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Amendments to HKFRS 1 BB EwEZER BB HwE 2R
Amendments First-time Adoption of HKFRSs and FIRRERGET B 55 B KL
HKAS 27 Consolidated and R 275 BB EE
Separate Financial Statements (#&1&35T) RIREE e 2E
— Cost of an Investment in a BIE 27584 0F J
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled BRI Ak —
Entity or Associate' REE LA
AE LRI E
R AR E LA
BIIEET
HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based BB RS 2R BB SRR
Payment — Vesting Condlitions and F25% (F&{E7]) F25RLA AR
Cancellations? S — BB
Rt iHaERT!
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations? BB RS 2R EHAE G
E35% (K1E7F])
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments' BRI HMEERIFET AL 5 E
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements' ARG AER BBz m 25
FE15% (K1EE])
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs' BE g AR EEH AR
F 23R (FHEET)
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial ARG AER B ORI A& K
Statements? F27HR(AERT) B R
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial ARG ERIFEIHR R BESFTAERFE32
Amendments Instruments: Presentation and BB aER| REMTA :
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial FAIR(AHEET) SR BB ST
Statements — Puttable Financial YERIE1SREA
Instruments and Obligations Arising e e 0E=2 1)
on Liquidation’ — e mITA
R B BRATE Y
EFayEET

HKAS 39 Amendment

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial

BB EFERIEI9

Instruments: Recognition and F399R (FHEET) e T A #
Measurement — Eligible Hedged RFETE -5 &
Items? FEEHIE B 1
EHIE
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes® a5 (BRI RS B R ar &R
REZET)
— R EFE135R
HK(FRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of B (BRI B RE B A
Real Estate' ZEEZEE)
—REE155
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a B (BRI B S BINEEZ RE
Foreign Operation* 2EZET) JF RS A
—REFE16%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to A8 (B A s BT B2 2 E
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has also issued Improvements
to HKFRSs* which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. Except for the amendment to HKFRS 5 which is effective
for the annual periods on or after 1 July 2009, other amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009 although there are separate transitional provisions for each

standard.

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

* Improvements to HKFRSs contain amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS
7, HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS 16, HKAS 18, HKAS 19, HKAS
20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS 29, HKAS 31, HKAS 34,
HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HKAS 40 and HKAS 41.

The HKAS 27 Amendment requires all dividends from subsidiaries,
associates or jointly-controlled entities to be recognised in the
income statement in the separate financial statements. The
amendment is applied prospectively only. The HKFRS 1 Amendment
allows a first-time adopter of HKFRSs to measure its investment in
subsidiaries, associates or jointly-controlled entities using a deemed
cost of either fair value or the carrying amount under the previous
accounting practice in the separate financial statements. The Group
expects to adopt the HKAS 27 Amendment from 1 January 2009.
The amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial
statements. As the Group is not a first-time adopter of HKFRSs,

the HKFRS 1 Amendment is not applicable to the Group.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The HKFRS 2 Amendments clarify that vesting conditions are
service conditions and performance conditions only. Any other
conditions are non-vesting conditions. Where an award does not
vest as a result of a failure to meet a non-vesting condition that
is within the control of either the entity or the counterparty, this
is accounted for as a cancellation. The Group has not entered
into share-based payment schemes with non-vesting conditions
attached and, therefore, the amendments are unlikely to have
any significant implications on its accounting for share-based

payments.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes in the
accounting for business combinations that will impact the amount
of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the period that an

acquisition occurs, and future reported results.

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary without loss of control is accounted for as an
equity transaction. Therefore, such a change will have no impact
on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the
revised standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by
the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary. Other
consequential amendments were made to HKAS 7 Statement
of Cash Flows, HKAS 12 Income Taxes, HKAS 21 The Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rate, HKAS 28 Investments in

Associates and HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.

The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27
(Revised) from 1 January 2010. The changes introduced by these
revised standards must be applied prospectively and will affect
future acquisitions, loss of control and transactions with minority

interests.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 Segment Reporting,
specifies how an entity should report information about its operating
segments, based on information about the components of the
entity that is available to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of allocating resources to the segments and assessing
their performance. The standard also requires the disclosure of
information about the products and services provided by the
segments, the geographical areas in which the Group operates,
and revenue from the Group’s major customers. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 8 from 1 January 2009.

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation and
disclosures of financial statements. The revised standard separates
owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes
in equity will include only details of transactions with owners, with all
non-owner changes in equity presented as a single line. In addition,
this standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income,
with all items of income and expense recognised in profit or loss,
together with all other items of recognised income and expense
recognised directly in equity, either in one single statement, or
in two linked statements. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 1
(Revised) from 1 January 2009.

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of borrowing
costs when such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset. As the Group’s
current policy for borrowing costs aligns with the requirements of
the revised standard, the revised standard is unlikely to have any

financial impact on the Group.

The HKAS 32 Amendments provide a limited scope exception
for puttable financial instruments and instruments that impose
specified obligations arising on liquidation to be classified as equity
if they fulfil a number of specified features. HKAS 1 Amendments
require disclosure of certain information relating to these puttable
financial instruments and obligations classified as equity. As the
Group currently has no such financial instruments or obligations,
the amendments are unlikely to have any financial impact on the
Group.

31 December 2008
REZFZENF+ZA=1—H

23 EEBERERNEBYHRREEAN

BB

BB mEERIFESH MR BB 2R
B4R D FwE - BB A EEEN(TER
HEREDHNER - WAHEKEEBHER
REKE  ZEBERAHRQFEESEREKSE
REPBEEERTAEBD MR HERRE - &
ERITR AR TE A EE A M #B PR A 2 o S PR
B2 ER  REBKEMEERKBEARE
BXrEXFP2BA - AEBEHE-ZTN
F— A —AREMNERBM B RELERFL -

m

RIEFT 2 BB EFHERIE RS AMBEHRRE
BEBKBEOBE - ZEETEYEDPAAA
RIFFTB AR EE - amEBHRNE((E
BREMBARSZFE  BRAFMBEA
R EBE AR T AR - bod - 2%
RAISI AR HBRER  2FMAEENERR
RN BA KL HIER - @@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
EERBA R HIAR (ERNEBHRRK
MEBE®REA) ZISE@TEHH}HE TFN
F-A-BERBRETZEL ST LS
55 °

KIERT 2 BB ST ERI23FEREBHKA
AEERER AR GRHNEENRE - &
EREER  ARBETUERE -  REER
ﬁ*ﬁ?ﬁfﬁmﬁ$ﬂlﬁ%ﬁéz%‘«f RIEAZ &
Ko REEFTENB TS AR EESEM
BTS2 o

RIERT Z BRI BB G EREI2RRE - B
AREERTARBEREELNREREN
TARARETHEERER AJEAREM®
MR ERBEAER - RIEFTZB B G E
AIER R BERERERB R AR H TR
TARBBENETER AAKEHEZE
TRTAREE  ZFEITEISHAEE
EEEMMBTE -




2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The amendment to HKAS 39 addresses the designation of a one-
sided risk in a hedged item, and the designation of inflation as a
hedged risk or portion in particular situations. It clarifies that an
entity is permitted to designate a portion of the fair value changes
or cash flow variability of a financial instrument as hedged item. As
the Group has not entered into any such hedges, the amendment

is unlikely to have any financial impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires customer loyalty award to be accounted
for as a separate component of the sales transaction in which they
are granted. The consideration received in the sales transaction
is allocated between the loyalty award credits and the other
components of the sale. The amount allocated to the loyalty
award credits is determined by reference to their fair value and is
deferred until the awards are redeemed or the liability is otherwise

extinguished.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 will replace HK Interpretation 3 Revenue -
Pre-completion Contracts for the Sale of Development Properties.
It clarifies when and how an agreement for the construction of
real estate should be accounted for as a construction contract in
accordance with HKAS 11 Construction Contracts or an agreement
for the sale of goods or services in accordance with HKAS 18
Revenue. As the Group currently is not involved in any construction
of real estate, the interpretation is unlikely to have any financial

impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 provides guidance on the accounting for a hedge
of a net investment in a foreign operation. This includes clarification
that () hedge accounting may be applied only to the foreign
exchange differences arising between the functional currencies of
the foreign operation and the parent entity; (i) a hedging instrument
may be held by any entities within a group; and (i) on disposal of a
foreign operation, the cumulative gain or loss relating to both the net
investment and the hedging instrument that was determined to be
an effective hedge should be reclassified to the income statement
as a reclassification adjustment. As the Group currently has no
hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation, the interpretation

is unlikely to have any financial impact on the Group.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 standardises practice in the accounting for
non-reciprocal distributions of non-cash assets to owners. The
Group expects to apply the interpretation from 1 January 2010
prospectively. The Interpretation clarifies that (i) a dividend payable
should be recognised when the dividend is appropriately authorised
and is no longer at the discretion of the entity; (i) an entity should
measure the dividend payable at the fair value of the net assets
to be distributed; and (i) an entity should recognise the difference
between the dividend paid and the carrying amount of the net assets
distributed in profit or loss. Other consequential amendments were
made to HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date and HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
While the adoption of the interpretation may result in changes in
certain accounting policies, the interpretation is unlikely to have

any material financial impact on the Group.

In October 2008, the HKICPA issued its first Improvements to
HKFRSs which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2009. There are separate transitional provisions for each standard.
The Group has not yet adopted the following amendments and
anticipates that these amendments are not expected to have a

significant financial impact on the Group.

(@) HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations: Clarifies that all assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
shall be classified as held for sale if an entity has a sale
plan involving loss of control of the subsidiary, regardless of

whether the entity will retain a non-controlling interest.

(b) HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Removes the
reference to “total interest income” as a component of finance

costs.

() HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies that
assets and liabilities which are classified as held for trading
in accordance with HKAS 39 are not automatically classified

as current in the balance sheet.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(d)

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Replaces the term
“net selling price” with “fair value less costs to sell” and
the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is
calculated as the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to

sell and its value in use.

In addition, items held for rental that are routinely sold in the
ordinary course of business after rental, are transferred to

inventory when rental ceases and they are held for sale.

HKAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance: Requires government loans granted
in the future with no or at a below-market rate of interest to
be recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 39
and the benefit of the reduced interest to be accounted for

as a government grant.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements:
Requires that when a parent entity accounts for a subsidiary at
fair value in accordance with HKAS 39 in its separate financial
statements, this treatment continues when the subsidiary is

subsequently classified as held for sale.

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates: Clarifies that an
investment in an associate is a single asset for the purpose
of conducting the impairment test and that no impairment is
separately allocated to goodwill included in the investment

balance.

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets: When discounted cash flows
are used to estimate “fair value less cost to sell”, additional
disclosure is required about the discount rate, consistent with
the disclosures required when the discounted cash flows are

used to estimate “value in use”.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3 CHE#A#EREMNEBUBRELEAMN

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) HEE)

()  HKAS 38 Intangible Assets: Expenditure on advertising and () BELTEAEBREFELE EX5E
promotional activities is recognised as an expense when the BEEESH MU EELRBEMHEE
Group either has the right to access the goods or has received RARSHES T R AZ W o
the service.

The reference to there being rarely, if ever, persuasive evidence MR E MR DR - 20 - BABEX
to support an amortisation method of intangible assets other HEFEENHEHE L MEERH
than a straight-line method has been removed. V5 o

()  HKAS 40 Investment Property: Revises the scope such that () BEGERFIORREYE - ZBE
property being constructed or developed for future as an AHERT T ARG EMEN BRI B RS
investment property is classified as an investment property. R IEER AR EMENEE -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EXSTHEME

Subsidiaries KB A 7

A subsidiary is an entity, whose financial and operating polices the WBARES B REERRARNRREE
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits SEBEEG AREER P RN = B -
from its activities. The results of subsidiaries are included in the Pi /8 A Al 2 AR E W R B 2 R B EF AR
Company’s income statement to the extent of dividends received RAIZEERA - AR EEMBAR 2 s
and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated LR AR DR EBEYIR

at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates 3N

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled B ERNRIRAREERE Hx$2’%/9€%%ﬁﬁ -
entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not B MER20%H) = B fE &= &Tﬁﬁﬁi

less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a Z2HAFIER  MIEREEDOME AT K
position to exercise significant influence. FZEHEEE -

The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the consolidated REFEREE R F 2w A REIRANE
balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity B EEEFENRREERINREGHEESR
method of accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s BRAR @ NEB DG & D WIBEER
share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is RiF#EI A HERRREHEET -

included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated

reserves, respectively.




2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which

the Group and other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the ventures stipulates the
capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of
the joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be
realised upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint
venture’s operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their respective
capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint

venture arrangement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@ a subsidiary if the Group/Company has unilateral control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) ajointly-controlled entity, if the Group/Company does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or indirectly,

over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group/Company does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not
less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and is
in a position to exercise significant influence over the joint

venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS
39, if the Group/Company holds, directly or indirectly, less than
20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and has neither
joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise significant

influence over, the joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and
jointly-controlled entities represents the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and

contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or
after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as an asset, initially measured at cost and
subsequently at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The
carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to

those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating

unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Excess over the cost of acquisition of minority
interests

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net book value of the
acquirees’ net assets over the cost of acquisition of minority
interests (previously referred to as negative goodwill), is recognised

immediately in the income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or if annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial
assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement

in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is

credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint

control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;
(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual

referred to in (a) or (d); or

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual

referred to in (d) or (e).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where the cost
of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised

as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives used

for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 20 to 40 years
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Machinery 5 to 10 years

Office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 to 8 years
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable

basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and various
infrastructure projects under construction, which is stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for

use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are stated at cost including transaction costs and are
depreciated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
property over their estimated useful lives between 20 to 25 years,

after taking into account their estimated residual values.

The carrying values of investment properties are reviewed for
impairment either annually, or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be
recoverable, whichever is earlier. If any such indication exists
and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable
amounts, the investment properties are written down to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the
income statement. Investment properties shall be derecognised
on disposal or when the investment properties are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal
of an investment property are recognised in the income statement

in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets represent the acquisition costs of distribution
network software less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the
useful economic life on the straight-line basis of 5 to 10 years
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life

are reviewed at least at each balance sheet date.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases
are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on

the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as either
loans and receivables or available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets
after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date. All regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the loans
and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through

the amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets
in listed and unlisted equity securities that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of other categories. After
initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at
fair value, with gains or losses recognised as a separate component
of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gains
or losses previously reported in equity is included in the income
statement. Interest and dividends earned are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
income statement as "Other income" in accordance with the policies
set out for "Revenue recognition" below. Losses arising from the
impairment of such investments are recognised in the income
statement as “Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial
assets” and are transferred from the available-for-sale investment

revaluation reserve.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such

securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market
bid prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined
using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a

discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial

assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through
the use of an allowance account. The amount of the impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when there

is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the

reversal date.

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment
is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the
Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of the receivables
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Impaired debts

are recognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted
equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair
value cannot be reliably measured has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial

asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is transferred
from equity to the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale are not reversed through

the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or

part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired;

° the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”

arrangement; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2008
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EASTHEHMELE)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be

required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/
or purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset
that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a written
put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on
an asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of

the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-
bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade, bills and other payables,
debentures and interest-bearing loans and borrowings are initially
stated at the fair value less directly attributable transaction costs
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The related
interest expense is recognised within “finance costs” in the income

statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation

process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (Continued)
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income

statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any

estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s

cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,

which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the balance sheet date
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to
items that are recognised in the same or a different period directly
in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
difference, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwiill or the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against

which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance
sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs
that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an
asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and
is released to the income statement over the expected useful life

of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i)  from the sale of merchandise and produce, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the merchandise
and produce have passed to the buyer and the amount of

revenue can be measured reliably;

(i) income from suppliers, comprising promotion income, display
space leasing fees and warehouse storage space income,
according to the underlying contract terms and as these

services are provided in accordance therewith;

(i) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease

terms;

(iv) interestincome, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

and

(v) dividend income, when the equity/shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Retirement benefits schemes

The Company and its subsidiaries participate in defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes organised by the local government
authorities in the PRC. The Company and its subsidiaries are
required to make contributions to the retirement benefits schemes
which are based on a certain percentage of the total salary of
those employees and have no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits. The contributions are charged to the income statement of
the Group as they become payable in accordance with the rules

of the schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, that is, assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as a part of the cost of those assets.
The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. Where funds have been borrowed
generally, and used for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets,
a capitalisation rate, which is based on the weighted average of
the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that
are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, has been

applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the
balance sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by

the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at

the date when the fair value was determined.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the

assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of

these properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made based on
the ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the write-down amount requires management’s
estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is
different from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
carrying value of inventories and write-down charge/reversal in the

period in which such estimate has been changed.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based on
assessment of the recoverability of trade and other receivables. The
identification of doubtful debts requires management’s judgement.
Where the actual outcome is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the carrying value of the receivables
and the expenses/write-back of doubtful debt in the period in which

such estimate has been changed.

Depreciation

The Group has estimated the useful lives of the property, plant
and equipment and investment properties of 5 to 40 years, after
taking into account of their estimated residual values, as set out
in the principal accounting policies above. Depreciation of items
of property, plant and equipment is calculated on the straight-line
basis over their expected useful lives. The carrying amounts of
items of property, plant and equipment and investment properties
as at 31 December 2008 were RMB1,528,479,000 (2007:
RMB1,296,834,000) and RMB7,783,000 (2007: RMB8,240,000),
respectively. Further details are given in note 14 and note 15 to

these financial statements, respectively.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s primary
segment reporting basis, by business segment. In determining
the Group’s geographical segments, revenues are attributed to
the segments based on the location of the customers, and assets
are attributed to the segments based on the location of assets.
No further geographical segment information is presented as the

Group’s customers and operations are located in the PRC.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary details of

the business segments are as follows:

(i)  the retailing segment engages in the distribution of live and
fresh produce, dry products, beverages, processed food and
daily necessities through any hypermarkets, supermarkets and/

or convenience stores of the Group (the “Retail Outlets”);

(i) the wholesaling segment engages in the wholesale supply of
daily consumer products to consumers including the Retall

Outlets, other retail operators and trading companies; and

(iii)  the “others” segment comprises, principally, the production
of plastic packing materials, and installation and maintenance

of commercial equipment.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then

prevailing market prices.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following tables present revenue, profit and certain asset, liability

and expenditure information for the Group’s business segments for

the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007.

Year ended 31 December 2008

Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales
Other income and gains

Total
Segment results

Finance costs
Share of losses of associates

Profit before tax
Tax

Profit for the year

Assets and liabilities:
Segment assets

Segment liabilities

Other segment information:
Capital expenditure
Depreciation:
property, plant and equipment
investment properties
Amortisation of intangible assets
Recognition of lease
prepayments for land
use rights
Foreign exchange differences

Retailing
2E
RMB’000
AR®T
DEBUWA -
HETFIAEE 8,094,092
DEFEHE 267,352
E A R Mg 281,490
st 3,642,934
DEER 175,296
BERA (61,898)
Uk =1 UNGIE LS -
BT Al A
FiE
FERF
BEREE:
DEEE 2,710,577
PHEE (1,725,693)
HihpIpER
BARY 289,485
e
W% - BE Kk 98,405
HEMHE 457
B EEH 817
At
AETEAR
1,913
NG BEE 55 = 58 (263)

4. SEBERE)

31 December 2008
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TREINAEEEBOBBE_ZZTN\FR
“EEFF_A=F—HIEFEZHA

HHRETEE  BEREL AR -

HE_ERN\F+-A=1T—HLFE

Wholesaling Others
3 Hth
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥TR
3,594,310 5,955
557,517 9,324
90,399 609
4,242,226 15,888
195,579 500
(46,275) -
(1) -
1,654,737 5,008
(1,153,139) (2,874)
67,602 8
22,728 89
1,120 -

Eliminations Consolidated

85 =
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR¥TR AR%Txn
- 6,694,357
(834,193) -
(26,930) 345,568
(861,123) 7,039,925
= 371,375
17,073 (91,100)
= (11)
280,264

(76,581)

203,683

(56,128) 4,314,194
56,128  (2,825,578)
- 357,095

- 121,222

- 457

- 1,937

- 1,913

- (263)




Notes to Financial Statements 31 December 2008

SRS HRAR M R=ZBENF+=A=+—A
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. HPBERE)
Year ended 31 December 2007 (E_RELE+ - A=+—HILFE
Retailing ~ Wholesaling Others  Eliminations Consolidated
TE #3 HE I abt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETRT

Segment revenue: DEWA

Sales to external customers HETINAKE 2,688,648 2,948,000 3,951 - 5,640,599

Intersegment sales DEFESEE 240,410 462,196 11,213 (713,819 -

Other income and gains HAg A R zs 197,072 58,028 601 (12,740) 242 961

Total @t 3,126,130 3,468,224 15,765 (726,559) 5,883,560
Segment results DERELE 101,100 181,176 423 - 282,699
Finance costs BMEKA (9,941) (30,196) - 12,740 (27,397)
Share of profits of associates ~ MEHEE A "l - 4 - - 4
Profit before tax R A% AL A 255,306
Tax I8 (86,434)
Profit for the year FERH 168,872
Assets and liabilities: BEHEEE:
Segment assets DEEE 2,573,930 1,353,464 4,992 (257,387) 3,674,999
Interests in associates {HEE D B - 202 - - 202
Total assets BEE 3,675,201
Segment liabilities DEEE (1,567,140) (956,178) (2,978) 257,387 (2,268,909)
Other segment information: ~ HAtt2HBEH :
Capital expenditure BARRYE 317,386 49,665 3 - 367,054
Depreciation: e

property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - BB K& &fE 57,803 14,703 94 - 72,600

investment properties REMZE 457 - - - 457
Amortisation of intangible assets & & i 516 653 - = 1,169
Recognition of lease SRR R

prepayments for land METBMK

use rights 842 - - - 842
Impairment loss on items of M - BE K&

property, plant and equipment  JR{ETE % 3,634 - - - 3,634
Write-off of inventories HHEE - 1,899 - = 1,899
Write-down of inventories to net 577 & & A] 1

realisable value FE 2,725 - - - 2,725
Foreign exchange differences  SMNEE i =% 7,714 - - - 7,714
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Notes to Financial Statements

b E Rk
31 December 2008
REBENFL+=HA=1—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ Ht AR Wz
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net invoiced WA R EAEENEXETE  EEEEY
value of goods sold, after deduction of relevant taxes and allowances for RERSE MREERERBREERE S
returns and trade discounts. 0 o
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: WA~ B ARSI
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T
Revenue PN
Direct sale of merchandise and produce:  EHEEEEYLREM :
Retailing =z 3,076,134 2,688,648
Wholesaling* Hp 2 3,594,310 2,948,000
6,670,444 5,636,648
Commissions from concessionaire sales B EBHEHERS 17,958 =
Others H 5,955 3,951
Total revenue B 6,694,357 | 5,640,509
#  Included in the balances are sales to franchisees amounting to # HETELERANEEREEEAARE
RMB474,475,000 (2007: RMB 257,289,000). 474,475,000C I HEBMA(ZZTZEF - A
R#257,289,0007T) °
The Group
TEE
2008 2007
—EBEN\F —ETLF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
P RE AR®T T ARET T
Other income and gains HE WA R WKz
Income from suppliers: IR B EE AR A
Promotion income HeEZ A 182,438 100,739
Display space leasing fee & 6,213 42,707
Others At 21,560 18,684
210,211 162,130
Gross rental income el Asazs 72,063 49,486
Net compensation on B 2 B EF5E
demolished properties (i) 1,231 2,817
Compensation for early termination & IR T4 1E 2 B8
of rental agreements - 6,000
Interest income FMEWA 22,921 9,691
Government grants BT Bh (ii) 12,283 267
Excess over the cost of acquisition A& IS D A RS
of minority interests A2 58 4,667 -
Gain on liquidation of associates BEBE QTR 18 158 -
Franchise fee IR 8,785 1,778
Others HAh, 13,249 10,792
Total other income and gains H AU Wz 4B 5T 345,568 242,961
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Notes to Financial Statements

BAIEERR M EE

31 December 2008
R=BENF+=A=1+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued) 5. WA~ Htr AR Kz (&)

()  During the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, the iy BEZZEENFER=_ZTZTLF+_A
Group entered into agreements with independent third party =+—HLEFER A5EHEETHE
real estate developers that certain retail outlet properties were NE=ZFEHWERBEEELERZ
demolished and re-possessed by the developers. The Group ANAARFERERBRERETEE
has been compensated for the loss of business and the related FiTh - MASEE BFE RZERATELR
items of property, plant and equipment, primarily leasehold MEBREAYE  BE  REB(EZ
improvements and machinery and equipment of the affected RIBEMERERIZBYENEE R
properties, arising from the demolition and re-possession. The R MESHE - EIREMENEE
net compensation on demolished properties represented the FEE A B R A B B R L B
gross compensation received from the developers in excess FRAEBYE  BFE - SENREENE
of the carrying amounts of the related items of property, plant o
and equipment upon demolition.

(i)  Various local government grants have been granted to (i) ARHFERFFEEERTARER @ A5
reward the Group for its contributions to the local economy B A& B A E A8 7 LA R I R2008 4
and the Beijing 2008 Olympic Games. There were no BEEMMEOaER  ZERMEPLEE
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attaching to these ERITOIEE KRB ER -
compensations.

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. RERAE
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—geN\F | —TTif
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Interest on bank loans wholly AFEREEERITERF S
repayable within five years 51,968 36,808
Interest on other borrowings RFRERE M ERFLE
wholly repayable within five years 40,854 15,872
92,822 52,680
Less: Interest capitalised B BB (1,722) (25,283)
91,100 27,397
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

7.

Notes to Financial Statements

b
31 December 2008
REZBENFL+=HA=1—H
RRBE A2 F
RNk (GEA) AT S IEE - NEBERBA

(crediting): A
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE ARET T ARET T
Cost of inventories sold EHFEERA 5,759,521 4,918,762
Depreciation: e -
Property, plant and equipment YZE - BB R 14 121,222 72,600
Investment properties B 15 457 457
121,679 73,057
Amortisation of intangible assets E & EE SN 20 1,937 1,169
Recognition of lease prepayments — F&E#2 L b f FAAETH EFB TR
for land use rights 16 1,913 842
Minimum lease payments under YELBRYZ ZIEHES
operating lease on properties 104,023 77,693
Losses/(gains) on disposal of items &Y - BE MR
of property, plant and B8, (Wzs) F5E
equipment, net 366 (242)
Reversal of impairment of trade U AR 3R B EL A FE U SR IE 2
and other receivables B OB E (1,430) (8,344)
Write-off of inventories ZIEFE - 1,899
Write-down of inventories to net WiHTF E = #35)%E
realisable value - 2,725
Net rental income A FWA (63,572) (42,692)
Direct operating expenses i s < RS
(including repairs and HEZEEHR
maintenance) arising on (BREFEENRE)
rental-earning investment
properties 8,491 6,794
Impairment loss on items of property, ¥1% - ME N & @R EE %
plant and equipment 14 - 3,634
Auditors’ remuneration % EREM N & 2,200 2,050
Staff costs: BT :
Directors’ emoluments SRS 9 2,983 2,352
Other staff costs HEeB8IpA
Wages, salaries and social IE& - FekReRERDN
security costs 291,884 204,962
Retirement benefit contributions RIREFIE R 24,581 20,871
316,465 225,833
Staff costs 8 TR 319,448 228,185
Foreign exchange differences SN B b5 2= BB (263) 7,714
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B RS AR B

31 December 2008
R=BENF+=A=1—H

RHKEF
BE_ZZNFR-_ZBELFT_HA=+—
BIEFE - ARBARRERN ERAARO R
A R ¥#24,981,0007T F A R #21,115,000
7TE o

8. RETIREMENT BENEFITS 8.

The Group’s contributions to pension costs amounted to
approximately RMB24,981,000 and RMB21,115,000 for the years
ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, respectively.

9. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION AND 9. EE - EEFMEENVERSHFES M
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES &

RIBEEBERZMES R REEREGF
BIE16115 - FRNEZREEME 27 ERE
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Section 161 of LU

Details of the remuneration of directors and supervisors for the year,

disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

The Group
REE
Directors Supervisors
BEE E=x

2008 2007 2008 2007

—EBENE| —TTLF | ZBEN\F| —TTLF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR | ARETT| ARETRT| ARETT

Fees we 160 160 68 68

Other emoluments: HEMe

Salaries, allowances and e R REM

benefits in kind B Y= 1,625 1,312 732 889

Performance related bonuses*  #&#E4* 798 636 370 438

Retirement benefit contributions 3R K& FlJ {7k 400 244 179 209

2,823 2,192 1,281 1,536

Total FEE 2,983 2,352 1,349 1,604

*

Certain executive directors and supervisors of the Company are

entitled to bonus payments which are determined based on the

Company’s net profit for the year.

110  LREEEEXEERGERAA

—ERN\EER

*

ATARFRTEERESERIEES - K
THZRAN A B F | M E



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS ER AR M o
31 December 2008
REZBENFL+=HA=1—H

9. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION AND 9. EE - EE¥FMEAEVERSHFES KM

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) cAGD,
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BAFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FRZIBULIEATES 2B ¢

the year were as follows:

2008 2007
—BR\F | —TTLE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Mr. Fan Faming SBERREE 40 40
Mr. Huang Jiangming = LBREA 40 40
Mr. Chung Chi Kong SEAEH A 80 80
Total (G 160 160
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent NEERNEEME N THEILIENITE
non-executive directors during the year (2007: Nil). ENFHNZZEZLF: F) -
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITEERIHTES
Salaries,
allowances Performance Retirement
and benefits related benefit Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remunerations
e 2R
RHA BIREF
we BYAIE EhES R oAt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR AR®TR ARTR AR%®TR

2008 —EENE

Executive directors: HITES :

Mr. Wei Tingzhan EEEEE - 565 280 140 985

Mr. Li Jianwen TENGE - 565 280 140 985

Ms. Li Chunyan TEFLL - 249 120 60 429

Mr. Liu Yuejin IR - 246 118 60 424
- 1,625 798 400 2,823

Non-executive directors:  FEHITES :

Mr. Gu Hanlin BEMITAE - - - - -

Mr. Li Shunxiang FEREAE - - = = =

Total #Et - 1,625 798 400 2,823
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R R MYt R=BENF+=A=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION AND 9. EE - EEFMEAENVESHFES M

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) & (#E)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITEERIHTES(E)
(Continued)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Retirement
and benefits related benefit Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions remunerations
e 28 -
\ KA \ BIRAER
e EWFlz= BRE R B < 1258
RMB’00 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
2007 o
Executive directors: HITER:
Mr. Wei Tingzhan wEELE - 389 156 61 606
Mr. Li Jianwen TGS - 401 240 63 704
Ms. Li Chunyan THRELLT = 261 120 60 441
Mr. Liu Yuejin BB A - 261 120 60 441
= 1,312 636 244 2,192
Non-executive directors:  FEHITESE :
Mr. Gu Hanlin BEMESE - - - - -
Mr. Li Shunxiang = |IaRE S A - - = = =
Total faEr - 1,312 636 244 2,192
(c) Supervisors (c) E=
Salaries,
allowances Performance Retirement
and benefits related benefit Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remunerations
E23c = 411
REHf BAREF
e EMAl= ENRS 3 AL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR ARET R
2008 —EENF
Ms. Qu Xinhua EFTEL L - 332 180 84 596
Ms. Wang Shuying S - 283 150 71 504
Ms. Yao Jie kit - 117 40 24 181
Mr. Chen Zhong PREESEAE 34 - - - 34
Ms. Cheng Xianghong  2RIALZ L+ 34 - - - 34
Total 1z 68 732 370 179 1,349
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION AND 9.
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Supervisors (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS ER AR M o
31 December 2008
REZBENFL+=HA=1—H

EE EEFMRAEVUGSHESNH
AC )

(c) EEZE(#&)

Salaries,
allowances  Performance Retirement
and benefits related benefit Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions remunerations
e o 2
K EAD RIREF
e EREES ERRS R SRk
RMB’00 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETTT ARETTT AREET T ARETTT
2007 —ETLF
Ms. Chen Jie PR+ - 250 125 59 434
Ms. Qu Xinhua EFEL L - 868 180 84 617
Ms. Wang Shuying ERE LT - 267 126 62 455
Ms. Yao Jie whiE L+ - 19 7 4 30
Mr. Chen Zhong 5 et 34 - - - 34
Ms. Cheng Xianghong Mkt 34 - - - 34
Total 4BEs 68 889 438 209 1,604

There was no arrangement under which a director or a

supervisor waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year.

Five highest paid employees

During the year, no directors or supervisors remuneration

fell within the five highest paid employees (2007: nil). The

remuneration paid to the non-director and non-supervisor

five highest paid employees is as follows:

Salaries, allowances and

¥ FREREMEYHN @

AEEABBEMNESHEFTHEL
REMEEMME

(d) AfUGESFHFEENMHES
AEERN BEEEREENAMEH
HexmEE(ZZEZTLFE: T) X
THEEREFIUSEHEEN

Bil& < SAERNT -
The Group
KEE
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

benefits in kind 3,695 SI566
Performance related bonuses — #&3#E& 8,225 7,017
Retirement benefit contributions 3Rt FI| fE3x 37 43
11,957 10,615
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PR ERR M EE

9. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION AND 9.
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(d) Five highest paid employees (Continued)

The number of non-director and non-supervisor highest paid

employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands

is as follows:

31 December 2008
R=BENF+=A=1—H

Ex EEFMRIOUESHFEESNM

=(#)

(d) EUESHFESHMS(E)
FEERFEENRRFEE  HFF
MERIA TEEENBHBMT

Number of employees

EEHE
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ L& 1,500,000/ 7T
(equivalent to RMB881,900 to (HHER AR#881,9007TF
RMB1,322,850) AR#1,322,8507T) 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T E 2,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,322,851 to (FHERARY1,322,581TE
RMB1,763,800) AER#1,763,8007T) 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 22,500,000 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,763,801 to (FHERARYA1,763,801 TE
RMB2,204,750) AR#2,204,7507T) - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000 7T
(equivalent to RMB2,204,751 to (FHERARY2,204,751 T2
RMB2,645,700) AR#2,645,7007T) 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T 23,500,000 7T
(equivalent to RMB2,645,701 to (FHERARY2,645,701 T2
RMB3,086,650) AR #3,086,6507T) 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T 2= 4,000,000 7T
(equivalent to RMB3,086,651 to (FHER AR¥3,086,651 T2
RMB3,527,600) AR#3,527,6057T) - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T 25,500,000 7T
(equivalent to RMB4,409,501 to (FHERAR4,409,501 TE
RMB4,850,450) AR #4,850,4507T ) 1 =
5 5

10. TAX

10.

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profit

arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members

of the Group are domiciled and operate. The Group is not liable

for income tax in Hong Kong as it did not have assessable income

currently arising in Hong Kong. Under the prevailing PRC income

tax law, the Group and its associates are subject to corporate

income tax at a rate of 25% (2007: 33%) on their respective

taxable incomes.

—ERN\EER

BiIE

AEEARBEREERELIRNAEEK
B 1 R R 48 & P A O A A R I ) Ot
NERFTISH - AEE BRI L ERNEEH
THERBEA - AEEFHATAENE
B o RIBRBERITABHERE - BRARAK
SEEEBERRNCEMSHRKESBE
AR AIR25% (—FZLF - 33%) WX
A o



10. TAX (Continued)

The income tax in the consolidated income statement of the Group

comprised the following:

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS ER AR M o
31 December 2008
REZBENFL+=HA=1—H
10. BB (#E)
REEEHBERKRPAERAEDT :

The Group
TEE

2008 2007
—EENEF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Current income tax — PRC AR TS — 77,313 92,780
Deferred income tax (note 32) RIEZEFTISH — Mi5E32 (732) (6,346)
Total tax charge for the year FERBEZH 76,581 86,434

A reconciliation of tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rate to tax expense at the Group’s effective rate,

and a reconciliation of the statutory rate to the effective tax rate,

are as follows:

ERARBRRADEFZEE R R EOREM
BREZASENERECEMSHREGTE
WEEMED  WREAELEMEHHXE
BERBEDFIERMOT

The Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EEN\F e
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR® T Botk | ARETIT ERaNd
Profit before tax BR 5 A g Al 280,264 255,306
Income tax at PRC statutory B BEFEREMEH
income tax rate FREAE 2 DEFEH 70,066 25.0 84,251 33.0
Expenses not deductible for tax A F1FE 2 H 5,625 2.0 4,243 1.7
Tax losses not recognised RERTIBEBRIELT 2,026 0.7 3,704 1.4
Effect on change in deferred M=z 2
tax rate - - (5,687) (2.2)
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEERFIUA 2
HIEE (1,167) (0.4) - =
Others Hith 31 - 77) =
Tax charge at the Group’s RIEARE B BRI E
effective rate > HHIE 76,581 27.3 86,434 33.9
11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE  11. B A FRA&EHE AELEF

PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the WARRB M BEHREBE—TZENFE+=A
=t RALEFEZBRAFRAEEAEEA
B F B A R #199,156,000t( —Z T F +

F . ARK97,503,0007T) (FfzE34(b)) °

parent for the year ended 31 December 2008 includes a profit of
RMB199,156,000 (2007: RMB97,503,000) which has been dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company (note 34(b)).
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12.

13.

116 LREEEEXEERGERAA

DIVIDENDS

Proposed final - RMB 21.0 cents  #HRAKRHAMR S
(2007: RMB17.5 cents) FELRRARK0.21T

per ordinary share

12.

T LF : AR¥0.1757T)

31 December 2008
R=BENF+=A=1—H

RE
2008 2007
—BBN\F| —TTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR | ARMTR
86,566 72,139

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The profit after tax of the Company for the purpose of profit
distribution will be the lesser of (i) the profit determined in accordance
with PRC GAAP and (ii) the profit determined in accordance with
HKFRSs.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year.

13.

FRARKO KPR S AFARBRRREE
BEREF ARG LHER - HAEE o

22 ) B ) 2 I B R A 40 A A A T
FZBREE  (MREBETEARSHEAEE
)i ) e (i) AR 8 B 8 B 75 ¥R o 2 R E 0
7l o

BRAEBRFEEARLERER

SREABTDREAEEGATLBRS
B AR 3R R A R BT BRI
FHRBGE -

2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTIT
Earnings: 2 -
Profit attributable to ordinary BRATRRAFE A
equity holders of the parent FE b 7 156,758 124,593
Number of shares
BHBE
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
Shares: B -
Weighted average number of RERZANARBRER
ordinary shares in issue during BAFTEMBE T
the year used in basic earnings AR N S AR 8K
per share calculation 412,220,000 390,719,448

—ERN\EER
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bR E R

31 December 2008
R-FENFL+=A=1—H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 13. BAREERISEABEERER (&)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (Continued)
The Company’s weighted average number of shares in issue used ARARBE—ZEELF+_A=+—HILHF
in the basic earnings per share calculation for the year ended 31 ERAARGTESREAREF 2B BTG N
December 2007 is determined by adjusting 27,600,000 new H ETFERBEER _ZEZLF AT ZHE
shares issued on the placement on 12 October 2007 (note 33). £ 227,600,000 #THAG #7782 (MI7E33) °
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2008 REBEE_ZEEN\FR_ZFZTLF+_A=1+
and 2007 have not been presented because no diluting events —BIEFEA - BAAR AN EFAEEESR
existed during these two years. 2RI BN EME AT EZ5| 588
SERF o
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% > BERRE
The Group
TEE
Leasehold Con-
improve- Office Motor struction
Buildings ments ~ Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HE
s nEEE He BARE RE ERIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT AR®TR AR%TR ARETR ARETT ARETR
31 December 2008 R=ZBNF
+=A=1+—-H
As at 31 December 2007 RZZZLF
and at 1 January 2008: +-A=+—Ak
—ZE\f-f—H
Cost AR 662,411 294,010 374,646 105,628 47,555 146,208 1,630,453
Accumulated depreciation  RiHHTE (57,709)  (41,369)  (145774)  (71,401)  (17,366) - (333619
Net carrying amount IREFE 604,702 252,641 228,872 34,227 30,189 146,203 1,296,834
As at 1 January 2008, netof W-ZEZ/\F—HF—8"
accumulated depreciation MR 25HTE 604,702 252,641 228,872 34,227 30,189 146,203 1,296,834
Additions 1 94,692 41,752 63,409 14,760 9,104 130,822 354,539
Disposals RE - - (481) (716) (475) - (1,672)
Depreciation & (26713)  (29379)  (48,376)  (13,215) (3,539) - (121222
Transfers LN 28,733 64,136 37,788 11,937 - (142,594) -
As at 31 December 2008, RZZZN\EF
net of accumulated +-R=1t—-0" 701,414 329,150 281,212 46,993 35,279 134,431 1,528,479
depreciation MR REHTE
As at 31 December 2008: RZZENE
+=-F=t-H
Cost % 785,836 399,898 466,838 128,546 53,519 134,431 1,969,068
Acoumulated depreciation  RiHHTE (84,422)  (70,748)  (185626)  (81,553) (18,240 - (440,589)
Net carrying amount REFE 701,414 329,150 281,212 46,993 35,279 134,431 1,528,479
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31 December 2008
R=BENF+=A=1+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. Y% - BMERKBE(E)

The Group
REME
Leasehold Con-
improve- Office Motor struction
Buildings ments Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HE
BT NERE e BN g EEIR @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTn ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
31 December 2007 RZTELE
+=A=+-H
At 1 January 2007: RZTE+E-R—-H
Cost AR 236,871 212,274 284,323 95,014 28,939 416,097 1,273,518
Accumulated depreciation ZHERAE
and impairment (42,728) (28,005)  (115924) (60,658) (12,814) (21000  (262,319)
Net carrying amount REFE 194,143 184,179 168,399 34,356 16,125 413,997 1,011,199
As at 1 January 2007, netof R-ZZ+F—F—H
accumulated depreciation R 2FTE
and impairment RAfE 194,143 184,179 168,399 34,356 16,125 413,997 1,011,199
Additions 1&m 35,039 20,710 21,006 11,507 5,040 261,853 355,155
Disposals RE - (299) (281) (890) (41) - (1,611)
Impairment HE - - - - - (3,634) (3,634)
Depreciation & (11,976) (13.274) (31,449) (11,021) (4,880) - (72,600)
Transfer from investment BREMEEAN  FE
properties, net (note 15) (Kr3E15) 8,225 - - - - - 8,225
Transfers =N 379,271 61,325 71,197 275 13,945 (526,013) -
As at 31 December 2007, net M=BEZ+E
of accumulated depreciation ~ +=A=+—B#k
and impairment ZETELRE 604,702 252,641 228,872 34,227 30,189 146,208 1,296,834
As at 31 December 2007: j e
+=A=1+-A
Cost A 662,411 294,010 374,646 105,628 47,555 146,203 1,630,453
Accumulated depreciation 2itE (67,709) (41,369) (145,774) (71,401) (17,366) - (333,619)
Net carrying amount REFE 604,702 252,641 228,872 34,227 30,189 146,203 1,296,834
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g e
31 December 2008
REBENF+=HA=1—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. Y% - BERRE(E)
The Company
LN

Leasehold Con-

improve- Office Motor struction
Buildings ments  Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total

HE

By ESE Has HARE RE EEIR st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL ARETR ARETR AR®TR ARETR ARETR AR%®T:x

31 December 2008 R-BENE
+=A=t-AH
As at 31 December 2007 RZZTTLE
and at 1 January 2008 +-A=+—-Ak
“TT\F-A-H
Cost A 641,643 220,771 298,757 81,452 26,313 145,268 1,414,204
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (57,624) (23962) (118,553 (55,390) (6,943) - (262,472)
Net carrying amount REFE 584,019 196,809 180,204 26,062 19,370 145,268 1,151,732
As at 1 January 2008, netof R=ZZN\E—H—H
accumulated depreciation R EFHTE 584,019 196,809 180,204 26,062 19,370 145268 1,151,732
Additions #10 92,621 28,932 33,161 10,343 1,331 109,527 275,915
Transfer from subsidiaries IEAREA 9,573 2,090 261 107 83 - 12,119
Disposals RE - - (481) (76) (89) - (646)
Depreciation WE (26,430) (19,521) (34,537) (9,445) (804) - (90,737)
Transfers 29N 28,733 63,201 37,788 11,937 - (141,659) -

As at 31 December 2008, net R=ZZT\E
of accumulated depreciation +=A=+—H

Mk EHE 688,516 271,511 216,396 38,928 19,896 113,136 1,348,383
As at 31 December 2008: ~ R=TFN\E
T-A=t-H
Cost AR 772,570 314,994 360,962 102,772 26,794 113,136 1,691,228
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (84,054) (43,483) (144,566) (63,844) (6,898) = (342,845)
Net carrying amount REFE 688,516 271,511 216,396 38,928 19,896 113,136 1,348,383
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31 December 2008
R=BENF+=A=1+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. Y% - BERZE(E)
The Company
YN
Leasehold Con-
improve- Office Motor struction
Buildings ments Machinery ~ equipment vehicles in progress Total
HE
BT NEEE s YNG4 g EREIR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
31 December 2007 j e i3
+=F=+-A
As 1 January 2007 RZZZ+F—-HF—H:
Cost PR 236,684 163,404 220,335 72,984 9,260 416,097 1,108,764
Accumulated depreciation ZEMERAE
and impairment (42,642) (19,534) (101,169) (48,201) (4,889) (2,100) (218,535)
Net carrying amount REFE 194,042 133,870 119,166 24,783 4,371 413,997 890,229
As at 1 January 2007, netof R-ZTLE—F—H
accumulated depreciation R 2EHE 194,042 133,870 119,166 24,783 4,371 413,997 890,229
Additions &m 14,457 6,121 10,392 9,261 3,477 260,918 304,626
Transfer to subsidiaries YNNG - (80) (1,267) - - - (1,347)
Transfer from investment BERENEBA  FE
properties, net (note 15) (MHzE15) 8,225 - - = - = 8,225
Disposals RE - - (277) (869) () - (1,187
Impairment HE - - - - - (3,634) (3,634)
Depreciation & (11,976) (4,427) (19,007) (7,388) (2,382) - (45,180)
Transfers =N 379,271 61,325 71,197 275 13,945 (526,013) -
As at 31 December 2007, net R=-ZTT+F
of accumulated depreciaton ~ +=F=1—H
and impairment HBR 2 E KA E 584,019 196,809 180,204 26,062 19,370 145268 1,151,732
As at 31 December 2007: ~ R=ZZ+E
+=A=t-H
Cost A 641,643 220,771 298,757 81,452 26,313 145,268 1,414,204
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (57,624) (23,962)  (118,559) (55,390) (6,943) - (262,472)
Net carrying amount IREFE 584,019 196,809 180,204 26,062 19,370 145,268 1,151,732

120 LREEEEXEERGERAA

All the Group’s and the Company’s buildings are located in the
PRC.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s and the Company’s buildings
with a net book value of approximately RMB503 million (2007:
RMB381 million) were pledged to secure certain bank loans granted
to the Group and the Company (note 30).

As at 31 December 2008, except for the 13 properties with total
net book values of approximately RMB445 million located in
Beijing (2007: RMB379 million for 11 properties) and the properties
under construction, the Group has obtained all building ownership
certificates.

—ERNEER

FrAEAREBMAR BTN ESR
A o

R-EENFE+_A=1+—HB A&EEEAKX
A A BR EFE L A R ¥508,000,00070( ==
T4 AR#381,000,0007T ) FIAE F 1 K
HRARERANEE RARRERHETRT
Bk (MI7E30) °

REZZFZNF+ZA=1+—H BEZEIRE
RAIFA L = BR R E A A R #445,000,000
T ZZEZTLF: +—AMEARE
379,000,00070) B+ =B ¥ - KEE#
ERBYENEREE -



15.

Notes to Financial Statements
PR 3R AR bt

31 December 2008
REFENFL+=A=1—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REYHE
The Group and Company
AEBRAATF
2008 2007
—EENE | —TTLA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Carrying amount at 1 January H—A— B ZIREE 8,240 16,922
Transfer to owner-occupied HAoRaYE

property (note 14) (FI5E14) - (8,225)
Depreciation provided during the year NEFERE (457) (457)
Carrying amount at 31 December N+ A=+—RAZREE 7,783 8,240
Fair value DA 19,894 20,097

The Group’s and the Company’s investment properties are situated
in the PRC.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 37(a).

At 31 December 2008, the Group’s and the Company’s investment
properties with carrying amounts of RMB6.7 million (2007: RMB5.3
million) were pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to the
Group and the Company (note 30).

The fair values of the investment properties as at the balance sheet
date were determined based on the valuations performed by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers. The fair value represents the amount at which the assets
could be exchanged between a knowledgeable willing buyer and
a knowledgeable willing seller in an arm’s length transaction at the

date of valuation.

AEBMARBRNREDEMRPBEEA -

BREMEDREBELEHEHZ WA TE=
77 BEHBERMBEHRRMEI(@2F -

RZZEENE+_A=1+—8  A£EMNAK
A RlIREE A AR 6,700,0007T K% & ¥ 3
(ZZ2ZF : AR¥5,300,0007T) 1% F # 17
RERAEEMARRERNE TRITER
(M47E30) ©

REERBRAREVMEZAAREHRBELE
EMEEEMBEEHEEFHBERARQA
PRYEHL 2 (HEBRETE - ZAREENRTEZA
HMENBERESD RAMEBEHNERETNAFER
SHEBEEEMPR TR

Annual Report 2008 Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited

121



122

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2008

b e R R-BEENF+=-F=+—H
16. LEASE PREPAYMENTS FOR LAND USE RIGHTS 16. TifE AEEER TR
The Group and Company
AEBRADQT
2008 2007
—EENF ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—RA—RZEREE 76,462 72,194
Additions 0 - 5,110
Recognised during the year KEFERER (1,913) (842)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+=—A=+—HZEAE 74,549 76,462

The leasehold land is held under long term leases and is situated

in the PRC.

At 31 December 2008, the Group’s and the Company’s lease

prepayments for land use rights with a carrying amount of RMB69

million (2007: RMB66 million) were pledged to secure certain bank

loans granted to the Group and the Company (note 30).

ME+HERAEERIURFTEEA -

RZBZNE+_A=+—H ' A&£EAWN
N R AR EE A A R #69,000,0007T #) =
WEREESENK(ZETLE : ARE
66,000,0007T ) #H K #R AR ERAEEF A A
RIEE M E THRITER(FIES0) -

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. (BB A SRR
The Company
RAF]

2008 2007
—EENE —TTLAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Unlisted investments, at cost ELETRAEFE - LR AE 333,847 186,712
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NGRS 172,089 335,899
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE At Ff B A B FRIE (29,703) (8,353)
476,233 514,258

IREREBXEARNARLE —EENFFR




31 December 2008
REZEZENFF+ZA=1+—H

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. B ATNER(E)
Included in the amounts due from subsidiaries as at 31 December RZZZNF+ZA=+—8 ARa([{g
2008 were entrusted loans lent by the Company (the “Lender”) H7 DEHE AR EHANEE - HALH
to Chaopi Trading, Chaopi Flavourings, Chaopi Huaging, Chaopi TRGh ~ BRHLEE)E - St R - Bt E - H
Jinglong, Chaopi Zhongde, Chaopi Huilong (collectively the BEERE (BBIEAT D ZREERHKIED A
“Borrowers”) amounting to RMB50 million (2007: RMB130 million), A AR ¥50,000,000( ZFTEEEF : AR
nil (2007: RMB20 million), nil (2007: RMB29.5 million), nil (2007: #130,000,0007T) * E(ZZEZLF : AR
RMB20 million), RMB30 million (2007: RMB50 million) and RMB10 #20,000,0007T) * T(ZETLF : ARK
million (2007: RMB10 million), respectively, to finance the Borrowers’ 29,500,000 ) * T(=ZZZT LF: AR
working capital. The entrusted loans were arranged via Bank of 20,000,0007T ) * A K *30,000,0007t( =
Beijing (the “Bank”). However, the Bank has no liability to either the T+ F: AR¥50,000,0007T) 1A K&
Lender or the Borrowers in case of default. These entrusted loans 10,000,000t ( =FZ+4:10,000,0007T )
were unsecured, bearing annual interest rates ranging from 7.29% LMEBEBAFTBELEEES - 2ZHERK
to 7.47% (2007: 6.84% to 7.29%). All loans will mature in 2009. ERRIT(TRIT DL HE - BB L ITHEA

FEHBRTHEERST ZZEERAER
HE o FEF B A729%E7.47% (T +
& 6.84%ET7.29%) T EFIE - FTAEERY
R T NFHE -

Except for the aforementioned entrusted loans, all the amounts due B B ERRERZ I - FrA U FE A BT R
from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed AERREL AERR 2R REETEEER
terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of these amounts due o ZEWNBAREKRREMNRBEEAR

from/to subsidiaries approximate to their fair values. BERE




Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2008
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. (BB A B RER(E)
Particulars of the subsidiaries held by the Company are set as AATBARFIEFNT :
follows:
Nominal Percentage
Place of value of of equity
registration paid-up and attributable
and registered to the Company Principal
Name operations capital Direct Indirect activities
KA RS
TR L HEEMER BRAERE DL
ARE REEmE IREE H#E Mg  EEER
Beijing Jingkelong (Langfang) Langfang, PRC RMB10,000,000 80.00 - Retail of
Company Limited B AR#10,000,0007T general
TRREE () BRAR merchandise
—REMTE
Beijing Chaopi Trading Beijing, PRC RMB368,000,000 79.85 - Wholesale
Company Limited HEHE R AR#368,000,0007T of general
(“Chaopi Trading”) merchandise
T RBHEEERAR —REmAE

([FHtRE])
Beijing Xinyang Tongli Beijing, PRC RMB1,600,000 52.03 =
Commercial Facilities HEER AK#1,600,0007T

Company Limited
(“Xinyang Tongli”)
IR AREERAR

([r&EN])
Beijing Jingkelong Beijing, PRC RMB29,000,000 100.00 =
Supermarket Chain HEHE R AR#29,000,0007T

Company Limited
TRREEEMmEHERAR

Beijing Chaopi Huaging Beijing, PRC RMB18,000,000 = 42.66
Beverage Company Limited HElE R AR#18,000,0007T
(“Chaopi Huaqing”) (2)
RS EFRREREERA
(r#EE)

Beijing Chaopi Flavourings Beijing, PRC RMB23,750,000 = 42.03
Company Limited Bl R AR¥23,750,000
(“Chaopi Flavourings”) (2)
IR ARREREERA
(TE8tR%Rm] ) 2)

124  LRZEEEXEERGERLE —ZZNFER

Production of
plastic packing
materials and
installation and
maintenance of
commercial
equipment

BRE MR
HENEE
e

RRE

Retail of general
merchandise
—BERTE

Wholesale of
drinks and food
Rk R it E

Wholesale of
flavourings,
edible oil
and food

HArmEkRHA
HALER
Rmit#



17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

AR EH

Beijing Chaopi Shuanglong
Alcohol Sales Company
Limited (2)

IR SRR EHEERR
EEDHE ()

Beijing Chaopi Jinglong Oil
Sales Company Limited
(“Chaopi Jinglong”) (2)

TR REmRHE AR
BERR ([FARRE]) (2

Shijiazhuang Chaopi Xinlong
Trading Company Limited
AR BEREERAR

Qingdao Chaopi Jinlong
Trading Company Limited
EEPHREREERAR

Beijing Chaopi Zhongde
Trading Company Limited
(“Chaopi Zhongde”)

I RBRPEEHERRAA

([EAf1E])

Beijing Chaopi Huilong
Trading Company Limited
(“Chaopi Huilong”) (2)

IR ERREARAR

([#AsLER]) (2

Taiyuan Chaopi
Trading Company Limited
ARAREHEERAR

Tangshan Chaopi
Trading Company Limited
LSS AE AR AR

Tianjin Chaopi
Trading Company Limited
REAHHERRAR

Nominal
Place of value of
registration paid-up and
and registered
operations capital
Aty BEEMER
REEMHH IREE
Beijing, PRC RMB24,000,000
FEER AR#24,000,0007T
Beijing, PRC RMB18,000,000
FEER AK#18,000,0007T
Shijiazhuang, PRC RMBS5,000,000
HEARHE ARE5,000,00075
Qingdao, PRC RMB5,000,000
FERES AR5,000,0007C
Beijing, PRC RMB28,000,000
FEER AR#28,000,0007T
Beijing, PRC RMB12,000,000
FEER ARE12,000,0007T
Taiyuan, PRC RMBS5,000,000
HEIRR AKE5,000,00075
Tangshan, PRC RMB5,000,000
HEIE L AR5,000,00075
Tianjin, PRC RMB5,000,000
HEIKE AR¥5,000,00070

Notes to Financial Statements

b E
31 December 2008

REZZFENFTZA=1—H

17. 5B QR AVER ()

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the Company
Direct Indirect
RDFEM
BRAEZE DL
HiE fa

= 4711

= 43.30

= 79.85

= 79.85

= 63.88

= 45.83

= 79.85

= 79.85

= 79.85

Principal
activities

FEER

Wholesale of
alcoholic
beverages

Mibi /it

Wholesale of
edible oil
RAMLE

Wholesale of
alcoholic
beverages

IBREERamE

Wholesale of
alcoholic
beverages

B mitE

Wholesale of
consumer
sanitary
products

BicHmita

Wholesale of
alcoholic
beverages

BT M

Wholesale of
general
merchandise

—MRE i

Wholesale of
general
merchandise

— MR E

Wholesale of
general
merchandise

—MREm AR
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Notes to Financial Statements 31 December 2008

g E R R-BENFE+=A=+—H
17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. BB AR (&)
None of the subsidiaries of the Company are audited by Ernst & MERATNRB AR BT KEBREE R XK
Young Hong Kong or any other member firm of the Ernst & Young B B AR B EHTT o

global network.

Notes: 5T

(1) All subsidiaries are registered as limited liability companies under PRC (1) FENBARBRZRFBREREZINERE
law. ERF] -

(2)  These companies are directly held by Chaopi Trading as to more than (2 EHEEOSHINERESBIBS0%HRAEZRD
50% equity interests and are accounted for as subsidiaries of Chaopi AR WERAPUIENHEB AR - AR
Trading. Since the Company holds a 79.85% equity interest in Chaopi AEIE=TEENF T A=+—HHTHIT
Trading as at 31 December 2008, such companies are accounted for BHAT79.85% MR AR - HER AL A
as subsidiaries of the Company, though the equity interests indirectly ARANHBAR - EEARRHEMEE
attributable to the Company are less than 50%. AR R 2R D FB0% ©

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. {(HEEE QAR ER
The Group
rEEH

2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREBT T
Share of net assets DIEEEFE - 202

During the year, the two associates of the Group, Beijing Chaopi REEA  AEBEHMKEE QR LR

Ziguang Trading Company Limtied and Beijing Chaopi Tianxing EAMEBR AT RIERFAFRERZFR

Vegetables Company Limited underwent voluntarily Liquidation. NEET T BEEE  REBRZE K%

The Group has received an aggregate amount of cash of B 238 S 58 AR EE269,0007T © AHEEA

RMB269,000 after their voluntarily liquidation, and the resulting Rz A R 158,000 ERE HHiEmc T

gain of RMB158,000 was recognised in the consolidated income LARERR ©

statement.

126  LRZEEEXEERGERLE —ZZNEFER




18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of the Group’s associates extracted from their management

18.

Notes to Financial Statements

b
31 December 2008
REZBENFL+=HA=1—H

e N RNER(E)

TREJAAKEBRERARKLRE PR
B EER

accounts:
2008 2007
—RENE | -—TTtE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Assets BE - 907
Liabilities =L = (407)
Revenue WA - =
Losses B8 (32) (10)
19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AIEHERERE
The Group The Company
rEE P NG
2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—EENE —TELF —ZENE “ETLF
AR®TR AREF T ARETT ARMETTT
Listed equity investments in AR EBEA ERA
the PRC, at fair value RE RARME 1,085 3,680 = =
Unlisted equity investments, at cost 3F_EMRRAIZE
BRAE 51,188 51,188 50,000 50,000
Less: impairment loss of equity o BB A REEE
investment (1,188) (1,188) - =
50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
51,085 53,680 50,000 50,000
Less: current portion included in B BRI E AR
equity investment, R AE
at cost (50,000) - (50,000) —
Non-current portion FERERER 1,085 53,680 - 50,000

The above investments consist of investments in equity securities
which were designated as available-for-sale financial assets and
have no fixed maturing date or coupon rate. The fair value of listed

equity investment is based on quoted market prices.

During the year, the gross loss of the Group’s available-for-
sale investments recognised directly in equity amounted to
RMB2,595,000 (2007: gain of RMB581,000).

LR EBERARBATHEENSHE
EOBAES - ¥ AEETOERDRANT
B% o ETRARE DR T RETHH
HEEE -

REERN - SETHEERARENEEE
HERNERTER - REAR2,595,0007C
ZETLF Yz ARKS81,0000T) ©
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P R M R R=EENF+=HA=+—FH
19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued) 19. A HEERAERE (&)

& On 23 December 2008, the Group entered into a sales and purchase * REZBENFEF+ZA=Z+=0 " ~5EES
agreement with Beijing Jinyang Jiulong Trading Company Limited, VEZFIAREGEAEBBEERAREER
an independent third party, to dispose of its 11.04% equity interest B E R LA R 50,000,0007T & ¥
in Beijing Shoulian Trading Company Limited (“Shoulian”), for a cash BRFFELREMEXERARAR( S
consideration of RMB50,000,000. The disposal transaction was B ]) 11.04%HIARHE T IAEE R - ZIEERER S
completed in January 2009. BER=ZZZNF—HAFTK °

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. EREE
The intangible assets represented the carrying amount of a RS A D AR R i > IR A -

distribution network and software acquired.

The Group The Company
REE RATF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF | ZZTLF | ZBENF | ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T | ARET T | AR¥ETR| AREBTT
Cost at 1 January, net of R—A—BERA
accumulated amortisation Mk 25T 7,964 2,344 3,017 2,344
Additions N 2,556 6,789 2,556 1,189
Amortisation provided N E SRS
during the year (1,937) (1,169) (817) (516)
At 31 December, net of Wt+—A=+—H"
accumulated amortisation R ETEE S 8,583 7,964 4,756 3,017
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—H":
Cost (DN 15,463 12,907 9,863 7,307
Accumulated amortisation R Y (6,880) (4,943) (5,107) (4,290)
Net carrying amount MR L FHE 8,583 7,964 4,756 3,017
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21. OTHER LONG TERM LEASE PREPAYMENTS 21. HttREBNFAEMR
Other long term lease prepayments of the Group as at 31 December rEBR-_ZEZENF+_A=+—HHNEE
2008 represented rental deposits for leasing eight premises for five RHANEMZERHEEN\EAR =T F
to eighteen years commencing from July 2006 and rental deposits tARBRHAEET N \FHEEEAKBA=ZZZ
for leasing warehouses for ten to twenty years commencing from NE—ARFTE+FNHEERE T/
January 2008. HEZRE °
The Group The Company
TEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF| ZETEF | ZBENFE| ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTR | ARBTIT| AR¥STR| ARBTT
Cost at 1 January, net of RK—A—BHRAR
accumulated amortisation Rk 2T 27,089 17,524 = =
Additions 0 54,895 11,461 46,389 -
Amortisation provided REEFA
during the year BoHRE (6,817) (1,896) (14) -
At 31 December, net of R+=—A=+—H
accumulated amortisation R 2 T 6 75,167 27,089 46,375 =
Less: current portion included  J& : BIETER K -
prepayments, deposits e REME
and other receivables Wik 2 AN BRER 5 (7,733) (6,790) (3,180) =
Non-current portion FEARHAER 5 67,434 20,299 43,195 -
22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
The Group The Company
TEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF| ZETLF | ZBENF| ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTIT| AR¥STR| ARBTT
Merchandise and produce HEEE R MAE M@
for resale 698,084 586,793 237,319 201,178
Raw materials R A H 10,606 8,213 10,606 8,213
708,690 595,006 247,925 209,391
Low value consumables [ERI=RZF =5 1,390 4,544 143 1,330
710,080 599,550 248,068 210,721
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. FEWERFR

The Group The Company
iy 1) AR
2008 2007 2008 2007

—ERN\F| ZTTLF | ZBRNF | ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 | RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR | ARBTT | AR®TR | ARBTT

Trade receivables JEUBRFR 970,966 749,457 354,302 193,763
Impairment TR E (880) (6,451) - (3,529)
970,086 743,006 354,302 190,234

AEBGLTEFPHNEAN—RTBBENST
B - HRARPEBEAGHNEZERELPETR
R B {5 F B o ZN & B 3R BR A% 152 I H 81 R
Ieel 2z EURER SR - mAREIEE e E Hnta
REBSBHETTIR  AEEEKENRS
MR2500% (= F : 3,500% )& F -
ERPZEHERARET000TEAR
#344,300,000t( Z T L F : AR

The Group normally allows a credit period of not more than 60
days to its customers. A longer credit period is granted to its major
customers with long term relationship. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group’s trade
receivables comprised about 2,500 (2007: 3,500) customers with
amounts ranging from RMBO0.001 million to RMB344.3 million
(2007: RMBO.1 million to RMB192.1 miillion). Trade receivables are

non-interest-bearing except for amounts due from Shoulian which

bore interest ranging from 5.58% to 7.47% per annum.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables of the Group and the

100,0007C & A & #192,100,0007T ) ° & fE
U B Bt ) FE UK AR SR FI | R B5.58% 2£7.47%
H A fEURBR RIS TEEFIE -

AEBERARRNEERABRARBEERRE

BERRBHARMBRHEGBR 2IREDOTOT

Company as at the balance sheet date, based on the invoice date

and net of provision, is as follows:

The Group The Company
rEH AN
2008 2007 2008 2007

—SEN\EF| —TTLE| —RRNE| —TTLH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFRL | ARMTT| ARMFR| ARETT

Within 2 months M1E A 2 A 620,419 602,686 81,101 96,278
2 to 6 months MEZ7S 8 A 223,477 136,353 150,458 93,785
6 months to 1 year NE A B —4 126,184 3,855 122,743 171
1 to 2 years —F R = F 6 112 = =

970,086 743,006 354,302 190,234
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

23. BWRM (&)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables

are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

b E R Ik
31 December 2008

REZZFENFFZA=1—H

FEWRR IR 2 BEEFINT

The Group The Company
TEE EYNGT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ZENF| ZTTEF | ZBEENF| ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR| ARETT | ARSTRT| ARBTT
At 1 January ®n—A—AH 6,451 16,406 3,529 3,529
Impairment losses recognised = HERRIEE L - 568 = =
Amount written-off as BAZHER

uncollectible (3,529) (1,611) (3,529) -
Impairment losses reversed BB ZREERK (2,042) (8,912) = =
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 880 6,451 - 3,529

The provision represented the individually impaired trade receivables
related to customers that were outstanding over 360 days. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered

& BB B60K MY = AR 5k B P 2 FE M AR X
BRI BEERREREE - ARER Ll
BARRBERIEMERER -

RUERRE 2 RUIRTKERE AT AT

to be impaired is as follows:

The Group The Company
TEE PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ZEN\F| ZTTEF | ZEBEENF| ZTZTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTIT| AR¥BTR| ARBTT
Not past due RiBER 764,566 695,731 230,942 187,543
Less than 1 month past due BEARBEBE—EA 92,466 30,2183 30,408 1,955
1 to 3 months past due BEREA—EA
=2={8A 77,330 12,612 58,763 736
Over 3 months past due BHEEB=EA 35,724 4,450 34,189 =
970,086 743,006 354,302 190,234
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number RERBERE BEHEWKERESR D MR E T E

of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

AEEAREFBEREHNBIULEFS © KIEE
R ARFEER/RBBEZIEREE
BEABCAEWRRERZARD - FIER
BUBERERE - ARE DASRBERES
ERERIECERER -
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December 2008

R-FENFTZA=1—H

24. AN RERAMEBERRIE

The Group The Company
rEH NG
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENF | ZZTLF | ZBENF | ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARETT| AREBTRT| AREKETT
Prepayments to suppliers TR FEREFRIE 169,850 90,727 7,940 7,623
Other receivables EH b fE U5k 23,926 26,573 10,034 22,138
Prepaid expenses TR E A 25,285 17,242 11,681 6,340
Input value-added tax receivables 2 {& 1 #E 18 £ fE U 7018 53,639 63,068 12,214 24,199
272,700 197,610 41,869 60,300
Other receivables H b E R IE
The Group The Company
REH YN
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EEN\E| ZZTTLF | ZBENF | ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT | ARBTT | AR®BTRT| ARETT
Other receivables H At pe Ui 5RIR 31,538 35,700 17,646 31,138
Impairment BIE (7,612) (9,127) (7,612) (9,000)
23,926 26,573 10,034 22,138
The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables Efh EUGRIBREREZZ T
are as follows:
The Group The Company
EH YN
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE| ZZTLF | ZBENF | ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | ARETT| ARETR| ARKETET
At 1 January wn—A—H 9,127 9,127 9,000 9,000
Impairment losses recognised B ERBEIEK 612 = 612 =
Amount written-off as IR SE SR
uncollectible (2,127) - (2,000) -
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—H 7,612 9,127 7,612 9,000

1 BAB60R Y HIR ELR AR T P ) EAl fE
WHRIBE DRI B EERE - AEEY it
REBARBESERIEMEAER

The individually impaired other receivables related to customers that
were long outstanding over 360 days. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

IREREBXEARDARLH
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. ¥ - R& R HthEWKIE (&)
(Continued)
The aged analysis of the other receivables that are not considered AR T SRR (B O L fth FE U RRIB 2 BR R 5 AT 2
to be impaired is as follows: ™
The Group The Company
TEE KAT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF | ZZTEF | ZEBEENF| ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTT| ARBTR| ARBTT
Not past due AR EA 23,926 24,953 10,034 20,518
Less than 1 month past due BERERE—E A - 1,620 - 1,620
23,926 26,573 10,034 22,138
Other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate HEERERABH B HERZ TR
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there was no EFEZERPHEENELMARE
recent history of default.
Other receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a HiEWRAEBBERESMES TEA
number of independent customers that have a good track record SEAERIFBERENEP MARIE  KiF
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the BELR  ARREERAZKREZEHAE
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is SRS BEWRBREEIWE - Bt
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been RBMERERE - NEBE LR RE
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still REMBERIETERER -
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over these balances.
LOAN RECEIVABLE 25. EWER

As at 31 December 2008, the loan receivable represented an
entrusted loan made by the Company to a third party through Bank
of Beijing. The entrusted loan was unsecured, bearing an annual
interest rate of 7.47% and will mature on 14 May 2009. The carrying

amounts of the loan receivable approximate to its fair value.

R-FFNEFT-_A=1t—8 BUREXRR
ARREBIERBITAE =D RHNEZREE
R RERERREERDY  FHENFR
747% ZERWREFRBENR_ZETAFRAT+
OHEIE - iR EROEREERLAR
B -
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 26. R RBELEEYURCIEKEER

DEPOSITS
The Group The Company
F5EHE EAT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE| —TTtHE —ZENF ZETLF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR¥ETR | ARETRT| AR®TR| ARETT
Cash and bank balances Re KB 543,028 501,940 319,261 295,698
Pledged time deposits ESRRARIEA
for bills payable with BROR=EANS
original maturity of N BB ERA
less than three months BERTEHER
when acquired 27 12,645 9,000 - =
Pledged time deposits for BiERRARIHA
secured bank loans RIR=EANA
with original maturity RITEFIER
of less than three months EHREBEH
when acquired 30 17,742 10,414 - -
573,415 521,354 319,261 295,698
Less: pledged time deposits i : E5H R A 2IH
with original maturity BHAR=EA
of less than three oy eEiiwidhali
months when acauired TR (30,387) (19,414) - -
Cash and cash equivalents e e EEY 543,028 501,940 319,261 295,698

At the balance sheet date, except for cash and bank balances
to RMB118,000 (2007: RMB78,000) which were dominated in
foreign currencies, the rest of the Group’s cash and bank balances
were denominated in RMB, which are not freely convertible in
the international market. The remittance of funds out of the
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposits rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.
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27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27. ENRIRARERE

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the balance REEBBRBAENERREEIZEEHH

sheet date, based on the invoice date, is analysed as follows: ZIRERDATINT
The Group The Company
AEEH YN

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE | ZZTTEF | ZBEENF| ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETrn | AR®TIT| AR¥TR| ARETT
Within 2 months R{E R <A 702,836 739,648 333,750 335,249
2 to 6 months M{E A =~EA 90,293 69,333 68,869 66,607
6 months to 1 year NERE—F 2,815 3,162 1,763 527
1 to 2 years —FH—F 1,035 430 46 21
Over 2 years HBiE—F 1,997 4,222 1,945 3,813
798,976 816,795 406,373 406,217

ENREMERSESHN  —REEHARS
60K °

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled on 60-day terms.

MR-ZBENE+—FA=1+—0 KEHER
ZEHA AR 42,000,0000( =TT F ¢
AR#30,000,0007T) * BAEBEXFTHIAR
#12,600,0007T (= ZZ £ : 9,000,0007T)
HIERTTE BRI IR R (B 5E26) ©

As at 31 December 2008, the bills payable of the Group amounting
to RMB42 million (2007: RMB30 million) was secured by certain
of the Group’s pledged time deposits amounting to approximately
RMB12.6 million (2007: RMB9 million) (note 26).

28. DEBENTURES 28. &%
On 14 July 2008, the Company issued debentures in aggregate RZZZNFELA+MA - ARAIEHITREE

#)/ A R E370,000,0007THIES - BAR B —
F o RBEFREERN  FHNER6.8% B
BIEFIRITET - LEFHNRABEEEZER
RS -

amounting to RMB370 million, with a term of maturity of one year.
The debentures are unsecured, interest-bearing at 6.8% per annum
and are issued through Bank of Beijing. The carrying amounts of
the debentures approximate to their fair values.

RZZET+tFF+A+NB ' NAREST
4% %8 A A R #370,000,0007T 9 & % 0 8
fRA182K - ZEHFRELERY - FHEA
7.08% ' WERAFERNZIES °

On 19 December 2007, the Company issued debentures in
aggregate amounting to RMB370 million, with a term of maturity
of 182 days. The debentures were unsecured, interest-bearing at
7.08% per annum and were fully settled during the year.
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29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29, HittfE(NHMERTEIREH

The Group The Company
rEH PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF| ZZETEF | ZBENF | ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | ARETT| ARETRT| ARETT
Accrued salaries, wages EEHe  ITE
and benefits EE 25,605 38,917 21,088 35,789
Deposits from suppliers HrEn  AEAERS
and lessees 32,121 41,130 30,331 38,595
Advances from customers AR PR 271,316 180,622 254,487 152,064
Interest expense payable FESF B & A 28,776 3,520 11,733 2,720
Rental expense payable ENEEER 39,345 3,325 33,258 2,445
Accrued operating expenses [EETEEE A 8,888 4,393 8,934 3,506
Construction fee payables S T2 & 24,402 28,821 18,382 16,475
Dividend payable to FE D BIR AR 2 15
minority equity holders BAZKRE 42,666 — - =
Others Hit 24,660 27,744 17,093 14,566
Total other payables E R R R
and accruals TEIRE 4R 497,779 328,472 395,306 266,160

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are repayable within

Hib B RBATHAE - RN —FRIE

one year. = °

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS  30. M ER{TER R HMER
The Group
AEME
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLE
Maturity RMB’000 Maturity RMB’000
FHR AR®Tx FHE ARETFT
Current REIE 5
Bank loans — secured RITE R —HHE A 2009 459,138 2008 334,712
Bank loans — unsecured RITE N — EIE 2009 205,000 2008 180,000
Other loans — unsecured A fE TR — K 2009 300,000 2008 20,000
Current portion of long term REASRITE A H]
bank loans — secured 2B — A 2009 44,375 2008 42,750
1,008,513 577,462
Non-current IR E D
Bank loans — secured IRITER— B 2010-2011 56,000 | 2009-2011 100,375
1,064,513 677,837
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 30. f{RSR{ITERRHEMER (&)
(Continued)
The Company
NG|
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
Maturity RMB’000 Maturity RMB’000
A AR®Tx EfE  ARETT
Current ERER
Bank loans — secured RITER— GHEIF 2009 400,000 2008 300,000
Other loans — unsecured HAh fE 3 — K - 2008 20,000
Current portion of long term REAERITE AN EA
bank loans — secured 2o — B 2009 44,375 2008 42,750
444,375 362,750
Non-current FEHEB
Bank loans — secured RITER—FHEA 2010-2011 56,000 | 2009-2011 100,375
500,375 463,125
The Group The Company
rEE YN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF | ZZTTEF | ZEBEENF| ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETr | ARETIT| AR¥TR| ARETT
Analysed into: DR
Bank loans repayable: EEZRITER
Within one year or —FRHAREK
on demand ¥ 708,513 557,462 444,375 342,750
In the second year E_F 50,000 44,375 50,000 44,375
In the third to fifth year, E=ZFERF
inclusive (REEEMF) 6,000 56,000 6,000 56,000
764,513 657,837 500,375 443,125
Other borrowings repayable: FEEEEMER
Within one year —FR 300,000 20,000 - 20,000
1,064,513 677,837 500,375 463,125
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

(a) Bank loans

All of the Group’s and the Company’s bank loans, which are

denominated in RMB, bear fixed interest rates ranging from
4.9% to 7.5% (2007: 5.5% to 7.5%) per annum.

(i)

Secured bank loans

As at 31 December 2008, the secured bank loans of
the Group and the Company amounting to RMB500.4
million were secured by certain of the Group’s and the
Company’s buildings, investment properties and lease
prepayments for land use rights with aggregate net
book values of approximately RMB503 million (note 14),
RMB6.7 million (note 15), and RMB69 million (note 16),
respectively. In addition, the secured bank loans of the
Group amounting to RMB59.1 million were secured by
certain of the Group’s pledged time deposits amounting
to RMB17.7 million (note 26).

As at 31 December 2007, the secured bank loan of
the Group and the Company amounting to RMB443.1
million were secured by certain of the Group’s and the
Company’s buildings and construction in progress,
investment properties and lease prepayments for land use
rights with aggregate net book values of approximately
RMB381 million (note 14), RMB5.3 million (note 15) and
RMB66 million (note 16), respectively. In addition, the
secured bank loans of the Group amounting to RMB34.7
million were secured by certain of the Group’s pledged

time deposits amounting to RMB10.4 million (note 26).

31 December 2008
RE-ZBENF+ZHA=1+—H

30. MERMRITERRAMER(E)

(@) |ITER

FTEASBEAARIRITER  HUA
REEE  2HERENTFR4.9%ZE7.5%
(ZZEZTLF : 55%E7.5%) M & E F
FEETEFS -

() BEFRTENL
R-ZBEZN\F+_A=+—H" ' &
SEMAR BN EEPRITERE
=T A R #500,400,0007T © AR
RIEF - REWSEF + HhF A
HAEENFEAERER - BIRE
FE 7 B A A R #503,000,000
T(HsE14) « AR %6,700,0007T
(FFEE15) A1 A R #69,000,000 (Fft
#£16) © B - REBBEMIRT
B4t AR #59,100,0007TH 4
£B AR17,700,0007t 8 KHE
HFE SR (M E26)

RZZEE+F+-A=1+—H K
SEEMAR BN FEPRITERE
5 AR #443,100,0007T © A A
RIMET ERIRE BEDE
0 - th 55 FA 4 R TE S SR ME A A
ER BEEFESRNNAAR
#381,000,0007T(FffzE14) « AR
#&5,300,0007T (Fi 515) F1 A R 1
66,000,000 ( fff 5E16) « H o+ A&
SEBEBRITERETARE
34,700,0007T B3 4~ 55 [ & #5177 HA
7 # A R #10,400,0007T #& 1R (
F£26) °
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS . MERTERREMERE)
(Continued)
(@) Bank loans (Continued) (@) |ITERE)
(i) Unsecured bank loans (i) FERIFRITE N

As at 31 December 2008, the unsecured bank loans of RZZEZNFE+A=+—H &
the Group amounting to RMB185 million (2007: RMB160 SEMERBRITERATAR
million) were guaranteed by the Company. There were #185,000,0007t( Z EZE + 4
entrusted loans from a third party amounting to RMB20 A E #160,000,0007T ) © H A
million (2007: RMB20 million) at 31 December 2008. NEER R_ZEZENF+ A

=t+—H BE=ZFETARE
20,000,0007t( =TT £F : AR
#20,000,0007C) IZFEE K °

Entrusted loans are tripartite arrangements, under which ERERTI=A%H - Bt - RTT
banks, as entrusted by certain non-financial institutions, XETICRBENERIT - 8%
lend the Group the funds sourced from such non-financial FeREBEENESETAE
institutions for a management fee. Such non-financial UBREIRE - :ZIES MBI
institutions are considered the providers of the entrusted BIERHEETMIRES - THEEXR
loans. Entrusted loans generally bear interest rates higher AR B EESNETRITER
than those of normal bank borrowings. B F 8 o
(b) Other borrowings (b) HfER

As at 31 December 2008, the unsecured other borrowing of RZZEENFE+_A=1+—"H K&

the Group was a borrowing from New Time Trust & Investment EIEREMERRREBLE=F

Company Limited, an independent third party, amounting to HREAREHENIKEAR QAN ARK

RMB300 million which was guaranteed by the Company. 300,000,0007T & f& 3k + B AN & 7 #&

R e

As at 31 December 2007, the unsecured other borrowing R-ZZBELE+_A=1+—H " ~&EE

of the Group and the Company was a borrowing from the AN RERFEMEREREREE

Chaoyang State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration EEBETIELZ B eM ARE20,000,000

Commission amounting to RMB20 million which was fully TTHIER RAFEEREIHEE -

settled during the year.

All of the Group’s and the Company’s other borrowings as at R-ZEENF+_A=1+—08  K&£EF
31 December 2008 are denominated in RMB and bear a fixed EARNBIRNAEHECEREAARE &

interest rate of 7.3% per annum (2007: 6.6%). The carrying > WA73% (ZEELF :6.6%)H
amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings BElEFR KT E - KREEKAARIER

approximate to their fair values. MIREEEEE QR EEEE
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31. DEFERRED INCOME 31. EEZEWA
The Group and Company
AEBERADT]
2008 2007
—EENFE ZETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARET T
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—HIREE 3,466 3,733
Released to the income statement EEREIEIIR (267) (267)
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+=—A=+—HKAE 3,199 3,466
Current portion ZNERER (267) (267)
Non-current portion FEAREREB 2,932 3,199
In 2005, Beijing Municipal Commission of Development and Reform RZZZRF  ARmERNIKEZESH
and Beijing Municipal Chaoyang District Finance Bureau granted ERmEHERFBBRAAARDIBERAR
RMB3 million and RMB1 million, respectively, to the Company for #:3,000,0007T & A & #1,000,0007T & %5 B
the construction of a fresh produce logistics centre and a logistics CRANEREHFRMEETR O REZEFD o
system. The construction has been completed as at 31 December ZETIRER-_ZETRAF+_A=+—H%E
2005. Therefore, the amounts were recorded in government grants Bk o Ht - ZRIEEFARN#EGEREZ
and are amortised over the useful lives of the corresponding assets ZERF-A—ARZAHEENFERAR
beginning from 1 January 2006. B -
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32, EEBEEE

The movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows: FEF BB EEEFHMT ¢

At beginning of year
Credited to the income statement:
Temporary difference arising from
capitalised interest expenses into
construction in progress

Reversal of temporary difference arising
from gains on exchange of buildings

The Group and Company

AEBERAD T
2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
REH] 12,333 18,679
RIBRREAET ¢
EREIRFEXHEARL
FTEANERERE
(464) (307)
ERYEIRESFTELER

s A= F (] (268) (352)

Effect on change in income tax rates BB X Eenr e (5,687)
(732) (6,346)
At end of year RELL 11,601 12,333
Provision in respect of: BN SIBVE T B
Temporary difference arising from FEREIRFEZHER
capitalised interest expenses into FREER TR AR
construction in progress 5,798 6,262
Temporary differences arising from BRSNS
gain on exchange of buildings FIEANERERE 5,803 6,071
11,601 12,333
33. ISSUED CAPITAL 33. ERITHRAE
The Group and Company
AEERAAT
2008 2007
—EENF ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR
230,060,000 Domestic Shares 230,060,000% &A% EE
of RMB1.00 each ARB1TTHANE R 230,060 230,060
182,160,000 H shares FREEBEARB1THHR
of RMB1.00 each 182,160,0008% 182,160 182,160
412,220 412,220
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AR HRAR M R=BENF+=A=+—A
33. ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued) 33. ERITRAEE)
A summary of the movements in the Company’s share capital is RARRABEBENT ¢
as follows:
Domestic
Shares of H shares
RMB1.00 of RMB1.00
each each Total

BREE BREE

AR¥1T AR¥1IXT
HAER HIH AR AR
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARETT ARBTT ARETE

At 1 January 2007 RZZEZE+F—HF—H 232,820 151,800 384,620
Sales of Domestic Shares by HEGEIRMAE HRNER

Chaoyang Auxiliary and A Bt 65 R S A HAR

conversion into H shares

upon placement a (2,760) 2,760 -
Issuance of new H shares RIS R THTHAR

upon placement a - 27,600 27,600
At 31 December 2007 and R_BEEN\F+=-_A=+—H

31 December 2008 K_TT+F+_H=+—8H 230,060 182,160 412,220

Note: BfsE -

a. On 12 October 2007, the Company completed the placement of a RITETEF+A+TZH ARAZEKE
30,360,000 H Shares of the Company, which comprised a total #30,360,000/%HA% © £ #527,600,000/% 7
of 27,600,000 new H Shares and 2,760,000 H Shares converted HA& % 27,600,0000% B A & A% ¥ /& AIHAR -
from Domestic shares. The gross proceeds received from the issue %% 1727,600,0008% #THAR FT 15 SR 1B B %8 &
of the 27,600,000 new H Shares amounted to RMB195,301,000. 195,301,0007T © H # A K #27,600,000
Part of the proceeds amounting to RMB27,600,000 was recorded THABREBEFARSN: EHARK
as share capital, and the remaining balance of the proceeds of 167,701,0007T ) FT 15 FRIB 8258 51 B AR AN %
RMB167,701,000 was recorded to share premium account. RS
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34. RESERVES 34. f#fE
(a) Group (a) ~&£H
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements REBZFERCEAFERBEFEZ
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the S EFIBERN AN SRR ECIZETO0
consolidated statements of changes in equity on page 69 BZEHEREBEK -
and page 70.
(b) Company (b) &AF
Share Statutory
premium surplus Retained
account Capital reserve profits Total
(&N reserve EER RE
BER EXRE AESE eyl ok
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%Tt ARET:x
(note (i)
(PRt EEG))
As at 1 January 2007 R-ZTLF—F—H 442,230 5,121 26,244 27,172 500,767
Issue of H shares upon TR EREATHR
placement (note 33 (a)) (Pi7E33(a)) 167,701 = = - 167,701
Share issue expense BITEA (4,760) - - - (4,760)
Profit for the year AEE R - - - 97,503 97,503
Appropriation to reserves BT - - 8,183 (8,183) -
Proposed final 2007 ER_ZTLF
dividend RER S - - - (72,139) (72,139)
As at 31 December 2007 HR-ZETLF
and 1 January 2008 +TZA=+—HEkK
—ZZ)\F—HF—H 605,171 5,121 34,427 44,353 689,072
Profit for the year AERHT - - - 199,156 199,156
Appropriation to reserves Bt - - 21,483 (21,483) -
Proposed final 2008 ERZZFTNF
dividend RERE = = = (86,5606) (86,560)
As at 31 December 2008 R=ZTTNF
+-A=1+—H 605,171 5,121 55,910 135,460 801,662
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34. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Company (Continued)

(i

(i

In accordance with PRC Company Law and the respective
companies’ articles of association, the Company and
its subsidiaries are required to appropriate 10% of the
annual statutory profits after tax (after offsetting any
prior years’ losses), determined in accordance with
PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus reserve. When the
balance of each entity’s reserve fund reaches 50% of its
registered capital, any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase capital. However,
the balance of the statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital

after such uses.

As at 31 December 2008, the Company had retained
profits of approximately RMB135.5 million (2007:
RMB1.4 million) after the appropriation of the proposed
final dividend, as determined in accordance with the
lower of the amount determined under PRC GAAP and
the amount determined under HKFRSs, available for

distribution by way of cash or in kind.

34. #HEE)

31 December 2008
RE-ZBENF+ZHA=1+—H

(b) RRF (&)

(0

(i)

RIEFERRDER AR RREER
E - AR REM B A REERE
B ARG TR M EREFFIRE
& AME (R FE1R1Z) B10%
SIARRVEEBHRAEE © BIATE
BRATRE RS REQREME
ANEN50%Hs - AT AR R B B IR
HEER o VA B AT S AT R
REEFBERIIENMRRER - B
EERBATEE AR L RREH
BENSBBETS LN AREMER
25% °

R-BENFE+-_A=+—H &
A RSB AS B R AR BB R B %
F 49 A K #135,500,0000( = &
T4+ AR¥1,400,0007T) © B&
BHREAREREARSELE
ERIRIEB BV wEEREE ]
BB S BEYWH RS IR SRR
EIZBRIEE o
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REZZFENFFZA=1—H

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. REE
As at the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided in REEABRE  EHBRSEAREREZ
the financial statements were as follows: HABERT :
The Group The Company
TEE PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—®R\F| —TTLF | —BBNEF| —TTLE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT L | AREBTIT| ARETE| ARETT
Guarantees given to banks PR T HE R AR
in connection with facilities B EEE RRIT
granted to subsidiaries REELR - - 210,000 160,000
Guarantees given to other T HE AT
financial institutions in BEREER
connection with facilities Eth 5 mhik s
granted to subsidiaries RREER - - 300,000 =
- - 510,000 160,000
As at 31 December 2008, the facilities granted to subsidiaries RZEZENFF+ZA=+—H AEQH
subject to guarantees given to banks and other financial institutions MIRTRECSREEBIREERMER TH
by the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately BRARMNBEREZRHDRNEFEROAR
RMB185,000,000 (2007: RMB160,000,000) and RMB300,000,000 #185,000,0000c( — EZE + F: AR
(2007: nil) respectively. 160,000,0007% ) & A R #300,000,0007% (=
TETLFF)o
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. EEEKHF
Details of the Group’s and the Company’s assets for securing bank REBRARG 2 HBEBERRITERRES
loans, and bills payable are included in notes 14, 15, 16, 26, 27 FERRHERNEEF BN M B HREM T
and 30 to the financial statements. 14, 15, 16, 26, 27 %307 °
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37. REHENWRHE
(@) As lessor (@) EAHBHEA

The Group and the Company lease their properties under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from 1 to 20 years. The terms of the leases

generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

AEBERARRIRBELEMER AL
ETREDME  HHR—F3-1T58
FHRER - BERR—MRERABAX
NRESE
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) 37. REBENNZHE)
(@) As lessor (Continued) (@) fEAEBAE)
As at 31 December 2008, the Group and the Company had RZZEZENF+ZA=1+—0H ' ~&H
total future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable KA NG EMEPIRIEA B A B &
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows: HHARRSEREEYGRBTENT
The Group The Company
rEE N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF| ZZTEF | ZBENF | ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR | AREBTIT| AREBTR| ARBTR
Within one year —F AR 36,614 28,668 33,865 26,384
In the second to fifth years, 55 —EF A4
inclusive (BREEEMT) 104,820 83,079 94,208 73,839
After five years HFELAE 99,112 76,200 70,635 46,700
240,546 187,947 198,708 146,923
(b) As lessee (b) fEAREFBEA
The Group and the Company lease certain of their properties AEBRAQNRRBLEHELHERA
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are ETWE MERBENT_FE2=1
negotiated for terms ranging from 2 to 20 years. R ERER] ©
As at 31 December 2008, the Group and the Company had RZZEZENF+ZA=+—0H ' ~&H
total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable K 2K BIAR AR AT A B GH 4 & T 4 R R &%
operating leases falling due as follows: EHRENFBEOT ¢
The Group The Company
TEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EEN\F| ZZETLF | ZBENF | ZTZTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTR | ARBTT| AR¥STR| ARETT
Within one year —F AR 95,280 61,246 53,826 51,444
In the second to fifth years, 5 —EF A F
inclusive (BHEEEWF) 414,291 267,961 253,508 216,676
After five years RF®% 826,815 581,038 547,758 506,154
1,336,386 910,245 855,092 774,274

146 LREEEEXEERGERAA

A lease that is cancellable only upon the occurrence of some
remote contingency is a non-cancellable operating lease as
defined under the HKFRS. Pursuant to the relevant lease
agreements, the Group is entitled to terminate the underlying
lease agreement if the attributable outlets has incurred losses
in excess of a prescribed amount or such outlets will not be

in a position to continue its business because of losses.

—ERN\EER

—HBAEEEETRER DO
NFFFHER A ARG - AIZBEROS
BAEMBHREERFTER 2 A HIHH
REMR - RIFABBHEE R - Z/58
BEEBRBEE - TERIZEEHHR
BREIFELE  ARBEERKIEHE
HEEE R



Notes to Financial Statements

BA RS ER AR M o
31 December 2008
REBENFL+=HA=1—H

38. COMMITMENTS 38. i
Capital commitments BRI
The Group and the Company had the following capital commitments, REEBERB  ASERARBEZAE
principally for the construction and acquisition of property, plant Y BERZEHER MBS E A EE
and equipment at the balance sheet date: T
The Group The Company
TEE AN
2008 2007 2008 2007

—BEN\E | —TTLF | ZBENF| _TTLHF
RMB’000 | RMB’'000 | RMB’000 | RMB’'000
ARSTR | ARBTI| ARBTR| AR®TT

Authorised, but not B - BRFTH
contracted for 54,466 51,056 54,466 51,056
Contracted, but not BETA) - BREE
provided for 4,685 56,226 4,099 55,641
59,151 107,282 58,565 106,697
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BHBALRS
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these @ BRTHBHREREMBIRIINAEHR S
financial statements, the Group had the following material N REBRAFENEEBH AT
transactions with related parties during the year: TTHTERNBEER S
The Group
TEME
2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETLF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
PiaE ARBT T ARETT
Controlling shareholder: i /NI

Expenses on property leasing YEREE R 0] 9,238 8,451

Compensation for early AR LT E

termination of rental BEmE

agreements (i) - 3,000

A subsidiary of controlling ZERABIMB AR -

shareholder:

Expenses on property leasing Y EE R (iii) 2,100 1,575
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes:

Pursuant to three property lease agreements and supplementary
agreements signed between the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary,
between Chaopi Trading and Chaoyang Auxiliary dated 30 April 2004
and between Xinyang Tongli and Chaoyang Auxiliary dated 1 July 2004,
and the supplementary agreements, with the commencement and
expiry dates on 1 January 2004 and 31 December 2023, respectively,
the Company, Chaopi Trading and Xinyang Tongli rent properties
from Chaoyang Auxiliary for operation purposes at a basic annual
rental expense, including related business taxes and property taxes
of approximately RMB7,340,000, RMB1,099,000 and RMB16,000,
respectively, with a term of increase of rental expense including related
business taxes of 5% or 20% for each aforesaid fixed rental period.
Pursuant to a supplementary agreement dated 24 March 2006 signed
between the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary, the Company ceased
the lease of one of the leased properties from Chaoyang Auxiliary with
effect from 1 January 2006. The aggregate annual rental to be paid
to Chaoyang Auxiliary by the Company since 1 January 2006 was
reduced from RMB7,340,000 to RMB6,952,000.

On 4 April 2006, the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary entered into
a lease agreement, pursuant to which the Company leased one more
property from Chaoyang Auxiliary for ten years commencing from 1
July 2006. The annual rental is RMB183,000 and RMB219,000 for

the first four years and the remaining six years, respectively.

Pursuant to a supplementary agreement dated 19 March 2007 signed
between the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary, the Company ceased
the lease of two leased properties from Chaoyang Auxiliary with
effect from 1 January 2007, the aggregate annual rental to be paid
to Chaoyang Auxiliary by the Company since 1 January 2007 was
reduced from RMB6,952,000 to RMB6,530,000.

Pursuant to a supplementary agreement dated 28 August 2007
between Chaopi Trading and Chaoyang Auxiliary, Chaopi Trading
ceased the leases of one property from Chaoyang Auxiliary with
effect from 1 July 2007, the aggregate annual rental to be paid to
Chaoyang Auxiliary by Chaopi Trading since 1 July 2007 was reduced
from RMB1,099,000 to RMB945,300.

31 December 2008
RE-ZBENF+ZHA=1+—H

39. BBEALRE (&)

GEX

mﬁ$“aﬁﬁ%@§ﬁ&%m%ﬁ@%%
2R mR© TFEPA=+HATER N
Ems@HRABER RN —ETHE LA
—BIRFITN=0ODERERERB R HH
(HFEOFEBSARERERSBIR=
mE—A—BR=-ZT-=F+=-A= +f
B)- ﬂa\%m%%&m%@ﬁm%%
BlRRARYEEEERR EXAFHEMX
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16,0007C © BRIR G AN & Lt EE A &
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20% ° MIBEARAHEAGER MR ZZE/
FZAZ+WMBIZH— O RHE - AQ
ﬂKﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬁm%ﬁ¢fﬁam§m
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BT E—A— Ethiﬁ%%%@
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 39. MBALRZ (&)

Notes: PE -
In addition to the above, the Company and Chaoyang Auxiliary Bz ARARHEABZ R RRR =TT
entered into a lease agreement dated 11 November 2007 with the +tE+—A+—AEFE-—HHEEHE - £H

(i

(i)

commencement and expiry dates on 1 April 2007 and 31 December
20283, respectively. The annual rental is RMB900,000 for the first
thirteen months and the remaining rental is at a basic annual rental
expense of approximately RMB1,896,000, with a term of increase of
rental expense for each aforesaid fixed rental period.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the gross compensation
income was received from Chaoyang Auxiliary for early termination
of an operating lease agreement.

Pursuant to a property lease agreement signed between the Company
and Beijing Tengyuan Xingye Automobile Service Company Limited
(“Tengyuan Xingye”), a subsidiary of Chaoyang Auxiliary dated 2 July
2007, the Company leased properties from Tengyuan Xingye with the
commencement and expiry dates on 1 April 2007 and 31 March 2022,
respectively. The annual rental is approximately RMB2,100,000, with
a term of increase of rental expense for each aforesaid fixed rental
period.

Pursuant to a deed of indemnity dated 1 March 2006 and a
supplementary agreement dated 10 August 2006, Chaoyang Auxiliary
has undertaken to indemnify the Company against the following:

1. any costs, expenses, losses and claims that the Company and
Chaopi Trading may suffer as a result of relocation or eviction
from certain premises rented from outside parties in the event
that any of the corresponding tenancy agreements is determined
to be void due to a lack of building ownership certificates or
proper property title deeds by the lessors;

2. any costs and penalties that the Group may suffer due to
the non-compliance with the relevant PRC Laws in respect to
borrowings from the employees, the fact that the relevant loan
agreements were not enforceable, and the fact that the Group
may be subject to a maximum penalty of 5% of the amount of
the total borrowings; and

3. any costs and penalties that the Group may suffer due to any
breach of the applicable PRC laws and regulations on the use of
the Jingkelong cards and the membership reward cards which
were issued by the Company as part of the Group’s marketing
strategy for its retail operations.

(i

(i)

(v)

FEHBESR AT LtFNA—AB K=
T-=f+-A=+—H fit=@AnNA
&R ARKE900,0007T KA T HEA TEYEARGF
ARz 408 AR #1,896,0007T @ BRI EK
ME i EEREHEANESAERS °

BE-TTLFT-A=T—BLFE &
ARRRNELEEEEHETRRBEA
REBEBERA -

WEARBNR-ETLFE LA AR TE
REAZEABERBARA R BREZ]) (F
E%ﬁ%%—%%%”f>xﬁmm¥ﬁsﬁ
CRERREHASANAZZSELFMA
—H&:%::i:ﬂ:+—ao§$¢ﬁ
Fis2 44 AR #2,100,0007T © BARIEIEZRA
EnEEAESHEARSEREAR -
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31 December 2008
R=BENF+=A=1—H

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 39. EEBALRZ (&)
(b) Compensation to key management personnel of the Group: (b) AEBRHTFEEZEEAS ZHH
2008 2007
—EENE ZERLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Short term employee benefits EHEEER 5,957 5,631
Post-employment benefits RIKEEF 747 621
Total compensation paid to key RMEBEBAESNZ
management personnel e Gk 6,704 6,252
Further details of the directors’ emoluments are included in EEMeFBEER SRS ©
note 9 to the financial statements.
The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(i) and (a)(iii) it ZB(a) () K (a)(i)m A B iE R SR 1K LT AR
above also constitute continuing connected transactions as defined BIE14AAZE MR E DB IFERER S ©
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. SREREEEERBER

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank loans,
other interest-bearing borrowings, debentures, and cash and short
term deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade and bills payables, which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review, the
Group’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be

undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, liquidity risk, credit risk and foreign currency risk.
The board of directors reviews and approves policies for managing

each of these risks and they are summarised below:

—ERN\EER

AEEZTECRTIABERTEN HT
MEEX EF RAeREHMER ZF
ERTIACZTFRERNAAKEXRBERE
& o AEEBRBEEXBHNEURA MM
ERMZRELRETCEREERAE

$El

EEETZEK%—E%T\i‘%f?T%{EJ

AEES@MT ARSI Bz EZ2RR AT ERE
% omB AR EARRRINERR - EF
SEHRMEETBEZSRM 2 BUOR - #atan
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income statement is affected by changes in interest
rates due to the impact of such changes on interest income and
expenses from bank balances, interest-bearing bank loans, other
interest-bearing borrowings and debentures. The Group’s policy
is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available. As at 31
December 2008, the Group did not have long term debt obligations
with floating interest rates. Accordingly, the Group has no significant

interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial
instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and

projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of the issuance of debentures,
bank loans and other interest-bearing borrowings. The Group’s
financing activities are managed centrally by maintaining an
adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group also ensures the availability of bank credit

facilities to address any short term funding requirements.

Notes to Financial Statements
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40. SREMREEEERBER(E)
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. £RiEMREEEERKE(Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) RERERE)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the REEAERAB  KEEEZESRETNNS
balance sheet date, based on the contractual undiscounted R AERZESRMAENIHBERET

payments, was as follows:

The Group REE
2008
ZEENE
3to
Lessthan  less than 1to2 Over
Ondemand 3 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ZEAZE TiB —-FZ
ARER DHR=fA +=A mE  BEME b

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARMTR AR®TR ARMTZR

Interest-bearing bank MR BTERREMER
and other borrowings 15,000 448,971 544,542 50,000 6,000 1,064,513
Debentures &% - - 370,000 - - 370,000
Trade and bills payables ERNERREE 96,140 702,836 - - - 798,976
Other payables iR 96,457 9,510 54,523 - - 160,490
207,597 1,161,317 969,065 50,000 6,000 2,393,979

2007
ZTTLF
3to
Less than less than 1102 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 2 years Total
=HRZE B —5ZF

BRER  SR=EA +=A ME  ERBRE @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR

Interest-bearing bank M BTERREMER
and other borrowings 40,500 104,587 432,375 44,375 56,000 677,837
Debentures &% - - 370,000 - - 370,000
Trade and bills payables AN ES 34,251 782,116 428 - - 816,795
Other payables iR 36,098 33,890 35,550 16,137 - 122,575

111,749 920,593 838,353 60,512 56,000 1,987,207
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Notes to Financia

| Statements

B B AR

31 December 2008
REBENFL+=HA=1—H

40. SREMREEEERBER(E)

The Company R F]
2008
“BENE
3to
Less than less than 1t02 Over
Ondemand 3 months 12 months years 2 years Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000
=) TEB —£7
ARER DHR=MA +=R WE  BBRE H)
ARETR AR%ETr ARETR AR¥Tn AR®Tn AR%ETx
Interest-bearing bank Pt B RTEFRREAMER
and other borrowings - 110,938 333,437 50,000 6,000 500,375
Debentures E% - - 370,000 - - 370,000
Trade and bills payables EREFRER 72,624 333,749 - - - 406,373
Other payables Ht eI 43,067 7,284 48,713 = = 99,064
115,691 451,971 752,150 50,000 6,000 1,375,812
2007
“ZTLF
3to
Less than less than 1102 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 2 years Total
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Az ENEkl —§%
ARER  PR=EA +=A WE  RBWE @t
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETE ARBTT ARETR
Interest-bearing bank Pt B RTEFRREAMER

and other borrowings 20,500 9,875 332,375 44,375 56,000 463,125
Debentures E% - - 370,000 - - 370,000
Trade and bills payable NS 73,851 332,366 - - - 406,217
Other payables HiER R 30,846 23,334 37,612 = = 91,792
125,197 365,575 739,987 44,375 56,000 1,331,134

Credit risk ERARE

Credit risk arises mainly from the risk of counterparties defaulting

on the terms of their agreements. The carrying amounts of cash

and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, a loan

receivable, other receivables and available-for-sale investments

represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation

to financial assets.

ERARRIBERERXFEH T ERE RKRN
Bk RERRSEEY  CDEAFK B
Wik - BUE R - E i EYGR R AT &
IRARERR T AEE BB EER RN

EERARERE
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk on an ongoing
basis and credit evaluations are performed on customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis, therefore, the Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant. The credit risk on balances of cash and
cash equivalents and pledged deposits is low as these balances

are placed with reputable financial institutions.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are disclosed

in notes 23 and 24 to the financial statements.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are principally located in the PRC and
the Group’s sales and purchases were mainly conducted in RMB.
As at the balance sheet date, all the Group’s assets and liabilities
were denominated in RMB, except for cash and bank balances
of RMB118,000 (2007: RMB78,000) denominated in foreign
currencies. Accordingly, there would be no material impact on the
Group’s profit or loss and there would be no material impact on

the Group’s equity from changes in exchange rates.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business

and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2008
and 31 December 2007.

31 December 2008
RE-ZBENF+ZHA=1+—H
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. ©@EREEBEREE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued) EREE(E)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt AEBEERAABELREEERNBER - &L=
divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes interest- RFAEBERINBRERNNEFEE  FEER
bearing bank and other borrowings, trade and bills payables, FEERITERREMER - BAERRE
debentures, other payables and accruals and long term payabiles, B BFH - EMENK - BREAURKH
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable BRZBEReMASEEY -  EABES
to equity holders of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the balance RARAFE AR RN ER - REEAE
sheet dates were as follows: *EBEEERNT :
The Group REE
2008 2007
—EBEN\F —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings Ff 8 R1TE 7k & EAtb fE 7k 1,064,513 677,837
Trade and bills payables R REER 798,976 816,795
Debentures &% 370,000 370,000
Other payables and accruals HErrAxkERER 497,779 328,472
Long-term payables RAIFERTFK 7,000 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRREeEEY (543,028) (501,940)
Net debt FEE 2,195,240 1,691,164
Equity attributable to equity holders RAFFE ARG ARE 1,325,019 1,242,995
Capital and net debt BEARRFAE 3,520,259 2,934,159
Gearing ratio BELE 62% 58%
41. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 4. EERERAKER
Save as disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements, the Group RN RS IRAR P FE 19PN EESD - ARERN =
did not have any significant post balance sheet event subsequent ZENF+-_A=+—HRBRESREEAE
to 31 December 2008. RBBEBBEELE -
42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42. EHBITEIRE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue EEeERETNF AT tHHER
by the board of directors on 27 March 2009. BT B TSk -
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Summary Financial Information

AR E

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity of the DAT%ﬁiEEEAi@Eﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁzaﬂﬁi
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the prospectus BE - AERBRAEERE - WREsE
issued by the Company on 12 September 2006 and the Group’s audited ZISL\ETE’\\:;: SAFNATZATIENBRE
financial statements for the three years ended 31 December 2008, is BEHE_ZTEN\F+_A=+—HIL=@AF
set out below. This summary does not form part of the audited financial ERBZI B o W EW I E R G ®
statements. R MR RS
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ZEENE IERtE 55 I%EE ZIERE
Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations  operations Total | operations  operations Total  operations ~ operations Total  operations ~ operations Total  operations ~ operations Total
KEEE HLEE 4F | nEBE  KEE bE nEER ALER 4R pEEE KR BE  pEEE  KrER et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'00O | RMBIOOO RMBOO0 RMBO00 RMBOO0 RMB000 RMBOOO RMBOO0 RMBO00 RVBIOOO RMBI0O0 RMB'000  RMBO0O
AERTR ARMTn ARMTR (ARETr ARMTT ARBTR ARETT ARMTT ARETR ARETT ARMTT ARETR ARETRT ARMTT ARETR
Results X
Revenue WA 6,694,357 - 6,694,357 | 5640599 - 5640599 4,530975 - 4530975 4121748 - 4121748 30568865 97,893 3,606,758
Profit before tax BEanad 260,264 - 280,264 | 255306 - 265306 205491 - 205491 145504 - 145504 127918 484 128402
Tax i (76,581) - (16581)| (86434 - (86434)  (14072) - (14072) (47,158 - [71%8)  @4t2r)  (06)  (44,299)
Profit for the year ERRA 203,683 - 203683 | 168872 - 168872 131419 - 1349 98346 - %36 83791 318 84,169
Attributable to; g1
Fouiy holders of ~~ BRFIRA
the parent FEA 156,758 - 156,758 | 124593 - 124593 99517 - 9577 75098 - 75098 73167 361 73,528
Minorty interests DEhRER 46,925 - 46925 | 44019 - My s18M - 82 38 - B8 10624 17 1064
203,683 - 203683 | 168872 - 168872 131419 - 1349 98346 - %836 83791 318 84,169
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
“EENE | Z2TLFE ZZTTRF ZTThF ZTTWF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR | ARETT ARBETT ARBTT ARETT
Assets, Liabilities and Equity BE  BERRAER
Non-current assets FREEE 1,687,913 | 1,463,681 1,123,480 889,749 700,353
Current assets MENEE 2,626,281 | 2,211,520 1,994,434 1,252,434 1,082,930
Current liabilities mEaE (2,748,045) | (2,153,002) (1,741,124) (1,531,249) (1,241,717)
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE/(AE)F (121,764) 58,618 253,310 (278,815) (158,787)
Total assets less current liabilities — AEERREE & 1,566,149 | 1,522,199 1,376,790 610,934 541,566
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (77,533) | (115,907)  (302,145)  (178,230)  (161,976)
Net assets AEFE 1,488,616 | 1,406,292 1,074,645 432,704 379,590
Represented by: 1k :
Equity attributable to equity ISYNCIEZNEY=PN
holders of the parent e R 1,325,019 1,242,995 984,973 358,784 322,493
Minority interests DY R 163,597 163,297 89,672 73,920 57,097
Total equity AR 2 4B FE 1,488,616 | 1,406,292 1,074,645 432,704 379,590
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